
For the best experience, open this PDF portfolio in
 
Acrobat X or Adobe Reader X, or later.
 

Get Adobe Reader Now! 

http://www.adobe.com/go/reader




 


 
In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, we invite all attendees to advise us of any special accommodations due to disability. The 
meeting place is accessible to persons with disabilities. If assistance is needed to participate, please call the office of the Workforce Solutions for 
North Central Texas at (817) 695-9184. Please submit your request as far as possible in advance of the meeting you wish to attend. Workforce 
Solutions for North Central Texas Board may discuss, deliberate, and take all appropriate action on any matter listed on this agenda and may convene 
into closed executive session in accordance with the Texas Open Meetings Act. 


 


 
 
 


ANNUAL MEETING 
NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF 


DIRECTORS and NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS CHIEF ELECTED OFFICIALS 
 


Meeting Agenda 
February 24, 2021 


9:00 a.m.- 11:00 a.m. 
Meeting Videoconference: https://zoom.us/j/4235880229 


 


The North Central Texas Workforce Board meeting will be conducted as a telephonic/audio 
meeting. Members of the public wishing to participate may do so by dialing toll free 1-855-965-
2480 and entering access ID # 423 588 0229 when prompted. Alternatively, the meeting will be 
recorded and later posted on the website at https://dfwjobs.com/pastboardpacket.  


 
Call to Order – Roger Harris, Chairman Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas 


Danny Chambers, Somervell County Judge, Lead CEO    
 
1) Public Comment 


At this time, the public telephone line will be unmuted and members of the public may 
comment on any item on today's agenda. For the Board’s record, please announce your 
name, city of residence and the agenda item(s) on which you are speaking. A maximum 
three (3) minutes is permitted per speaker. At the conclusion of this opportunity, the public 
telephone line will be muted for the duration of the meeting. 
 


2) Special Recognition and Introductions 
a) Board Member Years of Service Awards: 


i) 20 years: Roselyn Lane 
ii) 5 Years: Chip Evans 
iii) 3 Years: Gae Goodwin, John Rattan  


b) Barbara Batista, Board Member representing Community Based Organization – Collin 
County Early Childhood Coalition 


c) Tony Curry, Board Member representing Private Sector - Bombardier Aerospace 
d) Kristin Grammar, Board Member representing Economic Development – Frisco Chamber 


of Commerce 
e) Jenny Morris, Board Member representing Adult Basic & Continuing Education – 


Weatherford ISD 
f) Ken Peters, Board Member representing Private Sector – Luminant (Vistra Energy) 


 
3) Declare Conflicts of Interest 
 
4) CEO Discussion, Consideration, and Possible Action Regarding 


a) Approval of the January 29th, 2020 Minutes 
b) Nominate and Elect a Lead Chief Elected Official and an Alternate Lead Chief Elected 


Official 



https://zoom.us/j/4235880229

https://dfwjobs.com/pastboardpacket





 


ANNUAL MEETING NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF DIRECTORS and NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS CHIEF 
ELECTED OFFICIALS  PAGE 2 
 
 
 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to 
individuals with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 


 


ANNUAL MEETING NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS and NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS CHIEF ELECTED OFFICIALS 


5) Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas Annual Report to CEOs 
a) FY20 Annual Report Video 
b) FY20 Year End Financial Report – Randy Richardson 
c) Monitoring and Oversight Report – Debra Kosarek 
d) FY20 Performance Report – Michael Nicholas 
e) Membership Report – Cristina Medina 


 
6) Workforce Board Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action Regarding 


a) Approval of Consent Agenda Items 
i) November 17, 2020 Minutes 


b) Strategic Leadership Committee Report- Kenny Weldon 
i) 2016-2020 Strategic Plan Final Report 


c) Oversight & Accountability Committee Report – Carlton Tidwell 
d) Executive Committee Report – Roger Harris 


i) WSNCT Board Budget Approval Policy 
e) In Demand Industries, In Demand Occupations and Target Occupations List Updates 
f) 2021-2024 Local Plan  
g) NCTCOG Independent Audit 


  
7) Executive Director’s Report 


a) Staff Announcements  
b) Board Staff Years of Service Recognition 


 
8) Announcement of Executive Session 


As authorized by Section 551.071 to consult with the Board’s attorney for legal advice on 
any matter listed on the agenda, pending or contemplated litigation, settlement offers, or any 
matter in which the duty of the Board’s attorney to the Board under the Texas Disciplinary 
Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflict with the provisions 
of Chapter 551 of the Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 


9) Action as a Result of Executive Session 
 
10) Other Business 


 
11) Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 





		ANNUAL MEETING

		NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF DIRECTORS and NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS CHIEF ELECTED OFFICIALS

		Meeting Agenda

		February 24, 2021

		1) Public Comment

		At this time, the public telephone line will be unmuted and members of the public may comment on any item on today's agenda. For the Board’s record, please announce your name, city of residence and the agenda item(s) on which you are speaking. A maxim...

		2) Special Recognition and Introductions

		a) Board Member Years of Service Awards:

		i) 20 years: Roselyn Lane

		ii) 5 Years: Chip Evans

		iii) 3 Years: Gae Goodwin, John Rattan

		b) Barbara Batista, Board Member representing Community Based Organization – Collin County Early Childhood Coalition

		c) Tony Curry, Board Member representing Private Sector - Bombardier Aerospace

		d) Kristin Grammar, Board Member representing Economic Development – Frisco Chamber of Commerce

		e) Jenny Morris, Board Member representing Adult Basic & Continuing Education – Weatherford ISD

		f) Ken Peters, Board Member representing Private Sector – Luminant (Vistra Energy)








 
 
 
 
 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to 
individuals with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 
 


Annual North Central Texas Chief Elected Officials 
 


Meeting Minutes 
Wednesday, January 29th, 2020 


9:30 am-11:30 am 
Hurst Conference Center 


1601 Campus Dr. 
Hurst, TX 76054 


 
 


CHIEF ELECTED OFFICIALS MEMBERS PRESENT: 
Judge Danny Chambers Judge Todd Little 
Judge Roger Harmon Judge Alfonso Campos 
Judge Ron Massingill Judge Chris Hill (phone) 
Judge David Sweet (phone) Judge Pat Deen (phone) 
Mayor George Fuller (phone) Mayor Kevin Falconer (phone) 
Judge Hal Richards (phone)  


 
CHIEF ELECTED OFFICIALS MEMBERS NOT PRESENT: 


Judge Andy Eads Judge H.M. Davenport 
Judge J.D. Clark Judge Bobby W. Stovall 
Judge Shane Long Mayor Chris Watts 
Mayor Harry LaRosiliere Mayor Jeff Chaney 


 
 


1. Call to Order   
Judge Chambers called the CEO meeting to order at 10:09 am 


 
 


2. CEO Action Items  
a. Approval of the January 30th, 2019 Minutes  
 


Judge Roger Harmon made a motion to approve the minutes as amended to 
reflect that Judge Chris Hill was in attendance. Judge Todd Little seconded the 
motion.  


None opposed, and the minutes were approved unanimously. 


 


b. Nominate and Elect a Lead Chief Elected Official and an Alternate Lead Chief 
Elected Official 


 
Judge Alfonso Campos made a motion to elect Judge Ron Massingill as Lead 
CEO and to elect Judge Todd Little as Alternate Lead CEO. Judge Ron 
Massingill seconded the motion. None opposed, and the motion passed. 


  







 
 
 


North Central Texas Board Members and Chief Elected Officials Annual Meeting 2020 Page 2 
 
 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to 
individuals with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 


 


North Central Texas Workforce Development Board of Directors and Chief 
Elected Officials Meeting 


3. Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas Annual Report to the CEOs 
a. FY19 Annual Report Video 


David Setzer presented the Annual Report video to the board members 
and CEO’s. Commissioner Alvarez spoke to the board and thanked 
everyone for their hard work and dedication.   


b. FY19 Year End Financial Report – Randy Richardson 
Randy Richardson review the final 2019 expenditures in the Annual 
Report.  


c. Monitoring Report – Debra Kosarek 
Debra Kosarek gave a brief summary on the monitoring and oversight 
from our annual TWC review.  


d. FY19 Performance Report – Michael Nicholas 
Michael Nicholas gave a brief summary of the fiscal year 2019 final 
performance report. 


e. Membership Report – Cristina Medina 
Cristina Medina presented on the current standings of the board in the 
Membership Report.  
 


4. Adjourn  
 


Judge Roger Harmon made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Judge Todd Little 
seconded the motion.  


None opposed, and the meeting was adjourned at 10:15 a.m. 


 





		Meeting Minutes

		Judge Chambers called the CEO meeting to order at 10:09 am

		2. CEO Action Items












Contents
Chairman’s Letter ........................................................................................................ 2
From the Executive Director ..................................................................................... 3
Region Demographics ............................................................................................... 4
FY2020 Funding .......................................................................................................... 4
Performance ................................................................................................................ 5
By the Numbers .......................................................................................................... 5
Workforce Overview ................................................................................................... 6


Adapting
Pandemic Response .................................................................................................. 9


Serving
Serving Virtually ........................................................................................................10
Hiring Red, White & You! .......................................................................................... 13
Youth Initiatives .........................................................................................................14
Student HireAbility Navigators ............................................................................... 15
Employers and Economic Development Organizations .................................... 16
Registered Apprenticeships .................................................................................... 18
Adult Education Literacy ......................................................................................... 19
Championing Quality Child Care ............................................................................ 20
Professional Development Opportunities for Child Care Professionals ........ 21
Labor Market Information ....................................................................................... 22


Overcoming
Strengthening CTE – Comprehensive Local Needs Assessment ................... 24
JET Grants .................................................................................................................25
Skills Development Fund Grants ............................................................................ 26
Awards and Recognition ......................................................................................... 28


VISION
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is the recognized leader in building 
tomorrow’s workforce.


To advance business-driven solutions that promote economic growth, opportunity 
and a skilled workforce.


MISSION


VALUES


Inclusion
Leverage our collective genius.


Operate with integrity and respect. Courage to shape a better future.


We’re in this together.
We value diversity and believe inclusion drives 
innovation and connects us closer to the 
communities we serve. We are building a culture 
where difference is valued and respected.


We say what we mean, keep our promises and 
stay open minded to new ideas.


We lead by example because everyone has 
the ability to pursue excellence and make a 
positive impact. 


We create positive opportunities by collaborating 
with our partners to transform the social and 
economic vitality of those we serve.  


Community


Trust Leadership







• 2 • • 3 •2020 Annual Report 2020 Annual Report


From the Executive Director
This year was a stark reminder that there are some things you can’t prepare for; the best 
you can do is adapt, continue to serve and strive to overcome the obstacles in your path. 
That was our focus in fiscal year 2020: to effectively meet the needs of our customers 
while finding the best path forward during unprecedented times.


Internally, we developed an operational structure that provided stability and flexibility 
as we served our customers. We adapted our workflows, systems and processes to 
support a remote work environment, and we invested in additional technology and 
telecommunications infrastructure to make sure our staff had the tools they needed to 


be effective. We also surrounded our staff with an elevated level of health and wellness benefits to support 
them as they supported others.


Externally, we re-imagined our traditional way of providing service in order to protect the health and safety of 
our staff, customers and partners. We shifted from a face-to-face service delivery model to a virtual service 
and support system with multiple touchpoints to ensure we communicated with each customer in a way that 
was best for them. From providing child care services to first responders and essential workers, to helping 
the Texas Workforce Commission expand its capacity to respond to unemployment insurance claims, to 
serving thousands of career seekers through virtual workshops and events, we were determined to reach and 
help as many fellow North Central Texans as possible.


Collectively, we worked alongside our partners on programs and initiatives that resulted in much needed 
opportunities for North Central Texas residents to find employment, develop new skills, explore careers or 
further their education. Our collective efforts also brought more than $3.6 million in grant funding to our 
region that will strengthen our workforce and economy.


Although the pandemic cast a long shadow of hardship and loss, there were moments of achievement and 
celebration during the fiscal year as well.


An employer partner, Computer Crusher, was named one of three finalists statewide for the 2020 Texas 
Workforce Solutions Small Employer of the Year Award. For the 10th year in a row, Workforce Solutions for 
North Central Texas received the Achievement of Excellence in Procurement® Award from the National 
Procurement Institute. We broke ground on a new Denton Workforce Center that is scheduled to be 
completed in the Spring of 2021. And, for the first time in our organization’s history, we agreed to 
co-locate one of our workforce centers with a college. Weatherford College’s new Workforce and Emerging 
Technologies building, which is currently under construction, will be home to a new Workforce Solutions for 
North Central Texas Workforce Center that is expected to be completed in November 2021.


While the path ahead remains demanding, we are strengthened by the hard work and dedication of our 
staff, Board Members and partners. Together, we’ll adapt confidently to unexpected circumstances, serve our 
customers wholeheartedly and effectively, and overcome any challenge that lies ahead.


David K. Setzer, CPSM, C.P.M., CWE
Executive Director
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas


Chairman’s Letter
Board Officers


Committee Chairs


Board Members


Roger Harris
Chairman
Private Sector
Collin County


Bindu Adlakha
Public Employment 
Services, TWC
At-Large


Robert Hill
Private Sector
Collin County


Jason Gomez
Workforce Development Committee Chair
Education
Kaufman County


John Rattan
Private Sector
Collin County


David Bristol
Vice Chairman
Private Sector
Collin County


Meera Ananthaswamy
Private Sector
Collin County


Mike Hinojosa
Organized Sector
Denton County


Stefanie Wagoner
Economic Development
Collin County


Roselyn Lane
Private Sector
Hunt County


Rhodie Rawls
Community Based 
Organization
Ellis County


Gae Goodwin
Private Sector
Denton County


Anna Coker
Private Sector
Wise County


Lisa Huffaker
Community Based 
Organization
Palo Pinto County


Shea Hopkins
Private Sector
Hood County


Rolanda Macharia
Private Sector
Collin County


Carolton Tidwell
Oversight & Accountability Committee Chair
Private Sector
Kaufman County


Jacqueline Womble
Health and Human 
Services
At-Large


Dr. Elaine Zweig
Adult Basic Education/
Child Care
Collin County


Mickey Hillock
Past Chairman
Private Sector
Navarro County


Chip Evans
Literacy Council
Parker County


William King, Ph.D.
Education
Collin County


Leisa House
TWC - Vocational 
Rehabilitation Services
At-Large


Scott McCune
TWC - Vocational 
Rehabilitation Services
At-Large


Gary Henderson
Community Based 
Organization
Denton County


Aaron Thibault
Private Sector
Collin County


Ronald Simmons
Private Sector
Collin CountyJennifer Suguitan


Private Sector
Collin County


Kenny Weldon
Strategic Leadership Committee Chair
Community Based Organization
Erath County


It is said that adversity reveals one’s true 
character. I witnessed the way in which 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas 
leadership and staff responded to the 
unimaginable challenges of 2020, and I am very 
proud of what adversity revealed. 


The team rose to the occasion. They pivoted 
quickly to maintain the delivery of vital services 


to meet the workforce needs of our 14-county region, while 
implementing a remote working environment to ensure the staff’s 
– as well as our customers’ – safety and well-being. Despite the 
necessary physical distancing, more than 24,000 career seekers 
and more than 10,000 employers in North Central Texas were 
served through our programs during fiscal year 2020.  


The strong and collaborative relationships Workforce Solutions 
for North Central Texas forged with its educational, employer and 
economic development partners also bore fruit during adversity. 
The  community ecosystem came together in fiscal year 2020 to 
create and launch Registered Apprenticeship programs, form new 
alliances to expand access to Adult Education Literacy resources, 
strengthen career and technical education programs, and train 
early education professionals to increase the availability of quality 
child care in our region. All together, Workforce Solutions for North 
Central Texas and our partners brought more than $107 million 
into our region in fiscal year 2020.


In the midst of adapting to the unexpected, serving customers and 
overcoming challenges, the organization successfully submitted 
an award-level application and navigated a virtual site visit by 
Quality Texas Foundation examiners as part of the journey to 
obtain a prestigious Texas Award for Performance Excellence. 
While we do not yet know the outcome of these efforts, the 
performance excellence and continuous improvement work done 
over the years by leadership and staff laid a strong foundation for 
such a time as this. 


My fellow Board Members and I were honored to work shoulder-
to-shoulder with the team at Workforce Solutions for North Central 
Texas during this year of adversity. Looking forward, we are as 
energized as ever to make the North Central Texas region the ideal 
place for every resident to live, learn and work.


Roger Harris
Chairman
North Central Texas Workforce Development Board







• 4 • • 5 •2020 Annual Report 2020 Annual Report


By the Numbers


Region Demographics


FY2020 Funding


Performance


County Total Job Seeker 
Visits (6) 


Total Trained (7) Training Expenditures (7)


Collin & Rockwall 3,721 101 $560,287.58


Denton & Wise 1,552 83 $485,855.18


Ellis 1,799 29 $163,437.00


Erath 640 14 $59,726.47


Hood & Somervell 642 8 $39,131.33


Hunt 1,510 19 $99,918.50


Johnson 1,360 21 $105,194.97


Kaufman 1,202 23 $114,987.86


Navarro 1,712 36 $215,591.75


Palo Pinto & Parker 1,073 30 $94,757.07


Mobile Workforce Unit 795 N/A N/A


Total 16,006 364 $1,938,887.71


3,078,688 1,512,805
Population


Child Care  .....  $80.5 Million
Workforce .....  $20.9 Million
Other ..................  $2 Million


Employed


Year Population
2015 2,680,511


2016 2,762,180


2017 2,846,283


2018 2,912,774


2019 2,979,086


2020 3,078,688


Year Employed
2015 1,332,764


2016 1,395,381


2017 1,449,440


2018 1,485,765


2019 1,539,942


2020 1,512,805


Source: Emsi, 2020 Q3 Source: Texas Labor Market Information, Oct. 2020


(1) Data retrieved from TWC MPR, September 2020 Year End Report (Reporting Period: March 1, 2019 thru February 28, 2020)
(2) Data retrieved from TWC MPR, September 2020 Year End Report
(3) Data retrieved from TWC MPR High Profile Measures Report, September 2020 Year End Report (Reporting Period: October 1, 2019 thru September 30, 2020)
(4) Data retrieved from TWC MPR High Profile Measures Report, August 2020 Year End Report. (Reporting Period: October 1, 2019 thru August 31, 2020)
(5) TWIST Direct Child Care Expenditure Detail Report FY2020 


These are the number of participants completing training in WIOA Adult, WIOA Dislocated Worker, WIOA Youth, and Trade Adjustment Assistance programs along with 
corresponding expenditures and are unduplicated.
(6) This data came from the CSTR application which went up to April 24, 2020.  Greeter application data did not launch until October 2020.
(7) This Information comes from the Contractor’s WORCS software.


Children Served per Day (average) Employers Receiving Workforce 
Assistance


Claimants Gaining Reemployment 
within 10 weeks Young Adults Served


Career Seekers Receiving 
Intensive Services


Child Care Expenditures


7,257(1) 10,433(1)


54.76%(2)


23,955(4)


$56,862,133(5)


223(3)


Total
$103.4 Million







• 6 • • 7 •2020 Annual Report 2020 Annual Report


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas (WSNCT) leads the way 
in developing today’s workforce and anticipating the occupations 
and skills needed for tomorrow. We help our local economy thrive 
through our talent development strategies, workforce programs and 
network of partnerships in our 14-county region.


We oversee the operation of 12 Workforce Centers that serve our 
customers throughout North Central Texas. Our ecosystem of 
services and partnerships helps customers through every stage of 
their career journeys, whether they are searching for their first job, 
re-entering the workforce, considering a new career, or transitioning 
from military to civilian employment. Our Workforce Centers also 
provide subsidized child care services for eligible participants as 
well as services to businesses of all sizes.


Recognizing there are challenges that can hinder a prosperous 
workforce and economy, we also place great emphasis on these 
strategic priorities: 


• Forging strategic partnerships to create innovative solutions, build 
awareness of programs, share information, and better leverage 
public and private resources.


• Connecting youth and adults to in-demand jobs by broadening 
career exploration opportunities and equipping them with the 
skills and knowledge required for success in a rapidly changing 
and digitally driven economy.


• Improving the quality of childcare to increase school readiness 
and long-term education attainment, and support parents in their 
own learning and development to achieve 2-generation economic 
prosperity.


Our esteemed Board of Directors oversees the planning, oversight, 
policy guidance and design of services to ensure we fulfill our vision, 
mission and values.


Workforce Overview







• 8 • • 9 •2020 Annual Report 2020 Annual Report


Adapting


Virtual solutions 
for customer 


needs.


Pandemic Response
The onset of the Novel Coronavirus 2019 
(COVID-19) pandemic demanded that Workforce 
Solutions for North Central Texas (WSNCT) 
adapt quickly and aggressively to do our part in 
stemming the spread of the virus. We prioritized 
the safety of our staff, customers and partners; 
built a robust technology infrastructure to support 
virtual communications, customer service and 
events; and put specific protocols and processes 
in place that enabled us to be effective in the 
midst of adversity. 


In March 2020, we transitioned to a remote 
working environment, with all but essential 
personnel working from home. Staff throughout 
our 14-county region continued to communicate 
with and serve career seekers, employers, 
community partners, child care providers and child 
care parents virtually rather than in our physical 
Workforce Center locations. Flexible schedules 
and work arrangements were developed to 
meet the need of each WSNCT department and 
employee, and additional health and wellness 
services were made available to help staff balance 
work and personal needs. 


All staff were equipped with remote access to 
systems and servers, computers, cell phones 
and hot spots to provide a seamless transition 
to working remotely. A unified communications 
solution was used to enable staff to receive 
incoming calls to their work phone extension while 
working offsite, and calls to our Workforce Center 
locations were answered and forwarded to the 
appropriate person for direct customer assistance. 
We invested in virtual event software for hiring fairs 
and other events, and secured additional business 
collaboration and videoconferencing user licenses 
for internal meetings, training, customer one-on-
ones, workshops, program orientations and other 
necessary communication. To ensure customers 
received support when virtual service was not a 
viable option, a sanitary and contactless in-person 
appointment procedure was implemented.    


We increased the frequency and variety of 
communication with our audiences to keep them 
informed about how the pandemic was affecting our 
operations. We created a coronavirus information 


Adapting During Adversity
page on our website, distributed daily COVID-19 
updates, issued news announcements, leveraged 
social media platforms, produced videos, and sent 
emails and text messages. WSNCT spokespeople 
also participated in media interviews, webinars 
and community events to educate North Central 
Texas residents about how our services can help 
career seekers and employers affected by the 
pandemic.


As Unemployment Insurance (UI) claims 
skyrocketed, the Texas Workforce Commission 
(TWC) sought volunteers from among the TWC 
personnel who were assigned to local Workforce 
Boards. These volunteers were needed to assist 
people who were having difficulty accessing and 
registering in the UI system. WSNCT was the first 
to volunteer and worked with TWC to develop 
and implement a pilot program to provide these 
critical support services. More than 30 of our local 
TWC employees were deployed to assist with the 
extraordinarily high volume of UI requests, and 
our pilot became the model for other Boards 
across the state of Texas to follow as additional 
volunteers were incorporated into the program.







• 10 • • 11 •2020 Annual Report 2020 Annual Report


Serving Virtually
The record-breaking high unemployment rate brought 
on by COVID-19’s effect on businesses and the 
economy created an equally high demand for services 
from Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas. We 
were able to quickly shift how we operate to serve our 
customers safely and effectively due to prior planning.  


In July 2019, we formed a Virtual Services Project 
Team to explore how to best reach customers in rural 
communities who may not have reasonable access to one 
of our Workforce Centers. The team was also tasked with 
expanding access for customers who lack transportation 
or have other barriers to our services. We began a pilot 
program in December 2019 to offer services virtually to 
customers and accelerated the roll out of those services 
in January 2020. 


Two months later, the rapid spread of COVID-19 caused 
us to cancel our in-person meetings, workshops, 
conferences and other events out of care and concern for 
our customers. However, we moved forward aggressively 
with delivering virtual programs and assistance to meet 
the needs of those we serve. 


Our staff provided one-on-one customer support by phone 
and email as well as through safe and socially distanced 
visits to Workforce Centers by appointment only. Weekly 
workshops were provided via videoconferencing to 
hundreds of career seekers that increased their awareness 
of available job opportunities and better positioned them 
to gain employment.  


More than 1,200 customers participated in our Workforce 
Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) virtual orientations 
about services available to assist them in finding 
employment, furthering their education or skills training 
to earn a certification. Virtual training opportunities were 
also made available through the Metrix online learning 
platform provided through a partnership with the Texas 
Workforce Commission; 3,771 WSNCT customers took 
advantage of this free resource in FY20.  


Our virtual hiring events provided an easy-to-use and 
engaging way to digitally connect unemployed workers 
with employers who were hiring. In FY20, more than 
4,700 career seekers had the opportunity to chat or 
videoconference with employers and interview for 4,256 
job openings offered by hundreds of businesses across 
North Central Texas.


Serving







• 12 • • 13 •2020 Annual Report 2020 Annual Report


Hiring Red, White & You!
It is estimated that there are 1.7 million veterans in Texas, of which 967,000 
are working or actively seeking work. On November 7, 2019, we hosted two 
8th Annual Hiring Red, White & You! career fairs to support this highly qualified 
segment of our workforce. Our events were part of an annual statewide effort 
to connect veterans and their spouses with Texas employers that value the 
experience, discipline and other exceptional qualities inherent in a military 
background. 


The Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas events were held at the Allen 
Event Center and the Midlothian Conference Center to better serve our career 
seekers in our Northern and Southern regions. The 2019 Hiring Red, White & 
You! events resulted in a combined 919 career seekers, and 162 companies 
and resource agencies. Our community resource partners were also available 
onsite to assist career seekers one-on-one with resume writing, career coaching 
and translating military experience into language that is relevant to civilian 
employers.


Midlothian Conference Center
Total Attended 168


Total General Attended 120


Total Veteran Attended 48


Employers 45


Resource Agencies 6


Onsite Interviews 56


Allen Conference Center
Total Attended 751


Total General Attended 627


Total Veteran Attended 124


Employers 104


Resource Agencies 7


Onsite Interviews 102







• 14 • • 15 •2020 Annual Report 2020 Annual Report


Youth Initiatives


Youth Career Exploration
Career exploration is an essential step in equipping our residents with the skills and knowledge required 
for success in a rapidly changing and digitally driven economy. WSNCT, in partnership with the Region 11 
Education Service Center, hosted our annual iWork Youth Career Exploration Event in October 2019 for all 
Independent School Districts (ISDs) located within Region 11.  


The event provided a hands-on career exploration and educational opportunity to 712 students from 25 
ISDs. Participants engaged with interactive exhibits from 50 employers, colleges and military personnel, 
and more than 350 students took advantage of mock interview sessions where they received immediate 
feedback from workforce professionals. Participants also attended iChat sessions about relevant topics, 
including Social Media Do’s and Don’ts, and Digital Technology.


WIOA Youth Program
Our Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act Youth Program served 223 individuals in fiscal year 2020. One 
of our success stories is a participant in our public office initiative who was placed as an intern supporting 
Commissioner Dianne Edmondson PCT 4. The youth participant, who assisted the Commissioner’s Office 
with mapping new subdivisions, was hired in June 2020 after completing his internship.


Student HireAbility Navigators
Our Student HireAbility Navigators advocate on behalf of students with disabilities to support, expand 
and enhance pre-employment transition services that are provided through our partner, Texas Workforce 
Solutions Vocational Rehabilitation Services (TWSVRS). Navigators collaborate with employers, independent 
school districts (ISDs), colleges and community organizations to help them develop the right programs and 
processes to provide an inclusive work and educational environment for students with disabilities.  


In addition to helping several students gain paid work experience with Mabank ISD in Terrell, our Student 
HireAbility Navigators delivered 55 presentations in FY20 to increase awareness and educate people 
about resources available to students with disabilities. Presentations were given across our region to ISDs, 
Colleges, students and family members. Our HireAbility Navigators also presented during the Dyslexia 
Symposium, Partners Resource Network symposium, and the Charting the Course events hosted by 
Education Service Centers 10 and 11.







• 16 • • 17 •2020 Annual Report 2020 Annual Report


Collaborating with our employer and economic 
development partners is one of the most 
beneficial things we do for our communities and 
economy. During the pandemic, we continued 
to support these important partners virtually 
with services and solutions that addressed their 
current challenges and future opportunities.  


WSNCT delivered virtual services – including 
matching employers that needed to reduce 
their workforce with employers who needed to 
hire workers – to 1,726 employers during the 
pandemic, with a total of 4,355 in FY20. We 
continued to provide employers with labor market 
data to help them make informed workforce 
planning decisions as well as Subsidized Work 
Experience and On-The-Job Training benefits to 
help offset the costs of hiring and training new 
employees. Employers were also given several 
opportunities during the year to interact with 
thousands of skilled candidates through our 
virtual hiring events and career fairs.  


We also hosted special events for our 
employer, chamber of commerce and economic 
development corporation (EDC) partners in FY20 
to provide access to information and resources 
that would help them navigate through the 
COVID-19 environment. One such event, held in 
March 2020, was a live Virtual Town Hall Meeting 
and Q&A session with TWC Commissioner for 
Employers, Aaron Demerson, and The Small 
Business Administration. More than 300 people 
participated, and 104 of them were employers 
that had not previously engaged with our 
organization.   


In October 2019, WSNCT partnered with Governor 
Abbott’s Office, Bridgeport EDC and Chamber 
of Commerce, Decatur EDC and Chamber of 
Commerce, and Weatherford College to host 
the Wise County Business Workshop. This event 
brought together 100 aspiring entrepreneurs 


Employers 
and Economic 
Development 
Organizations


and employers looking to grow or relocate their 
businesses. Local and Federal agencies gave 
presentations and networked with attendees to 
educate them about available resources. David 
Setzer, WSNCT Executive Director, was a featured 
presenter and shared information about our 
programs and services. 


WSNCT and Wylie EDC partnered throughout 
the fiscal year to educate the community about 
the area’s robust manufacturing industry and 
to bring upskilling opportunities and resources 
to employers located there. We first partnered 
with Wylie EDC to solve a unique near-term 
workforce challenge faced by one of their 
manufacturers, SAF Holland. This opened the 
door for a strategic workforce discussion about 
the employer’s long-term training needs, which 


resulted in the development of a Registered 
Apprenticeship Program (read more about 
Registered Apprenticeships on page 18). WSNCT 
also partnered with Wylie EDC, Wylie Chamber 
of Commerce and Wylie ISD on Manufacturing 
Day, hosted in October 2019. The program for 
Manufacturing Day expanded into a month of 
activities, including student tours of Wylie’s 
manufacturing companies, employer networking 
events and a manufacturing business luncheon. 


This close partnership and collaboration with Wylie 
EDC has increased our employer engagement in the 
area notably, and in January 2020 we recognized 
Wylie EDC with our Economic Development 
Partner of the Year Award. We also nominated 
Wylie EDC for a Texas Economic Development 
Council (TEDC) Workforce Excellence Award, for 
which they received Merit Recognition.


Our strong, collaborative 
partnerships benefit our local 


economy and communities.







• 18 • • 19 •2020 Annual Report 2020 Annual Report


Finding workers with the right mix of experience and technical skill is always a challenge for employers. 
While the workforce skills gap is growing nationwide, one way we’re working to narrow it in North Central 
Texas is by collaborating with and connecting local businesses to the U.S. Department of Labor (DOL) 
Registered Apprenticeship (RA) program. 


Registered Apprenticeships help employers recruit and develop a highly skilled workforce while improving 
productivity and profitability. Workers receive paid on-the-job training and can earn an industry-recognized 
and nationally accepted credential or academic credit toward a college degree. In 2020, Workforce Solutions 
for North Central Texas was involved in the development of two new RA programs in our region to help 
sustain the productivity and vitality of our employer community.


In collaboration with Wylie Economic Development Corporation, we partnered with SAF Holland to develop 
a Tool & Die Maker and Maintenance Electrician RA program. As a member of the Bombardier Aviation 
Upskilling Committee, WSNCT worked with the company to develop an Aircraft Assembler RA program. 
Both RA programs are currently underway, training apprentice cohorts for the next phase of their careers. 


In recognition of our momentum in identifying and mobilizing Registered Apprenticeships in our region, 
WSNCT was awarded a $120,000 Texas Workforce Commission ApprenticeshipTexas Expansion Grant 
in September 2020. This grant will allow us to offset a portion of Bombardier’s Aircraft Assembler RA 
training costs as well as further educate North Central Texas communities about the value of Registered 
Apprenticeships.


Registered Apprenticeships


Adult Education Literacy


Adult Education Literacy (AEL) is crucial to the future of our economy. Statistics from Literacy Texas, a 
non-profit literacy coalition, indicate that nearly one million adults ages 25 and older in North Central Texas 
do not have a high school diploma or credentials, and more than 600,000 in our region have limited English 
proficiency. An increase of just one percent in literacy scores will lead to a 2.5 percent rise in Texas labor 
productivity.


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas offers AEL programs through Denton Independent School 
District (ISD), Grayson College, Navarro College, Paris Junior College and Weatherford ISD. These 
educational partners provide adult basic academic classes, such as High School Equivalency preparation 
and English as a Second Language, as well as job readiness skills programs to help position North Central 
Texas residents for success.


Since 2015, we have leveraged our workforce expertise and connections through participation in The Adult 
Education & Literacy/North Central Texas Workforce Regional Coalition (AEL/Workforce Regional Coalition). 
The AEL/Workforce Regional Coalition promotes integration, cooperation and collaboration between AEL 
providers and Workforce Center staff to ensure the consistent delivery of services across all systems.


Working with Texas Workforce Commission Vocational Rehabilitation Services, we increased the reach 
and impact of our collective AEL efforts in 2020 by facilitating a memorandum of understanding (MOU) 
between Goodwill Industries and our Denton ISD AEL Provider. The MOU paved the way for Denton ISD to 
offer AEL classes at the Denton Goodwill location to accommodate more students and make AEL programs 
more accessible to area residents.







• 20 • • 21 •2020 Annual Report 2020 Annual Report


Championing 
Quality Child 
Care
Selecting an early childhood setting is one of the 
most important decisions a parent or caregiver 
can make. Research studies have shown that 
children who attend higher quality child care 
programs are more prepared for school than 
children who do not. WSNCT believes that high-
quality child care leads not only to greater school 
readiness, but long-term educational attainment 
and increased economic prosperity as well.


As part of our initiative to promote quality child 
care practices, we produced two videos in FY20 
about quality child care. The first video educates 
parents on what to look for in a quality child care 
program and the second video, targeting child 
care providers, touts the benefits of becoming a 
certified Texas Rising Star (TRS) provider. Texas 
Rising Star is the State of Texas’ quality rating 
improvement system for child care providers who 
are contracted with local Workforce Development 
boards to accept children in the Child Care 
Subsidy program.


WSNCT has a team of Early Childhood 
Specialists who provide one-on-one mentoring 
support for aspiring and existing TRS child 
care providers. In FY20, this team provided 
virtual mentoring to more than 100 TRS 
providers in our region. Our mentors brought 
new providers into the TRS program virtually, 
assessing child care centers and classroom 
environments using business communications 
and videoconferencing platforms. We also held 
two virtual Lunch & Learn events and provided 
additional training opportunities for TRS child 
care providers.


In May 2020, WSNCT hosted a webinar introducing 
Texas Child Care Tools with Child Care Associates 
to our TRS child care providers. This resource site 
provides a pathway to quality child care practices 
and provides tools to strengthen business 
operations. To date, 40 TRS child care providers 
have been given access to this platform.


Professional Development 
Opportunities for Child Care 
Professionals
WSNCT facilitated professional development, education advancement and credential training opportunities 
to child care providers as a part of its initiative to promote quality child care practices. In FY20:


• 41 child care professionals graduated from the 120-hour Child Development Associate (CDA) 
Preparation course. Five received their CDA credential by September 2020.  We also awarded 
stipends to 20 individuals who received their CDA Credential from CDA classes held in 2019  


• 25 child care professionals were awarded Early Childhood Management Institute Administrators 
Credentials 


• 14 students, who were employed at TRS facilities, were awarded scholarships to take classes in early 
childhood education and child development at colleges or universities  


• 13 trainings were offered throughout the region and more than 200 early childhood professionals 
benefited from quality trainings in early childhood education and child development  


• 22 scholarships were awarded to early childhood professionals to attend two national conferences: 
Frog Street Splash Early Childhood Conference and the Zero To Three Annual Conference 


 


Due to COVID-19, child care programs have experienced low enrollment, economic hardships, severe staff 
turnover and increased costs associated with maintaining health and safety standards. WSNCT provided 
more than $275,000 in stipends in FY20 to child care programs that had an active agreement with us, 
providing relief to these business owners and educational programs during the pandemic. Funding was 
allocated to support and purchase the following items:


• Additional cleaning supplies, PPE, hand hygiene stations and temporary partitions  


• Extra supplies and learning materials, outdoor environment materials and equipment  


• Daytime security systems (cameras and keyless entry points) 


• Curriculum  


• Teacher stipends to incentivize teacher continuity


Promoting quality child care 
for generational prosperity 


and possibilities.







• 22 • • 23 •2020 Annual Report 2020 Annual Report


Labor Market Information
In FY20, WSNCT answered 150 requests from employers, economic developers and educators with timely 
labor market information (LMI) and socioeconomic data.  


The data we delivered to employers strengthened their retention and recruitment efforts, helped them meet 
market compensation through wage assessments, and provided insights on the labor availability in their 
industry. We also assisted our economic development organization (EDO) partners’ work to attract new 
businesses and jobs to our region. WSNCT was involved in 25 site selection projects with EDOs, researching 
and presenting data at various community engagements to showcase our workforce.    


LMI remained a priority for our educational partners in FY20, as they have an urgent need to stay 
knowledgeable about in-demand and high-wage careers. Our support for our educational partners reinforced 
their grant applications to fund technical training and guided them to areas that translated into high-return 
opportunities for their students. We presented LMI information at various professional development 
conferences as well as during one-on-one meetings with Career and Technical Education leaders within 
Community Colleges and Technical Colleges, and Independent School Districts.


Data Request Type Number Action


WSNCT 38
Informed grant opportunities, talking points for 
presentations, and informed other decisions within 
WSNCT and other NCTCOG divisions


Employers 31
Reports answered questions about talent availability for 
key positions and offered wage assessments to help 
employers meet market wages to attract and retain talent


Economic Development 
Organizations 50


Data supported their efforts to bring in employers to our 
region, informed their internal strategic projects, and 
allowed them to share data with stakeholders 


Local Government 7 Aided their strategic planning and to share workforce data 
with stakeholders 


Education 24


Supported grant application, informed the expansion, 
revision, and creation of programs, and professional 
development for staff who work with students on career 
exploration 







• 24 • • 25 •2020 Annual Report 2020 Annual Report


Overcoming


Strengthening Career and 
Technical Education
The Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act, known as the “Perkins V” 
legislation, was signed into law in 2018. Prior to receiving a Perkins V grant, local communities must 
develop and submit a Comprehensive Local Needs Assessment (CLNA) that addresses how the funding 
will support Career and Technical Education (CTE) programs and assist special populations students.


During the summer of 2020, we supported 12 Independent School District and Community College partners 
during their intensive CLNA application processes. WSNCT staff researched and provided labor market data, 
created and delivered presentations to workgroups, shared workforce expertise at virtual meetings and 
assisted in the completion of grant applications. Through the hard work of all organizations involved, more 
than $2.1 million was awarded to educational partners in our region to develop more fully the academic, 
technical and employability skills of students who elect to enroll in CTE programs.


JET Grants
During the summer of 2019, WSNCT piloted two Jobs and Education for Texans (JET) Workshops to 
increase the number of JET applicants in our area. In August 2020, four workshop participants were 
awarded JET grants, bringing a total of $591,306 into the North Central Texas Region. We held a virtual JET 
grant workshop in September of 2020 with the Texas Workforce Commission, where participants gained 
insight from recent JET grant recipients about their experience applying for the grant, tips on submitting 
a high-quality application, and how receiving the funding has impacted their CTE programs and facilities.


JET Awardee Program Partner Amount Awarded


Rockwall ISD Dental Program Collin College $130,399.00 


Cleburne ISD Bus/Diesel Mech/Tech Hill College $90,388.00


Boles ISD Agriculture / Welding Paris Jr. College $70,519.00


Community ISD Construction Management TVCC $300,000.00







• 26 • • 27 •2020 Annual Report 2020 Annual Report


Skills Development Fund Grants


The North Central Texas region continued to benefit from the Skills Development Fund (SDF) Program in 
FY20.  We identified new employers to engage in the SDF process with our community colleges, while our 
community college partners continued to gain the training capacity to meet the needs of local industry. 
Many of our employer partners participated in multiple SDF grants this past year, demonstrating the 
collaborative and sustainable partnerships between our educational providers and industries. In FY20, our 
colleges were awarded $924,079 in SDF grants to serve our employer community.


Skills Development Fund Grant Awards 
FY 2020


Collin College


Business Partner(s) Grant Award No. of New Workers No. of Existing Workers


Amphenol Fiber Systems; 
Broach Bilt Mfg; Blount Fine 
Foods; Emerson Process Mgmt 
Technologies; Hisun Motor Corp 
USA, Sanden International


$736,422 37 386


Total: $736,422


North Central Texas College


Business Partner Grant Award No. of New Workers No. of Existing Workers


Mary Kay, Inc. $187,657 80 82


Total: $187,657


Total SDF Dollars Awarded in FY20: $924,079 
Number of New Workers Trained: 117 
Number of Existing Workers Trained: 468







• 28 • • 29 •2020 Annual Report 2020 Annual Report


Awards and Recognition
Achievement of Excellence in Procurement® Award


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas 
Award of Excellence


Texas Workforce Commission
Small Employer of the Year Award


Roger Harris TAWB Appointment


For the 10th year in a row, Workforce Solutions for North Central 
Texas received the Achievement of Excellence in Procurement® 
Award from the National Procurement Institute. The AEP Award 
is earned by public and non-profit agencies that demonstrate a 
commitment to procurement excellence. This annual program 
recognizes procurement organizations that embrace Innovation, 
Professionalism, Productivity, Leadership and e-Procurement.


The Texas Workforce Commission Small Employer of the Year Award honors 
a small, private-sector employer whose efforts and initiatives have had an 
extraordinary effect on the state of Texas. Our employer partner, Computer 
Crusher Recycling Company, was named one of three finalists statewide for 
the 2020 Texas Workforce Commission Small Employer of the Year Award.


A continuous outstanding business and community partner, Computer 
Crusher partners with us to fulfill their workforce needs and continuously 
seeks opportunities to participate in our special initiatives. The company has 
contributed to the workforce system by utilizing the Subsidized Work Experience 
and the On-the-job training programs, providing internship opportunities for our 
Summer Earn and Learn initiative, hiring Vocational Rehabilitation Services 
participants and mentoring Youth Program participants. Despite COVID-19 
negatively affecting their business by nearly 50%, Computer Crusher continued 
to pay employee wages, mitigating potential unemployment claims of at least 
five employees.


Large Employer of the Year


We honored Bombardier Aviation as the Workforce Solutions 
for North Central Texas (WSNCT) Large Employer of the 
Year. Since arriving in Red Oak, Bombardier has placed great 
emphasis on creating workforce opportunities and diversifying 
their candidate outreach.  A regular participant in hiring events, 
Bombardier is committed to supporting the local community and 
furthering the education and awareness of the aviation industry. 
Partnering closely with WSNCT, city officials and educational 
institutions has allowed them to further their mission to develop 
a comprehensive workforce strategy and create opportunities 
for local career seekers. Bombardier is also committed to 
self-funding a variety of workforce opportunities to new and 
current employees.


Local Employer of Excellence


Navarro Regional Hospital (NRH) was named our Local Employer 
of Excellence for fiscal year 2020. As the county’s regional 
health care provider, NRH is invested in the local workforce and 
supportive of their community. The organization participates 
in career exploration and development programs including On-
the-Job Training, Subsidized Work Experience opportunities 
and college externships. NRH also supports several initiatives 
such as United Way fundraising, car and bike safety, health fairs, 
teen volunteer programs, and Navarro College scholarships. 
The hospital is also active in the United Christian Foundation, 
which provides internet service, support and food to college 
students year-round.


Economic Development Partner of the Year


We selected the Denton Economic Development Partnership 
(EDP) as our Economic Development Partner of the Year. When 
the pandemic hit, the Denton EDP immediately assisted the 
community by providing information and securing financial 
resources. They helped establish an Entrepreneurship Economic 
Development Grant, and the initial grant recipients are projected 
to add more than 150 jobs in the City of Denton. The Denton 
EDP is also developing an inclusion plan to increase outreach to 
women and minority-owned businesses. The Denton EDP works 
with Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas, community 
partners and educational partners to ensure that all entities 
are working together in creating and expanding business 
opportunities for the community.


The Chairman of our North Central Texas Workforce Development Board, Roger 
Harris, has served our region faithfully and effectively since 2009. It comes as 
no surprise to us that Mr. Harris was nominated and unanimously approved as 
Chair of the Texas Association of Workforce Boards (TAWB) in August 2020. 
TAWB represents the 28 local workforce development boards in Texas and 
the more than 700 business and community leaders across Texas who serve 
as volunteers on those boards. TAWB’s goal is to ensure a highly skilled, well-
trained talent supply for Texas employers and an employer-driven workforce 
system.


Mr. Harris will serve a two-year term as Chair of TAWB, effective September 1, 
2020, and will also retain his role as Chair of our Workforce Development Board.







• 30 •2020 Annual Report


Educational Partner of the Year


Navarro College was honored with our Educational Partner 
of the Year Award. As a recipient of the Department of 
Labor Apprenticeship grant, they created a strong career 
pathway for students to gain credentials and employment 
in high-demand medical occupations. Navarro College 
launched the Google IT Certification Program to prepare 
students for future roles in IT, and the first cohort is 
participating in the program at no cost. They also partnered 
with 20 Independent School Districts in our region on dual 
credit programs, providing students the opportunity to get 
a jump start on their college education or career while in 
high school. Navarro College is vital to our North Central 
Texas region and shows strong leadership, commitment 
and care for the needs of their students.


Child Care Provider of the Year


The Little Elm ISD Childcare Program at Herchel Zellers 
Center was named our Child Care Provider of the Year 
for fiscal year 2020. The LEISD Childcare Program is 
committed to the advancement of childhood education, 
and it shows in the classroom. Led by Director Lisa 
Hooten, this provider created a safe, engaging and 
fun environment for the staff and each child. As an 
outstanding role model for the Texas Rising Star program 
and the National Accreditation Commission, Hooten 
mentors and shares advice with other TRS providers 
on center operations, curriculum, training, classroom 
challenges, parent education, staff development and the 
TRS accreditation process. The LEISD team is focused on 
professional development and attend trainings annually, 
even during the pandemic. Through our program, several 
staff at LEISD attained Child Development Associate 
credentials and scholarships towards their degree.


Community Investment Partner of the Year


Goodwill Industries of Fort Worth was named our 
Community Investment Partner of the Year. Our 
partnership with Goodwill allows us to collaborate to 
enhance the education and employment opportunities 
for individuals in our service area. Goodwill provides 
similar services provided by WSNCT, such as Job Search 
Techniques, Job Leads and Placement, Resume Writing 
and Interview Skills. Adapting to the hardships of the year, 
they enhanced their virtual platform to serve an additional 
six counties in addition to on-site services in Denton and 
Weatherford. Our mutual efforts helped increase services 
in 8 of the 14 counties we serve.


NAVARRO


ELLIS


KAUFMAN


ROCKWALL


HUNTCOLLINDENTONWISE


PARKER
PALO PINTO


ERATH HOOD


SOMERVELL


JOHNSON







This workforce product was funded by a grant awarded by the U.S. Department 
of Labor’s Employment and Training Administration. The product was created 


by the recipient and does not necessarily reflect the official position of the U.S. 
Department of Labor. The Department of Labor makes no guarantees, warranties, 
or assurances of any kind, express or implied, with respect to such information, 


including any information on linked sites and including, but not limited to, 
accuracy of the information or its completeness, timeliness, usefulness, 


adequacy, continued availability, or ownership. This product is copyrighted by the 
institution that created it.


 Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/
program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals 
with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 


1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com.


P.O. Box 5888
Arlington, TX 76005-5888
Phone (817) 695 - 9184


Fax (817) 640 - 6480


www.dfwjobs.com





		Chairman’s Letter

		From the Executive Director

		Region Demographics

		FY2020 Funding

		Performance

		By the Numbers

		Workforce Overview



		Adapting

		Pandemic Response



		Serving

		Serving Virtually

		Hiring Red, White & You!

		Youth Initiatives

		Student HireAbility Navigators

		Employers and Economic Development Organizations

		Registered Apprenticeships

		Adult Education Literacy

		Championing Quality Child Care

		Professional Development Opportunities for Child Care Professionals

		Labor Market Information



		Overcoming

		Strengthening CTE – Comprehensive Local Needs Assessment

		JET Grants

		Skills Development Fund Grants

		Awards and Recognition








2019-2020 At-A-Glance
North Central Texas Super Sectors
by Employment


Financial Investment
in the Region


TOP 10
EMPLOYERS
Nokia
Plano


SRS Distribution Inc
McKinney


Denton Independent 
School District
Denton


HP Enterprise Services LLC
Plano


Frito Lay Inc
Plano


Medical City Plano
Plano


Preston Ridge Campus of 
Collin College
Frisco


Texas Health Presbyterian 
Hospital Plano
Plano


Fujitsu Network Comms 
Richardson


Wise Regional
Health System
Decatur


Source: Emsi 2020 Q4


Source: JobsEQ® Q2
*Chart percentages do not sum to 100% due to rounding


Sources: (1) Emsi 2020 Q3 • (2) Texas Labor Market Information Oct. 2020 • (3) TEA • (4) U.S. Department of Education


CHILD CARE $80.5 MILLION TOTAL
$103.4 MILLION


OTHER $2 MILLION


WORKFORCE $20.9 MILLION


10,986
Square Miles(1)


3MM
Residents(1)


1.6MM
Labor Force(2)


102
School Districts(3)


13
Public Colleges
& Universities(4)


Facts You Need to Know


20%


22%
11%


8%


7%


7%


2%


2%


0.1%


5%
14%


Trade,
Transportation,


& Utilities


Education &
Health Services


Leisure &
Hospitality


Manufacturing


Information


Unclassified


Natural
Resources


& Mining


Professional &
Business ServicesConstruction


Other Services


Financial
Activities


2% Public Administration







DFWJOBS.COM


(1) Data retrieved from TWC MPR, September 2020 
Year End Report (Reporting Period: March 1, 2019 
thru February 28, 2020)
(2) Data retrieved from TWC MPR, September 2020 
Year End Report
(3) Data retrieved from TWC MPR High Profile 
Measures Report, September 2020 Year End Report 
(Reporting Period: October 1, 2019 thru September 
30, 2020)
(4) Data retrieved from TWC MPR High Profile 
Measures Report, August 2020 Year End Report. 
(Reporting Period: October 1, 2019 thru August 31, 
2020).


P.O. Box 5888
Arlington, TX 76005-5888
1-817-695-9184
workforce@dfwjobs.com


7,257(1)


CHILDREN SERVED
PER DAY (AVERAGE)


54.76%(2)


CLAIMANTS GAINING
REEMPLOYMENT
WITHIN 10 WEEKS


10,433(1)


EMPLOYERS
RECEIVING
WORKFORCE
ASSISTANCE


23,955(4)


CAREER SEEKERS
RECEIVED INTENSIVE
SERVICES


223(3)


YOUNG ADULTS
SERVED


County Total Job
Seeker Visits(5)


Total
Trained(6)


Training
Expenditures(6)


Collin & Rockwall 3,721 101 $560,287.58


Denton & Wise 1,552 83 $485,855.18


Ellis 1,799 29 $163,437.00


Erath 640 14 $59,726.47


Hood & Somervell 642 8 $39,131.33


Hunt 1,510 19 $99,918.50


Johnson 1,360 21 $105,194.97


Kaufman 1,202 23 $114,987.86


Navarro 1,712 36 $215,591.75


Palo Pinto & Parker 1,073 30 $94,757.07


Mobile Workforce Unit 795 N/A N/A


Total 16,006 364 $1,938,887.71
These are the number of participants completing training in WIOA Adult, WIOA Dislocated Worker, WIOA Youth, and Trade Adjustment Assistance 
programs along with corresponding expenditures and are unduplicated.
(5) This data came from the CSTR application which went up to April 24, 2020.  Greeter application data did not launch until October 2020.
(6) This Information comes from the Contractor’s WORCS software.


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to 
individuals with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com.


pop. 1,057,032pop. 905,947


pop. 187,427pop. 177,083


pop. 144,669


pop. 135,453


pop. 106,432


pop. 9,202


pop. 99,261pop. 70,634


pop. 63,006


pop. 50,021


pop. 43,329


pop. 29,191


Source: Emsi 2020 Q3


Our Counties








Workforce Financial Report


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program.


Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. For the


hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. Workforce Solutions for


North Central Texas services are provided based on eligibility.


February 24, 2021 | Presented By: Randy Richardson







Budget Year


• Budget Year is October 1st, 2019 through 


September 30th, 2020


Approved Budget


• Approved Budget is $14,201,450


Expenditures


• Behind final year end targets by 4.5% or 


$634,000


Workforce Board, Staff
& Centralized Functions







Budget Costs


• Personnel Costs Budgeted                                   


(salaries, fringe and indirect) - $7,454,144


Expenditures


• Behind year end targets by 6.8% or $508,000


Staff Update







Date Date Total Months


Position Vacant Filled
Vacant Through 
September 2020 


Sr. Database Specialist 10\1\19 1\20\20 3.7


Early Childhood Specialist 10\1\19 1\6\20 3.2


Early Childhood Specialist 10\1\19 1\13\20 3.5


Early Childhood Specialist (2) 10\1\19 4\06\20 12.5


Sr. Early Childhood Specialist 1\3\20 Unfilled 9.0


Business Development Liaison 6\15\20 Unfilled 3.6


Business Development Liaison 6\18\20 Unfilled 3.5


Sr. Quality Assurance Specialist 12\31\19 6\01\20 5.1


Total 44.1


Staff Update (cont’d)







Additional Factors that Contribute to 


Lower than Anticipated Personnel 


Expenditures:


• NCTCOG Fiscal Monitors - Approximately 


17.4% behind year end targets


• A portion of the unspent funds for Early 


Childhood Specialists were used for furniture 


and supplies for the new child care staff 


facilities within NCTCOG headquarters. 


Staff Update (cont’d)







Budget-$489,360


• Overnight


• Non-overnight


• Staff development


Expenditures


• Behind year end targets by 68.4% or $334,000


• Due to COVID-19 pandemic, NCTCOG travel 


has been suspended until further notice.


Travel / Staff Development







Budget-$229,165


Provides the following to selected child care


centers:
• Professional development training


• Equipment


• Materials


Expenditures


• Over year end targets by 275.5% or $402,000


• Additional $400,000 funds available:


̶ FY 2019 carry over


̶ Savings within the personnel and travel 


budget categories


Child Care Quality Improvement







Expenditures


• Utilized additional funds to provide stipends 


to selected child care centers:


̶ PPE


̶ Cleaning supplies


̶ Learning materials


̶ Security systems


̶ Curriculum


̶ Teacher bonuses


Child Care Quality Improvement (cont’d)







Budget-$2,114,430


Workforce Center Infrastructure


Expenditures


• Behind end of year targets by 5.3% or $113,000


• Due to utilities, telephone, postage, and 


maintenance costs totaling less than anticipated


• Rent


• Utilities


• Copier


• Janitorial/Maintenance


• Postage


• Telephone


• Security







Leasehold Improvements


• Budget $150,000


• McKinney relocation to new facility 


completed


Special Projects Update







Contract Year is October 1, 2019 – September 30, 2020


Contract Amount is $82.7 million


Expenditures are behind end of year targets by 11.1% or $9.2 million


• Child Care (Direct Care and Local Match)


̶ Normal Child Care At-risk expenditures are 1.4% or $675,000 behind target amounts.


̶ Carry over available for FY 2021 totals $3.3 million


̶ TWC average kids served per day target totals 7,337 and actual enrollment totaled 


7,257 (98.9% of target)


̶ An additional $20.1 million of child care funds have been received from TWC for 


COVID-19 related expenditures:


▪ Serve additional children of essential workers


▪ Pay for parent share of costs 


▪ Pay a 25% supplement to all child care providers remaining open


▪ As of September 2020, $9.9 million has been expended ($6.2 million behind target)


Workforce Center Subrecipient







Workforce Center Contractor


WIOA


• Expenditures are behind end of year targets 


by 17.9% or $1.6 million


• Carry over available for FY 2021 totals $2.6 


million


• The COVID-19 pandemic situation slowed the 


rate of expenditures during FY 2020 primarily 


due to the closing of colleges and vocational 


schools


• Most colleges have begun to offer virtual 


training opportunities at this time







Questions?


This workforce product was funded by a grant awarded by the U.S. Department of Labor’s Employment and Training


Administration. The product was created by the recipient and does not necessarily reflect the official position of the U.S.


Department of Labor. The Department of Labor makes no guarantees, warranties, or assurances of any kind, express


or implied, with respect to such information, including any information on linked sites and including, but not limited to,


accuracy of the information or its completeness, timeliness, usefulness, adequacy, continued availability, or ownership.


This product is copyrighted by the institution that created it.








Our Risk-Based Approach:


Programmatic and Fiscal monitoring oversight:


• Collaborative to provide comprehensive risk 


management from a fiscal and programmatic 


perspective


• The NCTCOG  monitoring function is “certified” 


by the Texas Workforce Commission, which 


means they place strong reliance on the 


integrity of our work and consider the funds 


managed by the NCTCOG to be of lower risk 


• Monitoring was recertified by TWC in January 


2021. 


Monitoring and Oversight







Programmatic Monitoring


• All programs were monitored in 2020 along 


with other contractual requirements such as 


EO, ADA and PII compliance


• Subrecipient (Equus, formerly ResCare) data 


integrity and case management continues to 


be an issue


Fiscal Monitoring


• Numerous reviews performed on Equus, 


including analysis and testing of substantive 


items


• NCTCOG found excellent fiscal results while 


reviewing Equus with only minor 


observations, which were addressed 


immediately


Monitoring and Oversight (cont’d)







TWC Annual Comprehensive Monitoring 


2020:


• TWC noted one Programmatic Finding for 


Equus data entry/integrity errors in the SNAP 


Program. TWC had no Findings on NCTCOG 


management and oversight fiscally or 


programmatically.


• NCTOCG has maintained a higher level of 


review of Equus data entry/data integrity for 


the SNAP Program.


• While TWC has closed out the Finding and 


considers it resolved, NCTCOG remains 


diligent in reviewing the program to ensure 


data integrity success.


Monitoring and Oversight (cont’d)







TWC Annual Comprehensive Monitoring 


2021:


• TWC had no Findings for Equus or NCTCOG  


but did cite some areas to address:


̶ COVID -19 Disbursement – One Provider 


received payments that had to be recouped 


($1,089.56) 


̶ Automation System Terminations for the   


TWC TWIST Automation System


̶ Child Care Referrals (for DFPS) were not       


all case managed and entered into TWIST 


System within 5 days


̶ Child Care Fraud Fact Finding Automation 


System needing to add journal entries when 


the case required more than 90 days to 


review


Monitoring and Oversight (cont’d)







TWC Annual Comprehensive Monitoring 


2021:


• TWC had no Findings on NCTCOG 


management and oversight fiscally or 


programmatically.


• TWC “traced” all monitoring performed by 


fiscal and programmatic monitoring staff in 


2020, as well as reviewed processes and 


procedures.  


• This tracing and review resulted in staff and 


function recertification for three years.


Monitoring and Oversight (cont’d)








  


 


 


February 4, 2021 


 


 


 


Mr. David Setzer, Executive Director 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas 


P.O. Box 5888 


Arlington, Texas 76005      


         Audit Resolution Report 


 


Dear Mr. Setzer: 


 


This letter is in regard to a finding identified in the Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) 


Monitoring Report #20.04.0001. This report included a review of the Supplemental Nutrition 


Assistance Program Employment and Training (SNAP E&T) program administered by Workforce 


Solutions for North Central Texas (Board). This monitoring report identified the following finding 


that was referred to Audit Resolution for final disposition as outlined below: 


 


Finding:   Ensure Form H1822 is Submitted Within the Required Timeframe and 


Reconsideration Requests are Recorded into TWIST Good Cause Tab 


The Board did not ensure the Service Provider consistently sent Form H1822 


ABAWD E&T Work Requirement Verification to HHSC within two weeks of 


ABAWD's initial participation in SNAP E&T activities. In five of eight applicable 


case files tested (63 percent), documentation in the case file indicated that the form 


was submitted between three and 18 days late, or not submitted.  Also, two of eight 


(25 percent) reconsideration requests were not entered into TWIST under the Good 


Cause tab. 


Without strict adherence to SNAP directives, there is limited assurance that federal 


and state funds are expended in accordance with legislative requirements. 


 


Corrective Actions Taken: 


 


The Board has proper controls in place to ensure SNAP E&T program requirements 


are met. This includes but not limited to ongoing monthly compliance monitoring to 


ensure any issues identified are addressed and corrected promptly by the Service 


Provider.  To ensure ongoing compliance, a plan was developed by the Service 


Provider which includes: best practice requirements for Talent Development 


Specialists (TDS) to ensure Form H1822 is submitted timely and reconsideration 


requests are entered correctly; weekly reports of active cases and supervisor 


validating TWIST entries.  In addition, the Board provided most recent monitoring of 


this area with acceptable error rates for the weaknesses identified.  Lastly, the Board 


 


Bryan Daniel, Chairman 


Commissioner Representing 


the Public 


 


Julian Alvarez 
Commissioner Representing 


Labor 


 


Aaron Demerson 
Commissioner Representing 


Employers 


 


Edward Serna 
Executive Director 


101 E. 15th Street • Austin, Texas 78778-0001 • (512) 463-2222 • Relay Texas: 800-735-2989 (TDD) 800-735-2988 (Voice) • www.texasworkforce.org 


Equal Opportunity Employer / Program 


Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities 







 


 


Mr. Setzer  


Page 2 


February 4, 2021 


 


 


provided agendas and sign-in sheets for several training sessions conducted via Zoom 


from August 2020 through November 2020, for SNAP E&T.  The corrective actions 


taken are sufficient to resolve this finding.   


 


The corrective actions taken adequately resolves the finding and the TWC Monitoring Report 


#20.04.0001 is closed.  We encourage the Board to continue its efforts in adhering to federal and 


state requirements and guidelines to ensure compliance with the SNAP E&T program.  Thank you 


for your assistance on this matter.  If you have any questions, please contact Judy Ohn at  


(512) 936-3040, or judy.ohn@twc.state.tx.us  


 


 


Sincerely, 
  


Judy Ohn for Charles E. Ross 
Charles E. Ross, Jr., Deputy Director 


Regulatory Integrity Division 



mailto:judy.ohn@twc.state.tx.us






BCY20 Year End- September 2020 
Monthly Performance Report (MPR) Overview


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program.
Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. For the
hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. Workforce Solutions for
North Central Texas services are provided based on eligibility.







BCY20 Year End – September 2020 
Monthly Performance Report (MPR)


“Meeting Performance (MP)” or “Positive Performance (+P)” within 16 of 17
formally contracted performance measures for which we have all available data:


Performance Status # of Measures


Positive Performance (+P) 3


Meeting Performance (MP) 13


Negative Performance (‐P) 1 







REEMPLOYMENT & EMPLOYER ENGAGEMENT MEASURES


PERFORMANCE MEASURES TARGET CURRENT 
PERFORMANCE


PERCENTAGE OF 
CURRENT TARGET


NUMERATOR     
(Successful Outcomes)


DENOMINATOR  
(Population)


PERFORMANCE 
STATUS


PERFORMANCE 
CHANGE FROM 


PREVIOUS MONTH


Claimants Reemployed within 
10 Weeks (1) 57.34% (4) 54.76% 95.50% 16,255 29,682 MP N/A


# of Employers Receiving 
Workforce Assistance (2) 11,017 (3) 10,433 94.70% 10,433 ‐ ‐P N/A


BCY20 Year End – September 2020 
Monthly Performance Report (MPR)


(1) Reset the performance year from “07/19 to 06/20” to “12/18 to 11/19”. 
(2) Reset the performance year from “10/19 to 09/20” to “03/19 to 02/20”. 
(3) COVID adjusted blended target is 11,017.  Original Target was 9,305 
(4) COVID adjusted blended target is 57.34%.  Original Target was 57.90%







PROGRAM PARTICIPATION MEASURES


PERFORMANCE MEASURES TARGET CURRENT 
PERFORMANCE


PERCENTAGE OF 
CURRENT TARGET


NUMERATOR        
(Successful Outcomes)


DENOMINATOR     
(Population)


PERFORMANCE 
STATUS


PERFORMANCE 
CHANGE FROM 


PREVIOUS MONTH


Choices Full Work Rate –
All Family Total (1) 54.29% (2) 53.49% 98.53% 67 126 MP N/A


Avg # Children Served Per Day 
– (Combined) (3) 7,337 (4) 7,257 98.91% 1,894,056 261 MP ‐33


BCY20 Year End – September 2020 
Monthly Performance Report (MPR)


(1),(3) Reset the performance year from “10/19 to 09/20” to “03/19 to 02/20”. 
(2) COVID adjusted blended target is 54.29%.  Original Target was 50.00% 
(4) COVID adjusted blended target is 7,337.  Original Target was 7,633 







WIOA OUTCOME MEASURES


PERFORMANCE MEASURES TARGET CURRENT 
PERFORMANCE


PERCENTAGE OF 
CURRENT TARGET


NUMERATOR       
(Successful Outcomes)


DENOMINATOR   
(Population)


PERFORMANCE 
STATUS


PERFORMANCE 
CHANGE FROM 


PREVIOUS MONTH


Employed/Enrolled Q2 Post Exit –
C&T Participants 69.00% 67.14% 97.30% 18,092 26,948 MP +0.01%


Employed/Enrolled Q2‐Q4 Post Exit –
C&T Participants 84.00% 86.55% 103.04% 16,718 19,316 MP 0.00%


Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – C&T 
Participants $5,983.00  $7,077.40 118.29% N/A 17,166 +P $0.00


Credential Rate – C&T Participants 60.00% 68.29% 113.82% 224 328 +P 0.00%


Employed Q2 Post Exit – Adult 77.40% 76.73% 99.13% 211 275 MP 0.00%


Employed Q4 Post Exit – Adult 77.80% 75.78% 97.40% 169 223 MP 0.00%


Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – Adult Undetermined $6,344.52 N/A N/A 201 N/A $0.00


BCY20 Year End – September 2020 
Monthly Performance Report (MPR)







WIOA OUTCOME MEASURES
PERFORMANCE MEASURES TARGET CURRENT 


PERFORMANCE
PERCENTAGE OF 


CURRENT TARGET
NUMERATOR     


(Successful Outcomes)
DENOMINATOR  


(Population)
PERFORMANCE 


STATUS


PERFORMANCE 
CHANGE FROM 


PREVIOUS MONTH


Credential Rate – Adult 76.90% 69.66% 90.59% 62 89 MP 0.00%


Employed Q2 Post Exit – DW 79.20% 77.19% 97.46% 176 228 MP 0.00%


Employed Q4 Post Exit – DW 84.80% 81.68% 96.32% 223 273 MP 0.00%


Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – DW Undetermined $10,185.39 N/A N/A 170 N/A $0.00


Credential Rate – DW 78.20% 73.79% 94.36% 76 103 MP 0.00%


Employed/Enrolled Q2 Post Exit – Youth 76.20% 79.14% 103.86% 220 278 MP 0.00%


Employed/Enrolled Q4 Post Exit – Youth 71.80% 77.82% 108.38% 186 239 MP 0.00%


Credential Rate – Youth 56.40% 70.37% 124.77% 38 54 +P 0.00%


BCY20 Year End – September 2020 
Monthly Performance Report (MPR)







North Central is currently ranked 22nd of 28 Boards and 5th of 7 Large Boards.


BOARD
AVERAGE RANK PER 


FORMALLY CONTRACTED 
PERFORMANCE MEASURE


ALL BOARDS RANK LARGE BOARDS 
RANK


Alamo 13.71 10 1


Borderplex 16.06 17 3


Dallas County 16.18 19 4


Gulf Coast 21.18 28 7


Lower Rio Grande 15.24 15 2


North Central Texas 17.29 22 5


Tarrant County 18.94 27 6


BCY20 Year End – September 2020 
Monthly Performance Report (MPR)







QUESTIONS








BOARD SUMMARY REPORT - CONTRACTED MEASURES


NORTH CENTRALBOARD NAME: BOARD CONTRACT YEAR 2020 YEAR END REPORT


3 13 1 94.12%


% +P & MPWith Positive 
Performance (+P):


Meeting 
Performance (MP):


With Negative 
Performance  (-P):


Contracted Measures


Status Summary


% Current
Target


EOY
TargetMeasure Status From


2 Years 
Ago YE


Prior Year 
End To 


Current
Perf. YTD Den


YTD NumCurrent
Target QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4


Notes


Source


Reemployment and Employer Engagement Measures
Claimant Reemployment within 10 Weeks 12/18 11/19


1
57.34%MP 95.50% 57.34% 54.76% 55.99% 55.47% 56.20% 55.80% 55.61% 50.02%


29,682
16,255TWC


# of Employers Receiving Workforce Assistance 3/19 2/20
2


11,017-P 94.70% 11,017 10,433 12,239 12,561 5,875 4,891 3,664 3,407
-----
-----TWC


Because of the impact of COVID-19 on demand for services, we adjusted the BCY20 performance period to Dec 2018 to Nov 2019 to reflect how Boards were doing before COVID-19 and to ensure that no Board would be 
considered to have failed to meet BCY20 performance solely because of COVID-19.


1.


Because of the impact of COVID-19 on demand for services, we adjusted the BCY20 performance period to Mar 2019 to Feb 2020 to reflect how Boards were doing before COVID-19 and to ensure that no Board would be 
considered to have failed to meet BCY20 performance solely because of COVID-19.


2.


Program Participation Measures
Choices Full Work Rate - All Family Total 3/19 2/20


3
54.29%MP 98.53% 54.29% 53.49% 56.62% 56.23% 59.47% 57.34% 51.68% 45.46%


126
67TWC


Avg # Children Served Per Day - Combined 3/19 2/20
4


7,337MP 98.91% 7,337 7,257 6,748 5,955 7,173 7,077 7,281 7,497
261


1,894,056TWC


# of EWC Children Served 4/20 9/20-------- ----- ----- 1,877 n/a n/a ----- ----- ----- -----
-----
-----


Because of the impact of COVID-19 on demand for services and participation requirements, we adjusted the BCY20 performance period to Mar 2019 to Feb 2020 to reflect how Boards were doing before COVID-19 and to 
ensure that no Board would be considered to have failed to meet BCY20 performance solely because of COVID-19.


3.


TWC took a number of actions to mitigate the impact of COVID-19 on child care providers and families and to ensure the availability of child care for working parents in Texas, especially essential workers.  Because part of the 
impact of these actions was to raise costs temporarily to the point where many local Boards would not have enough money to meet there targets, we adjusted the BCY20 performance period to Mar 2019 to Feb 2020 to reflect 
how Boards were doing before COVID-19 and to ensure that no Board would be considered to have failed to meet BCY20 performance solely because of COVID-19.


4.


WIOA Outcome Measures
Employed/Enrolled Q2 Post Exit – C&T 


Participants
7/18 6/19


5
69.00%MP 97.30% 69.00% 67.14% 67.98% 68.03% 67.26% 65.23% 67.52% 68.33%


26,948
18,092LBB-K


Employed/Enrolled Q2-Q4 Post Exit – C&T 
Participants


1/18 12/18
5


84.00%MP 103.04% 84.00% 86.55% 85.92% 85.43% 87.36% 85.91% 85.93% 87.08%
19,316
16,718LBB-K


Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – C&T 
Participants


7/18 6/19
5


$5,983.00+P 118.29% $5,983.00 $7,077.40 $6,699.70 $5,505.75 $6,483.59 $7,029.42 $7,500.00 $7,340.72
17,166


n/aTWC


Credential Rate – C&T Participants 1/18 12/18
5


60.00%+P 113.82% 60.00% 68.29% 70.30% 77.76% 73.33% 68.60% 71.29% 60.49%
328
224LBB-K


Employed Q2 Post Exit – Adult 7/18 6/19
5


77.40%MP 99.13% 77.40% 76.73% 77.89% 75.14% 76.47% 72.73% 80.30% 76.74%
275
211DOL-C


Employed Q4 Post Exit – Adult 1/18 12/18
5


77.80%MP 97.40% 77.80% 75.78% 73.68% 75.42% 66.67% 82.61% 76.47% 78.18%
223
169DOL-C


Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – Adult 7/18 6/19
5


-------- ----- ----- $6,344.52 $4,572.92 $4,287.23 $8,970.68 $4,212.45 $5,135.00 $6,459.28
201
n/aDOL-C


Credential Rate – Adult 1/18 12/18
5


76.90%MP 90.59% 76.90% 69.66% 75.00% 77.46% 55.00% 66.67% 76.67% 75.00%
89
62DOL-C


Page 35 of 58Operational Insight - MPR 4.0







BOARD SUMMARY REPORT - CONTRACTED MEASURES


NORTH CENTRALBOARD NAME: BOARD CONTRACT YEAR 2020 YEAR END REPORT
% Current


Target
EOY


TargetMeasure Status From
2 Years 
Ago YE


Prior Year 
End To 


Current
Perf. YTD Den


YTD NumCurrent
Target QTR 1 QTR 2 QTR 3 QTR 4


Notes


Source


WIOA Outcome Measures
Employed Q2 Post Exit – DW 7/18 6/19


5
79.20%MP 97.46% 79.20% 77.19% 78.51% 81.34% 78.46% 72.73% 81.48% 75.93%


228
176DOL-C


Employed Q4 Post Exit – DW 1/18 12/18
5


84.80%MP 96.32% 84.80% 81.68% 79.59% 82.79% 85.53% 80.52% 86.15% 72.73%
273
223DOL-C


Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – DW 7/18 6/19
5


-------- ----- ----- $10,185.39 $10,657.50 $4,969.63 $9,892.43 $9,772.53 $9,319.40 $11,110.00
170
n/aDOL-C


Credential Rate – DW 1/18 12/18
5


78.20%MP 94.36% 78.20% 73.79% 75.49% 76.40% 83.33% 76.92% 72.73% 60.00%
103
76DOL-C


Employed/Enrolled Q2 Post Exit – Youth 7/18 6/19
5


76.20%MP 103.86% 76.20% 79.14% 78.07% 76.03% 76.19% 80.00% 82.26% 79.22%
278
220DOL-C


Employed/Enrolled Q4 Post Exit – Youth 1/18 12/18
5


71.80%MP 108.38% 71.80% 77.82% 71.81% 77.09% 76.47% 77.55% 77.38% 80.00%
239
186DOL-C


Credential Rate – Youth 1/18 12/18
5


56.40%+P 124.77% 56.40% 70.37% 55.56% 83.33% 100.00% 56.25% 80.00% 68.75%
54
38DOL-C


Page 36 of 58Operational Insight - MPR 4.0








MEMBERSHIP REPORT


25-38 BOARD MEMBER
REQUIREMENT


27
ACTIVE BOARD


MEMBERS







PRIVATE SECTOR REPRESENTATIVES (14)
COMMUNITY REPRESENTATIVES (10)
AT LARGE (3)


51%
MINIMUM REQUIREMENT


51.9%
PRIVATE SECTOR


15%
MINIMUM REQUIREMENT


18.5%
COMMUNITY-BASED 


ORGANIZATIONS AND 
ORGANIZED LABOR


Palo Pinto Parker


Wise


Hood


Somervell


Erath


Denton Collin Hunt


Rockwall


Kaufman


Johnson Ellis


Navarro1


1


1


2


3 10 1


2


2


1







BOARD MEMBERS REPRESENT
THE FOLLOWING REQUIRED CATEGORIES:


(1) Public Employment Services, Vocational Rehabilitation and Public Assistance are our At-Large Categories.
Note that at least one member from the Categories must be a veteran and one member must have experience in child care.


PRIVATE SECTOR


SECONDARY
EDUCATION


POST-SECONDARY 
EDUCATION


LOCAL LITERACY
COUNCIL


ADULT BASIC & 
CONTINUING
EDUCATION


PUBLIC
ASSISTANCE(1)


PUBLIC
EMPLOYMENT


SERVICES(1)


VOCATIONAL 
REHABILITATION(1)


ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT


LABORCOMMUNITY BASED 
ORGANIZATIONS








 


 
NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF 


DIRECTORS MEETING 
 


 
 


Meeting Minutes  
November 17, 2020 


9:30 am-noon 
Zoom Meeting 


Videoconference 
 
 


BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT: 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
BOARD MEMBERS NOT PRESENT: 


 
 


 
 
 


CHIEF ELECTED OFFICIALS MEMBERS PRESENT: 
Judge Alfonso Campos 


 


 


Call to Order – Roger Harris, Chair 
Roger Harris called the meeting to order at 9:30 am 


 
1) Public Comment 


At this time, the public telephone line will be unmuted and members of the public may 
comment on any item on today's agenda for the Board’s record, please announce your 
name, city of residence and the agenda item(s) on which you are speaking. A maximum 
three (3) minutes is permitted per speaker. At the conclusion of this opportunity, the public 
telephone line will be muted for the duration of the meeting. 
 


2) Declare Conflicts of Interest 
 
3) Approval of Consent Agenda Items 


a) Approval of the Minutes from the September 22, 2020 Meeting 
b) Unlikely to Return Eligibility Requirements for WIOA Dislocated Worker Policy 


Bindu Adlakha Bill King 
Chip Evans Aaron Thibault 
Gae Goodwin Jacqueline Womble 
Jason Gomez Kenny Weldon 
Shea Hopkins Mickey Hillock 
Leisa House Rolanda Macharia 
Roger Harris David Bristol 
Roselyn Lane John Rattan 


 


Rhodie Rawls Gary Henderson 
Mike Hinojosa Meera Ananthaswamy 
Carlton Tidwell   


 







 
Workforce Development Board Meeting Minutes 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to 
individuals with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 
 


 
Rolanda Macharia made a motion to approve the consent items. Roselyn Lane seconded the 
motion. 15 board members approved, none opposed. The consent items were approved 
unanimously.  
4) Discussion, Consideration and Possible Action Regarding 


a) Committee Updates 
i) Executive Committee – Roger Harris 


(1) Key Priority Statements – TIP Strategies 
Tom Stellman and Jaclyn Le from TIP Strategies presented the Key Priority 
Statements resulting from their previous work sessions with the Board.    


 
Aaron Thibault made a motion to approve the Key Priority Statements. David Bristol seconded 
the motion. 16 board members approved the motion unanimously.  
 


(2) Terrell Workforce Lease Amendment – Randy Richardson 
Randy Richardson Randy Richardson presented on the Terrel Workforce Lease 
proposed for board approval. 
 


The Executive Committee recommended that the North Central Texas Workforce Development 
Board approve the Terrel Workforce Lease Amendment. William King seconded the motion. 16 
board members approved the motion unanimously.  
 


ii) Workforce Development Committee – Jason Gomez 
(1) Texas Rising Star Update –Morgan Armstrong 
Jason Gomez gave a brief update of the October 27, 2020 Workforce Development 
Meeting. Andrea Bagsby and Morgan Armstrong presented on the Texas Rising Star 
program. They explained what the program is about, the rules and standards, 4-year 
review of the TRS changes and timeline for implementation. 
 


iii) Oversight Accountability Committee –Carlton Tidwell 
Carlton Tidwell gave a brief update on the October 27th, 2020 Oversight & 
Accountability Meeting. Michael Nicholas reviewed the Performance Update with the 
cumulative numbers through the September 2020. Randy Richardson reviewed the 
Financial Update with the cumulative numbers through the September 2020. 
 


b) UI Work Search Requirements – David Setzer 
David Setzer gave a brief update to the board on the UI Work Search Requirements. 
TWC moved to reinstate job search requirements but has allowed local boards to decide 
to set the job search requirements for their local area between zero to three. WSNCT 
decided to align with Dallas and Tarrant Counties and remained at zero for the time 
being. This will be revisited in December.  
 


5) Executive Director’s Report 
David Setzer gave the committee a brief update on the reopening of the workforce 
centers and recent COVID-19 cases. Three offices were recently shut down due 
to COVID-19 exposures. David also reviewed the North Central Texas Workforce 
Development 2021 Workforce Board Calendar.  


 
6) Announcement of Executive Session 







 
Workforce Development Board Meeting Minutes 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to 
individuals with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 
 


As authorized by Section 551.071 to consult with the Board’s attorney for legal advice on 
any matter listed on the agenda, pending or contemplated litigation, settlement offers, or any 
matter in which the duty of the Board’s attorney to the Board under the Texas Disciplinary 
Rules of Professional Conduct of the State Bar of Texas clearly conflict with the provisions 
of Chapter 551 of the Texas Open Meetings Act. 
 


7) Action as a Result of Executive Session 
 
8) Other Business 
 
9) Adjourn 


David Bristol made a motion to adjourn. Mickey Hillock seconded the motion, and 
the meeting was adjourned at 10:53 pm. 


 
  
 
   





		Meeting Minutes

		November 17, 2020

		BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT:

		BOARD MEMBERS NOT PRESENT:

		1) Public Comment

		At this time, the public telephone line will be unmuted and members of the public may comment on any item on today's agenda for the Board’s record, please announce your name, city of residence and the agenda item(s) on which you are speaking. A maximu...








STRATEGIC PLAN
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY







Over the course of the past four years, we have 
created uniformity of service delivery within 
the region by automating key work processes 
and transitioning core programs to a paperless 
document management system application using 
Laserfiche. We were successful at transitioning all 
nine designated core programs: WIOA Youth, WIOA 
Adult, WIOA Dislocated Worker, Choices, NCP 
Choices, SNAP E&T, Rapid Response, TAA and Child 
Care services. The automation of core program 
processes, such as intake, eligibility determination 
and correspondence, has increased efficiencies, 
reduced cycle times, and decreased errors. The 
cycle time for the Child Care New Application 
process experienced a 5.5 day (18.97%) reduction 
and the Child Care Redetermination process cycle 
was reduced by 15.1 days (29.61%). 


Additionally, the automated launching of a 
Laserfiche Child Care participant survey is utilized 
to capture participant feedback regarding their 
experience going through the New Application 
and Redetermination processes. Also, a text 
messaging service was integrated with Laserfiche 
to communicate with specified program 
participants regarding program reminders, 
missing documents, waitlist information, etc.  


By converting all Workforce Development key 
programs to a Laserfiche environment, a virtual 
case file for each program participant is stored 
in a Laserfiche repository.  Tangible case files are 
no longer stored/maintained at each Workforce 


We continually challenge ourselves to look inwardly and recognize that a stronger, healthier 
culture directly translates to better performance and reduced risk. We set bold goals to 
improve our organization’s culture, automate processes and reduce cycle times, and elevate 
awareness of our brand. In doing this, we expect to gain efficiencies and reduce errors; exhibit 
good stewardship and maintain the trust bestowed upon us; uphold our vision, mission, and 
values; and increase the visibility and competitive positioning of our organization.


 STRENGTHEN ORGANIZATIONAL 
GOVERNANCE AND CULTURE


 ∞ Automate Key Work Process 
Center but are now accessible via a secured web 
interface, which is accessible to designated staff 
and authorized individuals.  There is no longer a 
need to transport physical files from one location to 
another location.  Finally, auditing and monitoring 
of participant files are conducted remotely as 
opposed to specified staff/authorized individuals 
traveling to various locations to conduct their 
review of participant files or staff having to ship 
participant files to a specified location. This ability 
to significantly monitor remotely further ensures 
security of PII and further mitigates risk. Less staff 
travel time means more time spent on monitoring 
and other work tasks, thus allowing the staff to 
accommodate more work.  Laserfiche also allows 
program participants and customers to submit 
programmatic required documents, which has 
the capability to seamlessly initiate additional 
programmatic processes.


In addition to utilizing Laserfiche to manage 
key funded programs, we use Laserfiche as a 
tool to manage the following work processes: 
customized report requests, systems access 
requests, surveys, event registrations (job fairs, 
webinars, etc.), marketing requests, customer/
participant complaints, and Personal Identifiable 
Information (PII) breaches.


Laserfiche was instrumental in the employer 
authorization process for participation in the iWork 
Youth Career Exploration events and our Hiring 
Red, White & You! job fairs. Prior to Laserfiche 







implementation, the employer authorization 
process duration was approximately 6 days. 
Post Laserfiche implementation, the employer 
authorization/vetting process was reduced to 3.2 
days, which is a 46.67% reduction in cycle time.


Also, the utilization of the Systems Access 
Management application in a Laserfiche 
environment provided enhancements in the area 
of repository management (file management 
and organization) and workflow management 
over its ASP.NET predecessor. Documents are 
automatically stored in a logically designed 
manner and the routing of requests follow a 
designed pattern that minimizes users’ ability to 
alter a pre-determined sequence of process steps.


A certified Project Management Professional 
(PMP) was hired to manage and oversee the 
implementation of all Laserfiche initiatives. 
Having a certified PMP staff member overseeing 
Laserfiche initiatives will increase the likelihood 


of a successful project outcome, add value to the 
Laserfiche implementation project, streamline/
standardize Laserfiche implementation practices, 
and expand project communication channels. 
Specifically, the Data Management Group 
now adheres to Project Management Body of 
Knowledge standards and guidelines to manage 
Laserfiche and other assigned projects to increase 
the likelihood of favorable implementations. 
Designated projects are now authorized by 
leadership to ensure consensus with the project 
scope. Also, we implemented the use of a formal 
process for the review and approval of scope 
changes to ensure the changes do not exceed 
available resources and project constraints. 
Finally, we have a formal project closing process to 
review lessons learned and implemented the use 
of a project archival process for future reference.


Reduced the cycle time for 
new child care applications 
by 5.5 days and shortened 
the redetermination process 
cycle time by 15.1 days.







We operate with the philosophy that while all 
risk cannot be eliminated, we must engage in 
acceptable risk and manage it for optimum results. 
Our controls, policies, oversight, monitoring, 
financial and performance management is 
guided with that philosophy in mind. The absence 
of disallowed costs, findings during external 
reviews or adverse actions taken as a result of 
findings is a demonstration of the consistent and 
diligent “behind the scenes” work we perform. 
Additionally, our staff is routinely sought out by 
other workforce board staff and TWC for their 
expertise in the areas of monitoring and oversight, 
fraud investigation and financial oversight. We 
developed a PII Breach Process in our document 
management system application to manage 
and track PII breaches. This process tracks the 
progress of the breach from the completion of the 
initial incident summary through the investigation, 
remedy phase and the submission of the final 
report to TWC. We conduct a risk assessment 
each year that also looks at risk mitigation factors. 
We conduct risk-based monitoring; manage risk 
with our customer and provider hearngs; and ADA 
and EO reviews; along with fraud fact-finding for 
fiscal and programmatic integrity. Based on the 
outcome of these processes, our oversight of the 
funds is tailored for each program and area of risk. 
Our managed oversight through risk management 
resulted in no disallowed costs for the Workforce 
Board.


 ∞ Conduct Risk Management  
We know that building a solid organizational 
culture isn’t “one and done.” Rather, it’s a continual 
work in progress. We made significant strides in 
the past years toward building and maintaining 
a healthy and positive workplace. We hosted five 
organization-wide town hall meetings to promote 
open communication as well as team-building 
activities to strengthen our workplace relationships. 
Further, we encouraged ongoing visits between 
supervisors and their teams to discuss 
accountability, collaboration, communication, 
professional development, and empowerment. 
We administered a series of surveys to measure 
our effectiveness in fostering communication 
and creating an uplifting workplace culture, and 
the results were positive. In particular, 84.62% of 
our staff indicated they felt valued at work and 
would recommend our workplace to a friend or 
professional acquaintance. 


We value our employees and their safety and 
therefore expanded our existing telecommuting 
practices very early in the pandemic to allow all 
staff to work remotely. Additional flexibility was 
also incorporated which allowed staff to respond 
to new scheduling challenges amid COVID-19. The 
established technology infrastructure provided 
staff a seamless transition to the remote work 
environment.  We expanded access to needed tools 
and equipment for staff to conduct work remotely, 
including purchasing additional Zoom and Zoom 
Webinar licenses to allow staff to connect and 
facilitate critical meetings virtually to maintain 
their safety and promote social distancing.  


In an effort to understand the challenges and 
concerns of staff during the early days of 
COVID-19, we solicited feedback from staff before 
developing/evaluating the re-opening plans of 
the agency. Flex schedules and implementing 
telecommuting were greatly appreciated by staff. 
This practiced use of technology provided a more 
seamless transition to COVID-19 operations.


 ∞ Improve Organizational Culture 


Surveys show 84.62%  of our 
staff feel valued and would 
recommend our workplace 
to a friend or professional 
acquaintance.







We have continuously invested in professional 
development as an effort to attract and keep 
talented employees, boost our reputation as a 
great place to work and build a work culture that is 
unafraid of innovation. During the past four fiscal 
years, we have budgeted $345,913 (an average of 
$2,082.91 per staff) for professional development 
endeavors, not including travel and related 
expenses. Though the COVID-19 Pandemic has 
impacted staff travel, professional development is 
still occurring virtually.


We recognize that one of our strongest assets 
is our brand, and having a solid, trusted brand is 
important for our company to thrive. To ensure 
cohesion, we developed foundational tools 
to assist leadership and staff with presenting 
and communicating a consistent brand image 
externally, including Social Media Guidelines, 
Media and External Communications Guidelines, 
and a more comprehensive Brand Style Guide.  


To increase awareness of our brand and services, 
we launched various marketing campaigns and 
advertising strategies to targeted audiences 
via billboards, broadcast and cable television 


 ∞ Expand Brand Management


commercials, digital ads on high-traffic websites, 
flyers, radio, magazines, social media, videos 
and newspaper ads. Google Analytics reports 
show that total yearly page views of our website 
increased from 400,000 in FY16-17, to 584,057 in 
FY19-20  which is an increase of 46% since FY16-
17. Visits to the homepage of dfwjobs.com alone 
increased more than 140%, going from 51,411 
views in FY16-17 to 125,342 views in FY19-20. 
Twitter Impressions increased 20% since 2018, 
and our Facebook Reach has increased 64% since 
2019.


The Communications team added two staff 
members in FY18-19 to bring more marketing 
and graphic design expertise to the organization. 
This resulted in more fruitful collaboration across 
the department, faster turn-arounds on project 
deliverables and considerable cost savings versus 
utilizing outside vendors. Since January 2019, 
the department has saved more than $165,685 
on vendor fees. The Communications team’s 
work received international recognition in July by 
winning five awards in the 2020 Hermes Creative 
Awards competition, including the competition’s 
highest honor – Platinum – for our FY19 Annual 
Report, and the second-highest honor – Gold – for 
our Brand Awareness Campaign. 







On our own, what we can achieve is limited. The synergy created from our partnerships 
with employers and community stakeholders represents more than the sum of each of our 
contributions. By leveraging each other’s capabilities and resources, our projects and services 
gain greater credibility and broaden the scope of what we can achieve. Our employers share 
valuable insight about their workforce needs, and that knowledge helps our systems and 
offerings remain relevant.


CULTIVATE & MAXIMIZE PARTNER ENGAGEMENT


Our strategy is designed to increase the level 
of engagement with employers by researching, 
outreaching, deepening relationships, and 
building a robust network of employers that are 
engaged in workforce business services. During 
the current plan year, we engaged with more than 
440 employers to provide them with an overview 
of services available to them and  conducted 
discovery meetings to identify potential Skills 
Development Fund (SDF) grant application 
candidates. Since FY17, more than $7.6 million 
in SDF grant funding was awarded to serve 31 
employers in the North Central Texas region, and 
35 additional employers were engaged to develop 
SDF training grants with their local community 
colleges in FY20.  As a result of the Board’s 
collaboration in this grant development, we earned 
$65,000 in SDF Incentive Funds since FY17.   
 
In an effort to continue to build new employer 
relationships and strengthen our region’s 
vibrancy, we deepened our focus on Registered 
Apprenticeships. As a result of our targeted 
outreach and partnerships, we assisted in the 
development of two Registered Apprenticeship 
Programs by connecting the employer to DOL and 
providing support throughout the development 
phase. SAF Holland, a manufacturer located 
in Wylie (Collin County), developed programs 
for Maintenance Electricians and Tool & Die 
Makers, two high-demand occupations within 
their workforce. Bombardier, located in Red Oak 


We can’t do it alone and building capacity through 
strategic collaborations is essential to the work 
we do. We are identifying partners and formalizing 
those relationships to address our community’s 
needs. Additionally, we collaborate with local 
organizations to identify collective ways to serve 
our community, integrate services and leverage 
resources to create greater impact. We currently 
serve on the United Way of Denton County’s 
Workforce Success Leadership Team and its Early 
Childhood Coalition as well as Collin County’s 
Early Childhood Coalition. Through a partnership 
with Educational First Steps, we provide child care 
assistance to families who need support while on 
our waitlist. 


 ∞ Enhance Employer Engagement 


 ∞ Cultivate and Maximize 
Community Partnerships 


(Ellis County), developed an Aircraft Assembler 
apprenticeship program in collaboration with 
Texas State Technical College and WSNCT.  
These efforts began with and are continued 
through WSNCT’s participation with Bombardier’s 
Upskilling Committee.  
 
Due to COVID-19 safety guidelines, we began to 
outreach and engage with employers virtually, 
which allowed us to connect with 190 new 
employers through virtual career fairs, one-on-
one employer meetings, and a Town Hall meeting 
with Aaron Demerson, the Commissioner for 
Employers at Texas Workforce Commission.







Since FY17, more than 
$7.6M in SDF grant funding 
was awarded to serve 31 
employers in the North 
Central Texas region. 







most recent pool of 10 applicants from our region, 
six attended or received information directly from 
the workshops. With four applications resulting 
in awards equaling $591,306.00 for our region, 
WSNCT has deemed the effort successful and 
hosted a secondary virtual JET grant workshop 
in September of 2020. The number of applicants 
and the success of applications continue to rise 
because of the dedicated efforts for outreach and 
technical assistance within this initiative.   


WSNCT has also applied for grants to support our 
community from within. WSNCT used alternative 
funding to create a Teacher Externship program 
available to our entire service area during 2020. 
However, due to COVID-19, program cancellation 
was unavoidable. Most recently, WSNCT secured 
funding from the Apprenticeship Texas Expansion 
Grant, which will be delivered into 2021. 


The new Perkins V Comprehensive Local Needs 
Assessment (CLNA) process required Independent 
School Districts and Post-Secondary institutions 
to reach various stakeholders within their 
communities, including Workforce professionals, 
in an intensive evaluation process in order to 
meet new requirements to obtain Perkins funding. 
WSNCT supported 12 educational partners’ CLNA 
applications during the summer of 2020 and, 
through their hard work, $2,159,816 was brought 
into the region. WSNCT committed about 45-50 
hours to ensuring our assistance was available 
through this effort. We provided Labor Market 
Information (LMI) services, presented to a CLNA 
workgroup at ESC Region 11, and attended offsite 
and virtual meetings as our partners worked 
through this intensive CLNA. This new process 
required researching and comparing data sets.


We have embarked on a journey to transform our 
collaboration opportunities into partnerships by 
building a formalized review process to identify 
potential opportunities for collaboration and 
how to lend support. As the relationships with 
our community organizations and educational 
partners continue to flourish, having a formalized 
review process in place ensures the proposed 
opportunity aligns with our mission and strategic 
planning objectives. 


With this process in place, we have supported many 
grants and initiatives within our communities, 
including the following: 


• Jobs and Education for Texans; 
• Adult Education and Literacy; 
• Building Construction Trades Training; 
• Dual Credit Equipment Only;
• Texas Talent Connect; 
• Wagner Peyser; 
• Help Me Grow North Texas
• Department of Defense’s Defense 


Manufacturing Community Support; 
• Texas Workforce Commission’s Child Care 


Retention Strategies;
• Texas Workforce Commission’s Family 


Child Care Networks; 
• Department of Labor’s Youth 


Apprenticeship Readiness Grant; and 
• Texas Education Agency’s CTE Perkins 


Reserve. 


Since 2017, WSNCT has approved 31 applications 
for the Jobs and Education for Texans (JET) grant. 
The grant has awarded a total of $2,111,899.00 to 
the region. During the summer of 2019, WSNCT 
piloted two JET Workshops to strengthen the 
number of JET applicants in our area. Out of the 







Outside of the CLNA, LMI remains in high 
demand. There has been an increase in requests 
and referrals from and between our educational 
partners, including added support from the 
Education Service Centers. This increase in 
requests for LMI and presentations indicates that 
awareness of our services is continuing to grow 
and flourish. Our education partners are under 
new pressure to stay in the know concerning the 
latest trends for high-demand/high-wage careers. 
We have presented on LMI resources, the Target 
Occupations List (TOL), and career exploration 
tools at various events and meetings to assist 
our area’s needs. The presentations took place at 
Region 11’s Counselors & Advisors Summit; Collin 
College’s group of Career Counselors who are 
embedded in local ISD’s; the iWork: Youth Career 
Exploration Event in the Fall of 2019 (for parents 
and teachers); the Expert-to-Expert event hosted in 
partnership with Interlink, ESC 10, and ESC 11; the 
College, Career, and Military Readiness conference 
at ESC 10; as well as multiple requested meetings 
held privately with ISD CTE leaders.  


After recognizing that the library systems offer 
complementary services and shared customers, 
we deepened our collaboration with them. Recently, 
we provided a virtual information session on LMI, 
the shifting economy, and the TOL for Plano Public 
Library system staff. Additionally, Texas Woman’s 
University has requested a presentation to their 
graduating students on workforce services and 
how they should be shared and utilized within 
the library systems. Through these ongoing 
outreach initiatives, we seek to complement the 
library systems’ skill building, English as a Second 
Language classes, and other adult education 
efforts, and increase our cross-referral to our 
offices for additional services. 


Each year of the strategic plan, approximately 150 
requests from community partners were answered 
uniquely with timely LMI and socioeconomic data. 
In FY19 alone, 25 requests for data involved site 
selection projects for the relocation or expansion 
of businesses, one facilitated the creation of 
a new academic program at the University of 
North Texas at Frisco, and 10 requests were 
transcribed into presentations intended to expand 
the community’s understanding of how LMI helps 
inform decisions.  


Through our partnership with the Office of 
Attorney General (OAG), we work in collaboration 
and coordination with local judges, attorneys 
and local OAG staff to provide employment 
services and support to the Noncustodial Parent 
(NCP) community of Collin and Denton counties. 
Workforce staff engagement with the NCP 
customer during child support court hearings 
allows early and immediate employment service 
intervention; providing immediate access to job 
matching services creates quick employment 
opportunities. WSNCT provides expert advice 
to assist the NCP in utilizing Workforce services 
such as job matching and hiring events. Access 
to tools such as Work-In-Texas, Resume Pro, and 
Career Exploration created better opportunity 
for employment resulting in independent wages. 
The ability to provide support services and 
employment incentives to NCP customers has 
continued to make a positive impact, freeing up 
earned income which assists the NCP in paying 
off arrears by making regular and consistent child 
support payments. For FY20, Collin and Denton 
counties enrolled 42 NCP customers, collectively 
leading to the collection of $185,606.40 in child 
support.  


Collaborating with educational partners on CLNA applications 
resulted in our region receiving $2.16M in Perkins V funding 
in FY20.







Recognizing that high-quality early childhood programs can strengthen a parent’s job stability and 
wages as well as increase a child’s ability to learn, we have provided more than 19,000 hours of early 
childhood mentoring services to our child care providers. Our investment in the child care industry has 
exceeded $4,000,000 over the past four years. To further meet the need for local high-quality professional 
development opportunities, we have provided the following to early childhood professionals over the past 
four years (2017-2020).


Each Spring, we host an annual Bright from the Start Early Childhood Conference. In FY19 we also hosted 
a parent engagement opportunity at Crayola Experience. The parent engagement event was offered to 
promote early childhood information to customers who receive child care subsidy. We have continued 
to provide Professional Development opportunities to early childhood professionals during COVID-19 by 
using virtual technologies like Zoom and have reached over 150 individuals. Due to COVID-19, our Early 
Childhood staff has not been able to assess child care programs that want to become Texas Rising Star 
(TRS) programs, therefore we have not seen a significant increase in TRS programs in FY20. We have 
continued to mentor TRS programs virtually using available platforms, as requested. 


The interest in our Texas Rising Star program and the number of programs that have been certified TRS has 
increased every year but, due to COVID-19, the numbers have not increased as significantly as anticipated 
this year. 


We are dedicated to fostering our community members’ success and are continuously 
investing in their growth in every cycle of their lives, from early childhood years to mid-
career days. We are committed to investing in our future workforce by producing high-quality 
offerings to enrich the quality of child care provided in our region. We are empowering our 
community members to envision their future by embarking on strong, long-lasting impact 
career exploration activities. Finally, we develop our customers’ employability by facilitating 
work-based learning that deepens their understanding of their career of choice. Above all, we 
are striving to put our customers first and remove barriers to increase access to our services.


INVEST IN HUMAN CAPITAL AND FOSTER 
THEIR SUCCESS


 ∞ Increase the Quality of Child Care 


2017 2018 2019 2020


Child Development Associate Classes 61 100 87 41


College Credit 11 18 16 25
Professional Development opportunities 
to include training classes, sessions 1611 718 516 274


2017 47
2018 61
2019 73
2020 92







We are working on meeting our customers 
where they are. We are investing resources to 
serve them through a framework that mirrors 
today’s workplace and allows us to connect 
with our customers in their own location. The 
framework will enable us to support their career 
development needs by reducing barriers, such 
as access to transportation. Utilizing Zoom, we 
are conducting appointments, orientations and 
workshops virtually, as well as using AdobePro to 
capture required signatures electronically. Since 
implementation, we have accomplished 597 
workshops and orientations, 3476 virtual contacts/
appointments with customers, 1450 electronic 
signature transactions and 129 enrollments. Due 
to COVID-19, 35 virtual career fairs have also been 
hosted, serving 244 employers and more than 
4,766 career seekers. 


During the past four years, we have continued 
to integrate the Texas Workforce Commission, 
Vocational Rehabilitation Services into our 
Workforce System. We have expanded from our 
initial two locations of Corsicana and Waxahachie, 
to now include the integration of Granbury, 
Greenville and McKinney. These efforts are 
designed to create a seamless delivery system that 
integrates across all programs, further enhancing 
access for all our customers. 
 
For the purpose outreaching specialized job 
seeker populations, we procured the use of a text 
messaging application (TextLine). Text messaging 
is an effective tool to reach targeted populations 
in order to share information regarding services 


 ∞ Expand Access to WD Services


We’re engaging our students with disabilities 
in powerful experiences. During the past three 
years, through the Summer Earn and Learn (SEAL) 
Program, we served 941 students and placed 769 
with employers to perform jobs duties that develop 
their skills, knowledge, and readiness for work, 
and to support entry or advancement into a career 
field. Our employer partner, Chick-Fil-A of Allen who 
participates in our SEAL program, received the Lex 
Frieden Employment Award (Medium Employer) 
for 2019.  One of our SEAL program participants, 
Tyler was placed at Chick-Fil-A at the time when 
his mother actually made the nomination. Tyler 
secured employment with Chick-Fil-A at the end 
of the SEAL program.  Chick-Fil-A and Tyler were 
recognized during our November Board Meeting.  
Based on the collected data for 2018 – 2019, the 
SEAL program has approximately a 10 percent 
employment rate.


In total from 2017 – 2020, we have dedicated 
an estimated $2,789,000 in funding for Work-
Based Learning efforts that impact not only the 
SEAL customers but also our WIOA and Choices 
customers.    These efforts include work experience 
as well as On-The-Job Training opportunities.


 ∞ Expand Work-Based Learning 


offered to our customers. Since June 2020, 
we distributed two  outreach campaigns 
(approximately 95,000 text messages sent) 
targeting Unemployment Insurance  Claimants 
to share information regarding resources, tools, 
and tips for obtaining employment during the 
COVID-19 Pandemic.  


During the past three years, we served 941 SEAL students 
and placed 769 with employers to perform job duties that 
develop their skills, knowledge and readiness for work.











We are increasing our customers’ awareness 
of career options and preparing them to enter 
workplaces more confident about their future. We 
hosted five iWork: Youth Career Exploration Events 
that have served approximately 2,500 students 
and more than 23 career exploration engagements 
that supported our students with disabilities. The 
Career Coach tool on the website received nearly 
450 visits per month during the past year. In FY19, 
the total number of visitors was 6,907. 


We conducted a survey as a part of an ongoing 
needs assessment to better address and support 
our educational partner’s career exploration needs. 
This survey was meant to assist in gaining a 
deeper understanding of the Career and Technical 
Education functionalities of our partnering ISDs, as 
well as the challenges faced due to the COVID-19 
Pandemic. More than 50% of survey participants 
identified that they are very familiar with WSNCT 
and have had access to some of our resources. In 
addition, 22% identified that they interact with us 
often, and another 20% identified that they are only 
a little familiar with WSNCT. Only 3% stated that 
they had never heard of WSNCT. 


We asked participants what career exploration 
resources are currently offered, how the resources 
are currently offered, and how they would like to 
offer the resources in the future. Almost half of the 
respondents stated that more career exploration 
resources are needed. Many have access to the 
free resources provided by TWC’s Labor Market and 
Career Information services, which we often share 
during presentations to create more awareness. 
Out of Internships, Job Fairs, Career Days, College 
Fairs, Job Shadowing, externally hosted Career 
Exploration events, and Educator Externships, we 
found that all of these opportunities are needed, 


 ∞ Promote Career Exploration 
and may need to be converted to virtual events 
for the success of students. However, Educator 
Externships are marked as the highest virtual 
need, which is great insight as this is one of our 
goals to offer virtually in Spring 2021. 


We also asked what the greatest needs are when 
they are building their own career exploration 
initiatives. The number one answer was a need 
for Employer/Industry involvement. This matches 
anecdotal information received from in-person 
meetings with various partners. The survey also 
indicates a high interest in career exploration 
resource training for staff.


Our development of “iWork Futuría: Career 
Lotería” is a creative solution to creating more 
opportunities for career exploration. This game has 
been designed to resemble the traditional game 
of chance, Lotería, but with a career explorative 
twist. The game incorporates information about 
high-demand careers and tips to continue learning 
more about each occupation using the associated 
SOC code. This game is friendly to all age groups, 
many differing abilities, and adheres to the Texas 
Essential Skills and Knowledge – making it an 
easy and fun way to incorporate career exploration 
into the classroom for our ISD partners.  


Another creative solution to promote career 
exploration is a poster designed to help promote 
career exploration. The poster includes a link to 
the career exploration resource on our website. 
This project was finalized at the top of the year, but 
COVID-19 restrictions delayed the disbursement 
of the poster into libraries and other public spaces. 


More than 2,500 students, as well as 200 employers, CTE 
programs  and  colleges, participated in our  iWork: Youth Career 
Exploration events from FY18-FY20.












 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals 
with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 


 


 
 


 
NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF 


DIRECTORS and NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS CHIEF ELECTED OFFICIALS 
 


Recommendation for Workforce Board Budget Policy 
 
 
Background: 
 
During the December 2020 Oversight and Accountability Committee meeting, NCTCOG staff 
reviewed the final FY 2020 Local Board (Board, staff, and centralized functions) expenditures as 
compared to the Board approved budget. A concern was expressed by the committee regarding final 
expenditures exceeding a certain budget category target amount even though the total overall Local 
Board expenditures were within the final approved budget.  The committee asked NCTCOG staff to 
develop a Board budget policy to address the reallocation of funds among budget categories.   
 
Information: 
 
NCTCOG staff have developed a proposed Board budget approval policy (attached) that includes 
guidance regarding Local Board expenditures as they relate to budgets primarily including the 
following: 
 


• Expenditures cannot exceed the approved Local Board Budget amount prior to the Board 
considering and approving a budget amendment. 


• Budget category amounts for any fiscal year may be reallocated to other categories by 
NCTCOG, as permitted by applicable state and federal laws, regulations, and grant 
requirements, in amounts less than $500,000 without requiring Board authorization.  If a 
reallocation of budget category amounts exceeds $500,000, prior Board authorization is 
required except that the NCTCOG Executive Director or designee has limited authorization 
to approve reallocations in excess of $500,000 when: 
 


1) NCTCOG determines specific funding is in jeopardy of lapsing or otherwise 
becoming unavailable for use; and, 
2) The Board is not scheduled to meet in time to authorize reallocation(s) to prevent 
such loss of funds from occurring.  


 
 In the event this limited authorization is utilized, NCTCOG will present the action taken at the 


next regularly scheduled Board meeting for endorsement. 
 


 
Recommendation: 
The Executive Committee recommends approval of the Workforce Board Budget Approval Policy by 
the North Central Texas Workforce Development Board.  


 
Approval Date: February 24, 2021 
 
Attachment: Proposed Board Policy on Workforce Board Budget Approval 








Vision: The recognized leader in building tomorrow’s workforce. 
Mission: To advance business-driven solutions that promote economic growth, opportunity and a skilled workforce. 


Values: Trust | Leadership | Inclusion | Community 
 


600 Six Flags Drive, Centerpoint Three 
P.O. Box 5888 | Arlington, Texas 76005-5888 


Phone: 817-695-9184 | Fax: 817-640-6480 
E-mail: workforce@dfwjobs.com 


In Partnership with North Central Texas Council of Governments 
 


 


 
Board Policy Issuance 


 
 
 


Policy Name:  
WSNCT Board Budget Approval 
 


Description: 
WSNCT Board Budget Approval  
 


Date of Approval:  
February 24, 2021 


Revision History:  
N/A 


Effective Date:  
February 24, 2021 


Scheduled for Review:  
February 24, 2025 


Policy Topic:  
Business and Finance 


Administering Department:  
Administration 


 
                
 
DEFINITIONS: 
 
Budget Categories: The budget categories are reflected within the annual budget presentation 
packet provided to the WSNCT Board as support for the Local Board Budget amount 
considered for approval.  They typically include personnel, travel, occupancy, equipment, and 
professional services but the list may be modified for a specific budget year. 
 
Local Board Budget: Refers to the budget for the WSNCT Board, NCTCOG staff that support 
the WSNCT Board, and centralized functions performed by the NCTCOG (primarily technology 
support, facility maintenance coordination and infrastructure costs, and program oversight for 
the workforce centers and its program delivery functions).  This excludes the funding allocations 
and budgets negotiated with the WSNCT Board’s various subrecipients.  
 
NCTCOG: North Central Texas Council of Governments serving as the grant recipient and fiscal 
agent of the WSNCT Board. 
 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas (WSNCT) Board: North Central Texas Local 
Workforce Development Board 


  
POLICY STATEMENT: 
 
The WSNCT Board shall approve an annual fiscal year Local Board Budget, which comprises 
multiple grant sources, and any necessary amendments.  The reallocation of funds among 
budget categories, as permitted by applicable state and federal laws, regulations, and grant 
requirements, in an amount exceeding $500,000 requires WSNCT Board authorization.  
 
ACTIONS REQUIRED: 
 


POLICY NUMBER: 
 


IABF02-202101 



mailto:workforce@dfwjobs.com





Vision: The recognized leader in building tomorrow’s workforce. 
Mission: To advance business-driven solutions that promote economic growth, opportunity and a skilled workforce. 


Values: Trust | Leadership | Inclusion | Community 
 


The WSNCT Board will approve an annual Local Board Budget including the following criteria: 
 


• The budget will include the twelve (12) months designated as the WSNCT Board’s fiscal 
year, October 1-September 30.   


• Expenditures shall not exceed the approved Local Board Budget amount prior to the 
WSNCT Board considering and approving a budget amendment. 


• Budget category amounts for any fiscal year may be reallocated to other categories by 
NCTCOG, as permitted by applicable state and federal laws, regulations, and grant 
requirements, in amounts less than $500,000 without requiring WSNCT Board 
authorization. If a reallocation of budget category amounts exceeds $500,000, prior 
WSNCT Board authorization is required except that the NCTCOG Executive Director or 
designee has limited authorization to approve reallocations in excess of $500,000 when: 
 


1) NCTCOG determines specific funding is in jeopardy of lapsing or otherwise 
becoming unavailable for use; and, 
2) The WSNCT Board is not scheduled to meet in time to authorize reallocation(s) 
to prevent such loss of funds from occurring.  
 


In the event this limited authorization is utilized, NCTCOG will present the action taken at the 
next regularly scheduled WSNCT Board meeting for endorsement. 
 
RELATED POLICIES/RESOURCES: 
Interlocal Agreement for Services Between North Central Texas Workforce Development Board 
and North Central Texas Council of Governments; II.B.g.v. 
 
INQUIRIES: 
Please contact policy@dfwjobs.com 


 
 
____________________________________  ____________________________________ 
Approved by:      Reviewed by: 
Roger Harris 
Board Chair 
Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas 


Debra Kosarek 
Senior Program Manager - Compliance 
and Continuous Improvement 


                
  
 
 



mailto:policy@dfwjobs.com



		600 Six Flags Drive, Centerpoint Three






Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals 
with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 


NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF 


DIRECTORS and NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS CHIEF ELECTED OFFICIALS 


2021 Target Occupations, In-Demand Occupations, and In-Demand Industries 
Recommendation  


Background: 


Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) requires Boards to carry out analyses of the 
economic conditions, the needed knowledge and skills, and workforce development activities 
(including education and training) in the region, and that we regularly update this information. The 
Board’s 4-year comprehensive local plan must include an analysis of the regional economic 
conditions including existing and emerging in-demand industry sectors and occupations. Additionally, 
Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) Chapter 841 Workforce Investment Act rule §841.33 requires 
each Board to establish a list of target occupations. The Board must conduct an annual review and 
to adopt changes to the Target Occupations Lists, In-Demand Occupations, and In-Demand 
Industries lists.  


Information: 


The 2021 Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas Target Occupations List (TOL) is designed to 
direct federal workforce funding to post-secondary programs that prepare workers for high demand 
and growth occupations that are critical to local economy of the Workforce Board Area. The list is 
formally reviewed at least once a year and may be changed or updated to reflect changing economic 
conditions in the region. The TOL guides funding toward training and education programs that 
produce qualified workers to meet local business and industry needs. WIOA training funds are only 
invested into training for occupations that have been researched and verified by accredited sources. 


The 2021 Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas In-Demand Occupations and 2021 Workforce 
Solutions for North Central Texas In-Demand Industries were established to identify key areas with 
current and potential impact to the local economy. Both lists highlight opportunities that lead to 
economic self-sufficiency and opportunities for advancement and will guide our service delivery 
efforts.  


Recommendation: 
I move that the North Central Texas Workforce Development Board approve the 2021
Target Occupations, In-Demand Occupations, In-Demand Industries Lists.  


Approval Date:  February 24, 2021 


Attachments: Proposed 2021 Target Occupations, In-Demand Occupations, and In-Demand 
Industries Lists.  








Occupation SOC


Typical Entry 


Level Education 20
20


 E
m
p
l.


E
n
tr
y 
H
o
u
rl
y 


W
a
ge


2
0
2
0
 ‐
 2
0
2
5
 %
 


C
h
a
n
ge


M
ed


ia
n
 A
n
n
u
a
l 


W
a
ge


U
n
em


p
l.
 R
a
te


5
‐Y
ea


r 
H
is
to
ry
 


T
o
ta
l E


m
p
l.
 


C
h
a
n
ge


Architectural and Engineering Managers 11‐9041


Bachelor's 


degree 1,006 $44.80 14.1% $150,100 2.0% 152
Bus and Truck Mechanics and Diesel Engine 


Specialists 49‐3031


High school 


diploma or  1,818 $16.71 13.7% $49,300 4.2% 188


Civil Engineers 17‐2051


Bachelor's 


degree 1,452 $24.78 16.1% $81,400 1.6% 378


Compliance Officers 13‐1041


Bachelor's 


degree 1,785 $19.29 15.0% $70,200 1.0% 586


Construction Managers 11‐9021


Bachelor's 


degree 2,771 $28.91 14.0% $90,900 2.5% 391


Cost Estimators 13‐1051


Bachelor's 


degree 1,643 $20.08 15.0% $61,700 2.6% 236


Electronics Engineers, Except Computer 17‐2072


Bachelor's 


degree 1,190 $33.80 14.3% $117,100 2.7% 270
First‐Line Supervisors of Construction 


Trades and Extraction Workers 47‐1011


High school 


diploma or  5,103 $18.80 13.7% $57,800 4.3% 445
First‐Line Supervisors of Mechanics, 


Installers, and Repairers 49‐1011


High school 


diploma or  3,175 $19.92 14.0% $68,000 3.2% 516


Industrial Engineers 17‐2112


Bachelor's 


degree 1,858 $30.05 16.0% $93,100 2.3% 411


Industrial Machinery Mechanics 49‐9041


High school 


diploma or  2,408 $15.83 20.7% $49,700 3.3% 745


Mechanical Engineers 17‐2141


Bachelor's 


degree 1,449 $29.93 13.7% $91,700 2.5% 300
Telecommunications Equipment Installers 


and Repairers, Except Line Installers 49‐2022


Postsecondary 


nondegree  1,913 $18.20 16.4% $56,800 2.7% 706
Telecommunications Line Installers and 


Repairers 49‐9052


High school 


diploma or  1,482 $15.33 14.8% $43,600 3.1% 268


Accountants and Auditors 13‐2011


Bachelor's 


degree 9,392 $22.98 13.9% $73,300 2.1% 1,405
Data Scientists and Mathematical Science 


Occupations, All Other 15‐2098


Bachelor's 


degree 206 $31.03 16.0% $91,200 2.2% 100


General and Operations Managers 11‐1021


Bachelor's 


degree 17,618 $23.19 14.7% $103,900 2.6% 4,133


Human Resources Managers 11‐3121


Bachelor's 


degree 912 $37.23 16.2% $120,700 3.2% 320


Human Resources Specialists 13‐1071


Bachelor's 


degree 4,121 $18.97 13.8% $60,700 3.0% 1,064


Management Analysts 13‐1111


Bachelor's 


degree 3,848 $26.35 19.7% $83,100 3.5% 910


Occupation Snapshot: 2021 Target Occupations
WSNCT, 2020 Q3


Emsi


Construction, Design, & Mechanical Technology


Business Administration & Professional Services


JobsEQ







Market Research Analysts and Marketing 


Specialists 13‐1161


Bachelor's 


degree 3,533 $18.70 23.6% $68,400 3.3% 1,219


Marketing Managers 11‐2021


Bachelor's 


degree 1,549 $38.28 17.4% $128,800 3.5% 465


Medical and Health Services Managers 11‐9111


Bachelor's 


degree 2,514 $22.72 17.4% $94,800 1.6% 495


Operations Research Analysts 15‐2031


Bachelor's 


degree 1,047 $22.03 24.3% $82,400 1.9% 283
Project Management Specialists and 


Business Operations Specialists, All Other 13‐1198


Bachelor's 


degree 10,288 $21.85 14.9% $76,900 3.3% 2,278


Sales Managers 11‐2022


Bachelor's 


degree 2,927 $31.28 14.1% $127,700 3.3% 540


Claims Adjusters, Examiners, and 


Investigators 13‐1031


High school 


diploma or  1,469 $18.37 15.1% $66,200 2.6% 130


Credit Analysts 13‐2041


Bachelor's 


degree 992 $21.66 15.1% $68,800 2.4% 210
Financial and Investment Analysts, Financial 


Risk Specialists, and Financial Specialists, All  13‐2098


Bachelor's 


degree 4,126 $23.28 16.2% $76,900 2.0% 875


Financial Examiners 13‐2061


Bachelor's 


degree 619 $24.60 18.2% $83,500 2.8% 262


Financial Managers 11‐3031


Bachelor's 


degree 4,397 $33.29 22.2% $136,200 1.9% 1,057
Insurance Claims and Policy Processing 


Clerks 43‐9041


High school 


diploma or  2,466 $14.06 18.9% $38,200 3.4% 328


Insurance Sales Agents 41‐3021


High school 


diploma or  5,933 $14.80 20.0% $66,300 3.0% 687


Loan Officers 13‐2072


Bachelor's 


degree 2,641 $16.52 15.2% $70,700 2.2% 518


Personal Financial Advisors 13‐2052


Bachelor's 


degree 922 $20.27 29.0% $79,100 0.7% 453
Property, Real Estate, and Community 


Association Managers 11‐9141


High school 


diploma or  1,426 $14.30 18.0% $63,200 3.0% 812


Real Estate Sales Agents 41‐9022


High school 


diploma or  1,530 $16.58 17.1% $66,300 3.1% 556
Securities, Commodities, and Financial 


Services Sales Agents 41‐3031


Bachelor's 


degree 4,058 $17.87 19.7% $56,300 2.4% 1,406


Computer and Information Systems 


Managers 11‐3021


Bachelor's 


degree 3,104 $47.16 19.9% $149,600 2.1% 867


Computer Network Architects 15‐1241


Bachelor's 


degree 1,538 $36.45 15.5% $124,000 1.1% 342


Computer Network Support Specialists 15‐1231


Associate's 


degree 1,551 $20.56 17.3% $73,100 3.7% 464


Computer Occupations, All Other 15‐1299


Bachelor's 


degree 3,119 $22.08 16.6% $91,600 2.8% 863


Computer Systems Analysts 15‐1211


Bachelor's 


degree 5,403 $27.54 18.2% $91,400 2.0% 1,278


Computer User Support Specialists 15‐1232


Some college, 


no degree 6868 $14.89 16.3% $46,600 3.8% 1,580


Database Administrators and Architects 15‐1245


Bachelor's 


degree 1,307 $29.23 16.0% $98,400 1.8% 204


Information Security Analysts 15‐1212


Bachelor's 


degree 1,287 $32.81 28.1% $108,400 3.3% 395


Finance, Insurance, Real Estate (FIRE)


Information Technology (IT)







Network and Computer Systems 


Administrators 15‐1244


Bachelor's 


degree 3,453 $27.30 14.7% $85,700 3.3% 567
Software Developers and Software Quality 


Assurance Analysts and Testers 15‐1256


Bachelor's 


degree 14,557 $33.57 21.5% $107,600 2.0% 3,714
Web Developers and Digital Interface 


Designers 15‐1257


Associate's 


degree 1,076 $19.94 18.6% $70,000 3.1% 410


Dental Assistants 31‐9091


Postsecondary 


nondegree  3,619 $15.55 19.2% $40,800 3.0% 100


Dental Hygienists 29‐1292


Associate's 


degree 1,810 $14.41 21.2% $79,700 0.9% 243


Radiologic Technologists and Technicians 29‐2034


Associate's 


degree 797 $23.29 16.6% $59,300 1.4% 108


Registered Nurses 29‐1141


Bachelor's 


degree 13,513 $25.06 15.2% $72,300 1.7% 2,008


Respiratory Therapists 29‐1126


Associate's 


degree 696 $23.29 17.2% $60,600 1.3% 138
Substance Abuse, Behavioral Disorder, and 


Mental Health Counselors 21‐1018


Bachelor's 


degree 946 $14.41 26.6% $46,100 2.0% 378


Surgical Technologists 29‐2055


Associate's 


degree 495 $15.51 14.9% $48,800 3.4% 599


First‐Line Supervisors of Landscaping, Lawn 


Service, and Groundskeeping Workers 37‐1012


High school 


diploma or  671 $16.41 18.1% $50,000 3.6% 175


Massage Therapists 31‐9011


Postsecondary 


nondegree  854 $15.24 32.2% $43,800 2.9% 296
Personal Service Managers, All Other; 


Entertainment and Recreation Managers,  11‐9198


Bachelor's 


degree 2,437 $32.47 16.5% $121,900 2.1% 1,476


Pest Control Workers 37‐2021


High school 


diploma or  1,028 $15.18 16.6% $53,300 3.6% 474


Training and Development Specialists 13‐1151


Bachelor's 


degree 2,381 $16.95 16.7% $62,500 2.5% 578


Food Service Managers 11‐9051


High school 


diploma or  1,642 $17.95 17.3% $55,400 2.3% 377


Paralegals and Legal Assistants 23‐2011


Associate's 


degree 1,395 $17.95 21.5% $54,100 2.7% 473


Transportation, Storage, and Distribution 


Managers 11‐3071


High school 


diploma or  968 $30.45 14.1% $91,800 2.5% 207


Electro‐Mechanical and Mechatronics 


Technologists and Technicians 17‐3024


Associate's 


degree 218 $16.14 9.2% $49,600 3.0% 13


Personal Care Services


Education/Training


Hospitality & Food Services


Law, Public Safety, Corrections & Security


Transportation, Distribution, & Logistics


Health Care







Occupation SOC


2020 


Jobs


2020 - 


2025 % 


Change


Unemployme


nt Rate


5-Year History 


Total 


Employment 


Change


Chiropractors 29-1011 362 27.7% 1.3% 181
Clinical, Counseling, and School 


Psychologists 19-3031 740 17.0% 1.8% 135


Dental Assistants 31-9091 3,619 19.2% 3.0% 599


Dental Hygienists 29-1292 1,810 21.2% 0.9% 378


Dentists, General 29-1021 1,031 20.0% 0.9% 195


Healthcare Social Workers 21-1022 758 18.1% 1.7% 109


Medical Assistants 31-9092 5,097 19.5% 2.7% 982
Medical Dosimetrists, Medical Records 


Specialists, and Health Technologists 29-2098 1,834 16.9% 2.8% 432
Medical Scientists, Except 


Epidemiologists 19-1042 310 23.0% 2.8% 115
Medical Secretaries and Administrative 


Assistants 43-6013 6,632 15.5% 3.8% 1074


Nurse Practitioners 29-1171 1,050 23.6% 1.6% 311


Ophthalmic Medical Technicians 29-2057 561 15.1% 3.5% 169


Phlebotomists 31-9097 580 24.0% 2.4% 155


Physician Assistants 29-1071 638 25.2% 1.4% 141
Physicians, All Other; and 


Ophthalmologists, Except Pediatric 29-1228 1,770 16.3% 0.8% 418
Radiologic Technologists and 


Technicians 29-2034 797 16.6% 1.4% 138


Registered Nurses 29-1141 13,513 15.2% 1.7% 2008


Respiratory Therapists 29-1126 696 17.2% 1.3% 108


Occupation Snapshot: 2021 In-Demand Occupations
WSNCT, 2020 Q3


Emsi JobsEQ


Health Care







Social and Human Service Assistants 21-1093 1,329 17.2% 3.8% 145
Substance Abuse, Behavioral Disorder, 


and Mental Health Counselors 21-1018 946 26.6% 2.0% 243


Surgical Technologists 29-2055 495 14.9% 3.4% 100


Architectural and Engineering Managers 11-9041 1,006 14.1% 2.0% 152
Bus and Truck Mechanics and Diesel 


Engine Specialists 49-3031 1,818 13.7% 4.2% 188


Civil Engineers 17-2051 1,452 16.1% 1.6% 378


Compliance Officers 13-1041 1,785 15.0% 1.0% 586


Construction Managers 11-9021 2,771 14.0% 2.5% 391


Cost Estimators 13-1051 1,643 15.0% 2.6% 236


Electronics Engineers, Except Computer 17-2072 1,190 14.3% 2.7% 270
Farm Equipment Mechanics and Service 


Technicians 49-3041 246 22.6% 3.1% 102
First-Line Supervisors of Construction 


Trades and Extraction Workers 47-1011 5,103 13.7% 4.3% 445
First-Line Supervisors of Mechanics, 


Installers, and Repairers 49-1011 3,175 14.0% 3.2% 516
Heating, Air Conditioning, and 


Refrigeration Mechanics and Installers 49-9021 1,932 21.0% 3.4% 761


Industrial Engineers 17-2112 1,858 16.0% 2.3% 411


Industrial Machinery Mechanics 49-9041 2,408 20.7% 3.3% 745
Maintenance and Repair Workers, 


General 49-9071 10,222 14.6% 3.6% 1548


Mechanical Engineers 17-2141 1,449 13.7% 2.5% 300
Telecommunications Equipment 


Installers and Repairers, Except Line 49-2022 1,913 16.4% 2.7% 706
Telecommunications Line Installers and 


Repairers 49-9052 1,482 14.8% 3.1% 268


Accountants and Auditors 13-2011 9,392 13.9% 2.1% 1,405


Billing and Posting Clerks 43-3021 3,728 15.0% 2.7% 182


Construction, Design, & Mechanical Technology


Business Administration & Professional Services







Data Scientists and Mathematical 


Science Occupations, All Other 15-2098 206 16.0% 2.2% 100


General and Operations Managers 11-1021 17,618 14.7% 2.6% 4,133


Human Resources Managers 11-3121 912 16.2% 3.2% 320


Human Resources Specialists 13-1071 4,121 13.8% 3.0% 1,064


Management Analysts 13-1111 3,848 19.7% 3.5% 910
Market Research Analysts and 


Marketing Specialists 13-1161 3,533 23.6% 3.3% 1,219


Marketing Managers 11-2021 1,549 17.4% 3.5% 465


Medical and Health Services Managers 11-9111 2,514 17.4% 1.6% 495


Operations Research Analysts 15-2031 1,047 24.3% 1.9% 283
Project Management Specialists and 


Business Operations Specialists, All 13-1198 10,288 14.9% 3.3% 2,278


Sales Managers 11-2022 2,927 14.1% 3.3% 540


Veterinarians 29-1131 524 18.2% 1.2% 169
Veterinary Assistants and Laboratory 


Animal Caretakers 31-9096 1,027 14.9% 3.0% 155


Claims Adjusters, Examiners, and 


Investigators 13-1031 1,469 15.1% 2.6% 130


Credit Analysts 13-2041 992 15.1% 2.4% 210
Financial and Investment Analysts, 


Financial Risk Specialists, and Financial 13-2098 4,126 16.2% 2.0% 875


Financial Examiners 13-2061 619 18.2% 2.8% 262


Financial Managers 11-3031 4,397 22.2% 1.9% 1,057
Insurance Claims and Policy Processing 


Clerks 43-9041 2,466 18.9% 3.4% 328


Insurance Sales Agents 41-3021 5,933 20.0% 3.0% 687


Loan Officers 13-2072 2,641 15.2% 2.2% 518


Personal Financial Advisors 13-2052 922 29.0% 0.7% 453
Property, Real Estate, and Community 


Association Managers 11-9141 1,426 18.0% 3.0% 812


Finance, Insurance, Real Estate (FIRE)







Real Estate Sales Agents 41-9022 1,530 17.1% 3.1% 556
Securities, Commodities, and Financial 


Services Sales Agents 41-3031 4,058 19.7% 2.4% 1,406


Computer and Information Systems 


Managers 11-3021 3,104 19.9% 2.1% 867


Computer Network Architects 15-1241 1,538 15.5% 1.1% 342


Computer Network Support Specialists 15-1231 1,551 17.3% 3.7% 464


Computer Occupations, All Other 15-1299 3,119 16.6% 2.8% 863


Computer Systems Analysts 15-1211 5,403 18.2% 2.0% 1,278


Computer User Support Specialists 15-1232 6,868 16.3% 3.8% 1,580


Database Administrators and Architects 15-1245 1,307 16.0% 1.8% 204


Information Security Analysts 15-1212 1,287 28.1% 3.3% 395
Network and Computer Systems 


Administrators 15-1244 3,453 14.7% 3.3% 567
Software Developers and Software 


Quality Assurance Analysts and Testers 15-1256 14,557 21.5% 2.0% 3,714
Web Developers and Digital Interface 


Designers 15-1257 1,076 18.6% 3.1% 410


Barbers 39-5011 420 19.4% 3.9% 213
First-Line Supervisors of Housekeeping 


and Janitorial Workers 37-1011 914 19.0% 3.9% 254
First-Line Supervisors of Landscaping, 


Lawn Service, and Groundskeeping 37-1012 671 18.1% 3.6% 175


Massage Therapists 31-9011 854 32.2% 2.9% 296
Personal Service Managers, All Other; 


Entertainment and Recreation 11-9198 2,437 16.5% 2.1% 1476


Pest Control Workers 37-2021 1,028 16.6% 3.6% 474


Education Administrators, 


Postsecondary 11-9033 813 24.9% 2.7% 233
Educational, Guidance, and Career 


Counselors and Advisors 21-1012 2,466 15.1% 2.4% 291


Information Technology (IT)


Personal Care Services


Education/Training







Speech-Language Pathologists 29-1127 1,882 18.8% 1.4% 155


Training and Development Specialists 13-1151 2,381 16.7% 2.5% 578


Lawyers 23-1011 2,758 19.1% 1.1% 755


Paralegals and Legal Assistants 23-2011 1,395 21.5% 2.7% 473


Food Service Managers 11-9051 1,642 17.3% 2.3% 377


Transportation, Storage, and 


Distribution Managers 11-3071 968 14.1% 2.5% 207


Electro-Mechanical and Mechatronics 


Technologists and Technicians 17-3024 218 9% 3.0% 13


Law, Public Safety, Corrections & Security


Hospitality & Food Services


Transportation, Distribution, & Logistics







Parent Sector NAICS NAICS Description 2
0


2
0


 J
o


b
s


2
0


2
0


 -
 2


0
2


5
 


%
 C


h
an


ge


A
vg


. E
ar


n
in


gs
 


P
e


r 
Jo


b


Lo
ca


ti
o


n
 


Q
u


o
ti


en
t


5-Year 


History 


Empl.  


Change


3261 Plastics Product Manufacturing 4,537 10% $69,456 1.08 1,201


3323


Architectural and Structural 


Metals Manufacturing 6,823 11% $73,785 2.43 1,378


3344


Semiconductor and Other 


Electronic Component 


Manufacturing 7,302 16% $129,500 2.70 2,860


4234


Professional and Commercial 


Equipment and Supplies 


Merchant Wholesalers 5,678 14% $108,484 1.15 1,474


4236


Household Appliances and 


Electrical and Electronic Goods 


Merchant Wholesalers 4,692 15% $129,067 1.83 1,192


4237


Hardware, and Plumbing and 


Heating Equipment and 


Supplies Merchant Wholesalers 2,183 21% $96,137 1.05 1,043


Finance and Insurance


5223


Activities Related to Credit 


Intermediation 8,241 31% $121,376 3.58 4,909


Real Estate and Rental 


and Leasing
5312


Offices of Real Estate Agents 


and Brokers 2,522 17% $64,956 1.02 1,140


Administrative and 


Support and Waste 


Management and 


Remediation Services 5611 Office Administrative Services 6,182 22% $99,652 1.61 1,657


Other Services (except 


Public Administration)


8113


Commercial and Industrial 


Machinery and Equipment 


(except Automotive and 


Electronic) Repair and 2,508 34% $102,531 1.52 1,707


Manufacturing 


Wholesale Trade


In-Demand Industries 


Snapshot: In-Demand Industries


WSNCT, 2020 Q3





		2021 TOL Draft (Public Comment) + Feb. 2021 SLC Revisions_FINAL

		2021 In-Demand Occs (Feb. 2021 SLC Revisions)_FINAL

		2021 In-Demand Industries (SLC)_FINAL






 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals 
with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 


 


 
 


 


NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF 


DIRECTORS and NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS CHIEF ELECTED OFFICIALS  


 


2021 – 2024 Local Plan Recommendation 
 
Background: 
 
The Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) requires each Workforce Development Board 
to develop a comprehensive 4-year local plan that analyzes the local workforce development area 
and lays out strategies and priorities to meet the economic and employment needs of the area’s job 
seekers and employers. This plan should be designed to promote communication, coordination, and 
collaboration among Adult Education and Literacy (AEL) grantees, employers, economic 
development organizations, community-based partners, and other service providers that support the 
economic growth of the workforce area while meeting the needs of employers and job seekers. 
 
 
Information: 
 
In the 2021 – 2024 Local Plan, Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas describes the current 
and future economic and workforce needs of our region and lays out how the Board will deploy its 
resources to meet those needs. It includes the 2021 Target Occupations List (TOL), which is designed 
to direct federal workforce funding to post-secondary programs that prepare workers for high-
demand, high-growth and emerging occupations that are critical to local economy of the Board Area.  
 
The plan also contains the 2021 In-Demand Occupations and In-Demand Industries. These two 
additional lists are customized to our service area and are established to identify key areas with 
current and potential impact to the local economy. Other notable information in the plan includes a 
description of the services available to our employer and jobseeker communities.  
 
 


Recommendation: 
I move that the North Central Texas Workforce Development Board approve the 2021-2024 Local 
Plan. 
 
Approval Date:  February 24, 2021 


 
Attachments: Proposed 2021-2024 Local Plan  
 
 








Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available 
upon request to individuals with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more 


information, visit www.dfwjobs.com.


This workforce product was funded by a grant awarded by the U.S. Department of Labor’s Employment and Training Administration. 
The product was created by the recipient and does not necessarily reflect the official position of the U.S. Department of Labor. The 
Department of Labor makes no guarantees, warranties, or assurances of any kind, express or implied, with respect to such information, 
including any information on linked sites and including, but not limited to, accuracy of the information or its completeness, timeliness, 


usefulness, adequacy, continued availability, or ownership. This product is copyrighted by the institution that created it.


Local Workforce Development Board Plan 
Program Years 2021–2024







Local Workforce Development Board 
Plan Program Years 2021–2024


Table of Contents
Introduction .................................................................................................. 1
Instructions for Completing the Board Plan Template ................................... 1
Part 1: Board Vision and Strategies .............................................................. 1


A. Vision and Goals ..................................................................................................................... 1
B. Board Strategies ...................................................................................................................... 3
C. High-Performing Board .......................................................................................................... 5


Part 2: Economic and Workforce Analysis ..................................................... 6
A. Regional Economic and Employment Needs Analysis .................................................... 6
B. Knowledge and Skills Analysis ...........................................................................................20
C. Labor Force Analysis and Trends ......................................................................................23
D. Workforce Development Analysis ......................................................................................29


Part 3: Core Programs ................................................................................ 34
B. Core Programs—Expand Access, Facilitate Development, and Improve Access ..... 39


Part 4: One-Stop Service Delivery ............................................................... 41
A. One-Stop Service Delivery System .....................................................................................41
B. Cooperative Agreements .....................................................................................................44
C. Employer Engagement, Economic Development, and Unemployment Insurance 
Program Coordination ..............................................................................................................44
D. Coordination of Wagner-Peyser Services ........................................................................47
E. Integrated, Technology-Enabled Intake and Case Management ................................. 48







Part 5: Workforce Investment Activities ...................................................... 48
A. Economic Development and Entrepreneurial/Microenterprise Activities .................. 48
B. Rapid Response Activity Coordination ..............................................................................49
C. Youth Activities and Services .............................................................................................50
D. Coordination with Secondary and Postsecondary Education Programs................... 52
E. Child Care and Early Learning .............................................................................................52
F. Transportation and Other Support Services .....................................................................53
G. Coordination of Adult Education and Literacy (AEL) ..................................................... 54


Part 6: Adult, Dislocated Workers, and Youth Services ................................ 55
A. Adult and Dislocated Worker Employment and Training............................................... 55
B. Priority to Recipients of Public Assistance and Low-Income Individuals .................. 57


Part 7: Fiscal Agent, Grants, and Contracts ................................................. 58
A. Fiscal Agent ............................................................................................................................58
B. Sub-Grants and Contracts ...................................................................................................59


Part 8: Performance ................................................................................... 60
A. Board Performance Targets................................................................................................60


Part 9: Training and Services ...................................................................... 61
A. Individual Training Accounts (ITAs) ...................................................................................61
B. ITA Limitations .......................................................................................................................61


Part 10: Apprenticeship .............................................................................. 62
A. Registered Apprenticeship Programs ...............................................................................62
B. ApprenticeshipTexas ............................................................................................................62


Part 11: Public Comment ............................................................................ 63
Appendix: Texas Workforce Investment Council Requirements  .................. 64
Local Workforce Development Board Strategic Planning ............................. 64


Focus on Employers .................................................................................................................64
Engage in Partnerships ............................................................................................................65
Align System Elements .............................................................................................................67
Improve and Integrate Programs ...........................................................................................67







• 1 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Introduction


Instructions for Completing the Board Plan Template


Part 1: Board Vision and Strategies


Under the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA) §108 (20 Code of Federal Regulations 
§679.500–580), each Local Workforce Development Board (Board) is required to develop and 
submit to the state a comprehensive four-year plan (Board Plan) that identifies and describes 
policies and procedures as well as local activities that are in line with the State Plan. This Board 
Plan must be developed openly and be available to the public for comment for at least 15 days, 
but no more than 30 days, particularly to members of the business and educational communities 
as well as various other labor organizations. Along with submission of the Board Plan to the Texas 
Workforce Commission (TWC), the Board must submit all public comments of disagreement with 
the plan to TWC.


At the end of the first two-year period, the appropriate chief elected officials (CEOs) and the Board 
will review the local plan and prepare and submit modifications to reflect changes in the labor 
market and economic conditions, factors affecting the implementation of the plan, changes in 
financing, changes to the structure of the Board, and/or the need to revise strategies to meet local 
performance goals.


Answer each part and section separately and do not combine sections. If the same response is 
used for multiple sections, please repeat the response. For example, do not state “See Section 
2.B.” as the response.


When developing the Board Plan, use the checklist and elements provided in Attachment 2 to 
ensure that the questions are thoroughly addressed.


Do not provide separate additional attachments.


For example: If it is important that additional data, map, or some other attachment, appendix, 
or additional content be submitted with your plan, please attach it to the plan and reference the 
attachment in the appropriate places in the plan.


The strategic elements of the Local Workforce Development Board Planning Guidelines 
(Guidelines) are as follows:


(WIOA §108(b)(1)(E); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(5))


Boards must include a description of the Board’s strategic vision to support regional economic 
growth and economic self-sufficiency. The description must include:
 
• goals for preparing an educated and skilled workforce, including early education services, 


and services for youth and individuals with barriers to employment; and


A. Vision and Goals







• 2 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


The mission of Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas (WSNCT) is “to advance 
business driven solutions that promote economic growth, opportunity, and a skilled 
workforce,” leading to our vision of being “the recognized leader in building tomorrow’s 
workforce.” Every building block of our organization is constructed upon our values:


 ■ Inclusion 
Leverage our collective genius. 
We value diversity and believe inclusion drives innovation and connects us closer to 
the communities we serve. We are building a culture where difference is valued and 
respected. 


 ■ Community 
We’re in this together. 
We create positive opportunities by collaborating with our partners to transform the 
social and economic vitality of those we serve. 


 ■ Leadership 
Courage to shape a better future. 
We lead by example because everyone has ability to pursue excellence and make a 
positive impact. 


 ■ Trust 
Operate with integrity and respect. 
We say what we mean, keep our promises and stay open minded to new ideas.


The North Central Texas Workforce Development Board is the governing body for the North 
Central Texas Workforce Development Area (WDA), providing mission-based leadership 
and strategic governance.  The Board has identified the following key priorities in support 
of preparing an educated and skilled workforce, including early education services, and 
services for youth and individuals with barriers to employment: 


 ■ Community Partnerships: Achieving ambitious workforce and economic goals will 
require cross-sector partnerships that create innovative solutions for workers and break 
down silos between organizations. WSNCT will cultivate partnerships at both strategic 
and operational levels in order to build awareness of programs, share information, and 
leverage public and private resources to meet goals.


 ■ Career Exploration: Opportunities to broaden career awareness and exploration 
can better connect youth and adults to in-demand jobs as well as fulfill the needs of 
employers. WSNCT will support career exploration opportunities that equip workers 
with the skills and knowledge required for success in a rapidly changing and digitally 
driven economy.


 ■ Child Care Quality: Improving the quality of child care in the 14-county North Central 
Texas Workforce Development Area is critical to preparing children for school and 
supporting their parents in their own learning and development. WSNCT believes 
that high-quality child care leads to greater school readiness, long-term educational 
attainment, and 2-generation economic prosperity.


• goals relating to the performance accountability measures based on performance 
indicators described in WIOA §116(b)(2)(A).







• 3 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Performance improvement continues to be a priority for WSNCT.  Our workforce system 
incorporates strategies and processes which closely monitor service delivery and 
performance (including the mandated performance measures) to identify areas needing 
improvement.  We deploy a systematic approach to review data/performance indicators, 
provide program oversight and technical assistance, as well as monitor activities based on 
elements outlined in our Quality Assurance risk assessment.


(WIOA §108(b)(1)(F); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(6))


Boards must include a description of the Board’s strategy to work with the entities carrying 
out the core programs and with the required partners to align resources available to the local 
workforce development area (workforce area) to achieve the vision and goals.


B. Board Strategies


The Board administers and provides oversight to a competitively procured Workforce 
Subrecipient that is responsible for direct service delivery of core programs and the 
coordination of related, and possibly co-located, programs not administered by the Board.  
Services provided by the Subrecipient include service delivery strategies to employers 
and career seekers who are able to access a continuum of services through 12 workforce 
centers located throughout the WDA.  Our Workforce Subrecipient is capable of delivering 
fully integrated and leveraged workforce services, including WIOA Adult, Youth and 
Dislocated Worker services, TANF/Choices, Non-Custodial Parent Choices (NCP Choices), 
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Employment and Training (SNAP E&T), Child 
Care Assistance, Employer Services, Vocational Rehabilitation Services, Veteran Services, 
and Trade Adjustment Assistance.


WSNCT ensures that multiple levels of services are offered to employers and career seekers, 
and Wagner-Peyser Employment Services (ES) is among the services available. In 2003, 
the Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) implemented the Texas Model for the delivery 
of ES services. Under the Texas Model, TWC maintains administrative responsibility while 
the Workforce Subrecipient has responsibility for day-to-day guidance of state ES staff. 
The Workforce Subrecipient shares responsibility for directing daily work assignments, 
assigning individual performance goals, coordinating hiring, initiating disciplinary action 
and evaluating staff performance.  All direction and guidance given to ES employees is 
consistent with the provisions of state and federal laws, rules and regulations governing 
the administration and delivery of the ES program. TWC provides technical support and 
quality assurance to the WSNCT Workforce Subrecipient through local Integrated Service 
Area Managers.  The WSNCT Workforce Subrecipient coordinates with ES staff to provide 
universal access to job search and placement assistance, job referrals, labor market 
information and an array of other services to both career seekers and employers.


WSNCT recognizes the correlation between economic development, employment 
opportunity and sustainability. WSNCT actively engages with the regional economic 
developers to devise and implement strategies that meet the specific skill demands of 
local employers and equipping career seekers with the necessary skill sets to meet that 
demand. Our primary objective is to enhance and sustain economic vitality and employment 
opportunities in our region. WSNCT’s regional partnerships allow us to develop, implement, 
and refine programs and services that more closely align with the employment and skills 







• 4 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


training needs of the North Central Texas region. We will maintain our strategic alliances 
with workforce/economic development organizations to keep pace with the evolving 
economy, identify job growth, and develop a well-trained and prepared workforce to meet 
local employer needs.


The development and expansion of apprenticeship programs is embedded into one 
of the Board’s key priorities and will remain a focus for WSNCT going forward.  The 
Apprenticeship Navigator and WSNCT staff will continue to support the development of 
new Registered Apprenticeship (RA) programs as well as the expansion of existing RA 
programs through targeted industry outreach supported by labor market data, roundtable 
collaborations with community partners and stakeholders, and employer needs.  Through 
engaging with employers, gathering local wisdom and analyzing labor market data, 
WSNCT will identify where training gaps and common industry needs exist and position 
the Board to address specific employer needs. WSNCT will develop employer consortiums 
where occupational skill sets and training overlap.  In addition to employer engagement, 
WSNCT has partnerships with community and technical colleges, economic development 
organizations, and a solid relationship with the regional Department of Labor Registered 
Apprenticeship representatives.  These collaborations will continue to help employers 
navigate through the apprenticeship development journey.  


WSNCT continues to expand integration and co-location efforts with Vocational 
Rehabilitation Services (VRS) to enable WSNCT and VRS to leverage resources and better 
serve our shared customers.  WSNCT became one of the first Board areas to fully integrate 
VRS into a workforce center, and additional integrations have been completed throughout 
our North Central Texas region.


Recognizing that English can be critical to a participant’s success in the job market, 
WSNCT actively partners with Adult Education and Literacy (AEL) providers to offer 
instruction and remediation, including English as a Second Language (ESL), as a part of 
a participant’s service continuum. Integration of AEL with the service delivery system is 
vital to the deployment of WIOA. In support of AEL grant recipients providing activities 
that promote student success in career and higher education goals, the AEL/Workforce 
Regional Coalition (Regional Coalition) was implemented to ensure integration of services 
within the 14-county WSNCT area. The objectives of the Regional Coalition are to resolve 
shared transitional issues, address local concerns and needs, share information and best 
practices, and explore systems and services for continuous improvement in order to close 
strategic and operational gaps. The Regional Coalition has the authority and responsibility 
to carry out the following functions:


 ■ Develop strategies for system improvements,
 ■ Oversee, analyze, and adjust strategy implementation,
 ■ Share best practices to assist program achievements and promote continuous 


improvement, and
 ■ Track and support the achievement of state, federal and/or local performance goals 


and targets.







• 5 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


(WIOA §108(b)(18); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(17))


Boards must include a description of the actions the Board will take toward becoming or 
remaining a high-performing Board, consistent with the factors developed by the Texas Workforce 
Investment Council (TWIC).


C. High-Performing Board


Continuing our journey of excellence, WSNCT has established a culture of continuous 
improvement.  The following are some examples of our efforts to continuously improve:


In 2020, WSNCT submitted a full, 50-page Malcolm Baldrige Criteria application with 
the Quality Texas Foundation.  While being recognized for participating in this rigorous 
review, most importantly, WSNCT will receive valuable feedback to refine our management 
systems and build for the future.    


The year 2020 marked the 10th consecutive year WSNCT has received, in partnership 
with North Central Texas Council of Governments, the Achievement of Excellence in 
Procurement® (AEP) award.  The annual AEP award was established by the National 
Procurement Institute, Inc. (NPI) in 1995 and recognizes organizational excellence in public 
procurement.  The criteria continue to become more robust and are designed to measure 
innovation, professionalism, productivity, e-procurement, and leadership attributes of 
the procurement organization.  Applying annually ensures that we continue to raise our 
standard of excellence in procurement.  


WSNCT continues to utilize an Enterprise Content Management (ECM) application, 
Laserfiche, to convert physical participant files to an electronic format to increase 
accessibility and reliability of participant files/documents and maintain compliance with 
programmatic work processes via the design and implementation of workflow automation.  
Also, Laserfiche is utilized to maintain compliance with our document/file retention policy. 
Workflow automation is designed to improve operational efficiency, reduce programmatic 
cycle-times and minimize opportunities for staff and participant error. 


Within WSNCT’s data management and analysis activities, Tableau, which is a data analysis 
and visualization tool, is often utilized to conduct an enhanced analysis of available data 
from various data repositories for planning and decision-making purposes.  Data outcomes 
are displayed on locally developed dashboards that are customizable at the user’s request. 
Local Tableau dashboards are typically accessible via a web-based interface to users 
that have access to the specified URL.  WSNCT ensures that PII (Personally Identifiable 
Information) data elements/fields are not posted to the web-based accessible tool. 


WSNCT continues to emphasize fiscal management by completing the following monthly:


 ■ Review Subrecipient’s year-to-date financial data and evaluate expenditures and trends, 
analyze grant level expenditures compared to established targets, address variances 
from target levels and discuss strategies for correction.


 ■ Review Board level year-to-date financial data and evaluate expenditures and trends, 
complete various reports reflecting the Board level expenditures compared to 
established targets, discuss variances with the management staff and as appropriate 
identify strategies to address improvements and ensure Board level funding is effectively 







• 6 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


managed. 
 ■ Review overall grant-to-date financial data and evaluate expenditures and trends, 


complete various reports reflecting the cumulative grant-to-date expenditures compared 
to established targets, discuss variances with management staff and if necessary, 
develop strategies for correction to ensure each grant is effectively managed.  


To maintain comprehensive compliance, WSNCT performs continuous fiscal and 
programmatic risk-based monitoring.  Staff are engaged full-time in specific compliance 
monitoring and follow up, including follow up review of corrective actions and implementation 
of improvements.  Customer issues and requests for service received by WSNCT are 
entered into the Laserfiche application for consistent action by appropriate staff and timed 
follow up to ensure timely responses.


Part 2: Economic and Workforce Analysis


(WIOA §108(b)(1)(A); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(1))


Boards must include a regional analysis of the following:
 
• The economic conditions, including existing and emerging in-demand industry sectors, in-


demand occupations, and target occupations


• The employment needs of employers in existing and emerging in-demand industry sectors, 
in-demand occupations, and target occupations


A. Regional Economic and Employment Needs Analysis


A thorough understanding of the economic conditions and employment needs within our 
WSNCT service area is paramount to the deployment of initiatives that help employers and 
workers connect successfully. To gain an understanding of the short- and long-term needs 
of our region, the process criteria utilized to identify our in-demand industries, in-demand 
occupations, and target occupations include current employment, historical employment 
change, employment projected growth, and that wages are on par with the most current 
cost of living. The variables in the process criteria that measure current employment and 
wages are especially important in assessing economic conditions and guiding us toward 
areas of high opportunity. 


Our in-demand industries highlight the areas that have shown steady and robust employment 
growth and that have become uniquely positioned in our region, performing above national 
concentration averages. The in-demand occupations and target occupations lists are 
created with similar parameters as those of the in-demand industries but go down a level 
that is more reflective of the employment needs of our employers. Each occupation list 
layouts the occupations that are most impactful for the sustainability of our local economy, 
which should be supported with a skilled talent pipeline to help employers meet needs.







• 7 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


In-Demand Industries


The process criteria to identify our in-demand industries measure the following:
 


 ■ 2020 Employment
 ■ Average Earnings Per Job
 ■ 2020-2025% Employment Change
 ■ Location Quotient
 ■ 5-History Employment Change


 The process criteria resulted in 10 in-demand industries. The in-demand industries were 
identified using the “four-digit” North American Industry Classification System (NAICS), 
but if examined through their parent NAICS categorization, Manufacturing (NAICS 31-33) 
emerged as the largest sector by employment with three in-demand industries. Closely 
behind Manufacturing was Wholesale Trade (NAICS 42), which is also represented by 
three in-demand industries at the “four-digit” NAICS level. Other in-demand industries were 
Activities Related to Credit Intermediation (NAICS 5223) under Finance and Insurance, 
which is the largest industry in the list by employment at the “four-digit” NAICS level, with 
Office Administration Services (NAICS 5611) next in terms of employment representation. 
Office of Real Estate Agents and Brokers (NAICS 5312) and Commercial and Industrial 
Machinery and Equipment (except Automotive and Electronic) Repair and Maintenance 
(8112) conclude the list, both showing similar 2020 employment figures. 


Although the process criteria verify the in-demand industries’ average earnings per job 
exceed the living wage for the WSNCT service area, is it noteworthy to mention that all the 
in-demand industries exceed the living wage threshold by a large amount. The smallest 
difference between our living wage and the wage paid on average per job is $40,800 
annually.







• 8 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


 In-Demand Industries      


Parent Sector NAICS NAICS Descrip�on 2020 
Empl.... 


2020 - 
2025 % 
Change 


Avg. 
Earnings 
Per Job 


2019 
Loca�on 
Quo�ent 


Manufacturing  


3261 Plas�cs Product 
Manufacturing 4537 10% $69,456 1.08 


3323 
Architectural and 
Structural Metals 
Manufacturing 


6823 11% $73,785 2.43 


3344 
Semiconductor and Other 
Electronic Component 
Manufacturing 


7302 16% $129,50
0 2.70 


Wholesale Trade 


4234 


Professional and 
Commercial Equipment 
and Supplies Merchant 
Wholesalers 


5678 14% $108,48
4 1.15 


4236 


Household Appliances and 
Electrical and Electronic 
Goods Merchant 
Wholesalers 


4692 15% $129,06
7 1.83 


4237 


Hardware, and Plumbing 
and Hea�ng Equipment 
and Supplies Merchant 
Wholesalers 


2183 21% $96,137 1.05 


Finance and 
Insurance 5223 Ac�vi�es Related to Credit 


Intermedia�on 8241 31% $121,37
6 3.58 


Real Estate and 
Rental and Leasing 5312 Offices of Real Estate 


Agents and Brokers 2522 17% $64,956 1.02 


Administra�ve and 
Support and Waste 
Management and 
Remedia�on Services 


5611 Office Administra�ve 
Services 6182 22% $99,652 1.61 


Other Services 
(except Public 
Administra�on) 


8113 


Commercial and Industrial 
Machinery and Equipment 
(except Automo�ve and 
Electronic) Repair and 
Maintenance 


2508 34% $102,53
1 1.52 


 
Source: Emsi & JobsEQ


In-Demand Occupations


The process criteria to identify our in-demand industries measure the following:
 


 ■ 2020 Employment
 ■ 2020-2025% Employment Change
 ■ Unemployment Rate







• 9 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


 ■ 5-History Employment Change


The primary of purpose of the process criteria launched to determine in-demand occupations 
was to find those occupations that have a large numeral presence, and therefore a large 
impact, in our economy. Additionally, these occupations were identified because of their 
economic resilience, as measured by the unemployment rate, and strong historical and 
projected growth. All the in-demand occupations have had an impactful growth in the past 
five years within our service area, and their growth in the next five years is expected to 
exceed the current median growth of all the occupations that make up our local economy. 


The in-demand occupations can be grouped into 10 occupational groups. The occupation 
groups with biggest number of occupations are (1) Health Care, (2) Construction, Design, & 
Mechanical Technology, (3) Business Administration & Professional Services, (4) Finance, 
Insurance, Real Estate (FIRE), and lastly (5) Information Technology (IT). These five 
occupation groups have at least 11 occupations.


At the occupation level, the largest occupations by current employment are diverse. The 
largest occupations, sorted from largest to smallest employment size, are (1) General and 
Operations Managers, (2) Software Developers and Software Quality Assurance Analysts 
and Testers, (3) Registered Nurses, (4) Project Management Specialists and Business 
Operations Specialists, All Other, and (5) Maintenance and Repair Workers, General. These 
occupations vary in industry sector, skillsets, and level of education needed to enter the 
respective labor markets.







• 10 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


In-Demand Occupations


Occupation SOC 2020 Jobs


2020 ‐ 
2025 % 
Change


Unemploym
ent Rate


5‐Year History 
Total 
Employment 
Change


Chiropractors 29‐1011 362 27.7% 1.3% 181
Clinical, Counseling, and School 
Psychologists 19‐3031 740 17.0% 1.8% 135


Dental Assistants 31‐9091 3,619 19.2% 3.0% 599


Dental Hygienists 29‐1292 1,810 21.2% 0.9% 378


Dentists, General 29‐1021 1,031 20.0% 0.9% 195


Healthcare Social Workers 21‐1022 758 18.1% 1.7% 109


Medical Assistants 31‐9092 5,097 19.5% 2.7% 982
Medical Dosimetrists, Medical Records 
Specialists, and Health Technologists  29‐2098 1,834 16.9% 2.8% 432
Medical Scientists, Except 
Epidemiologists 19‐1042 310 23.0% 2.8% 115
Medical Secretaries and Administrative 
Assistants 43‐6013 6,632 15.5% 3.8% 1074


Nurse Practitioners 29‐1171 1,050 23.6% 1.6% 311


Ophthalmic Medical Technicians 29‐2057 561 15.1% 3.5% 169


Phlebotomists 31‐9097 580 24.0% 2.4% 155


Physician Assistants 29‐1071 638 25.2% 1.4% 141
Physicians, All Other; and 
Ophthalmologists, Except Pediatric 29‐1228 1,770 16.3% 0.8% 418
Radiologic Technologists and 
Technicians 29‐2034 797 16.6% 1.4% 138


Registered Nurses 29‐1141 13,513 15.2% 1.7% 2008


Respiratory Therapists 29‐1126 696 17.2% 1.3% 108


Social and Human Service Assistants 21‐1093 1,329 17.2% 3.8% 145


Health Care







• 11 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Occupation SOC 2020 Jobs


2020 ‐ 
2025 % 
Change


Unemploym
ent Rate


5‐Year History 
Total 
Employment 
Change


Substance Abuse, Behavioral Disorder, 
and Mental Health Counselors 21‐1018 946 26.6% 2.0% 243


Surgical Technologists 29‐2055 495 14.9% 3.4% 100


Architectural and Engineering 
Managers 11‐9041 1,006 14.1% 2.0% 152
Bus and Truck Mechanics and Diesel 
Engine Specialists 49‐3031 1,818 13.7% 4.2% 188


Civil Engineers 17‐2051 1,452 16.1% 1.6% 378


Compliance Officers 13‐1041 1,785 15.0% 1.0% 586


Construction Managers 11‐9021 2,771 14.0% 2.5% 391


Cost Estimators 13‐1051 1,643 15.0% 2.6% 236


Electronics Engineers, Except Computer 17‐2072 1,190 14.3% 2.7% 270
Farm Equipment Mechanics and 
Service Technicians 49‐3041 246 22.6% 3.1% 102
First‐Line Supervisors of Construction 
Trades and Extraction Workers 47‐1011 5,103 13.7% 4.3% 445
First‐Line Supervisors of Mechanics, 
Installers, and Repairers 49‐1011 3,175 14.0% 3.2% 516
Heating, Air Conditioning, and 
Refrigeration Mechanics and Installers 49‐9021 1,932 21.0% 3.4% 761


Industrial Engineers 17‐2112 1,858 16.0% 2.3% 411


Industrial Machinery Mechanics 49‐9041 2,408 20.7% 3.3% 745
Maintenance and Repair Workers, 
General 49‐9071 10,222 14.6% 3.6% 1548


Mechanical Engineers 17‐2141 1,449 13.7% 2.5% 300
Telecommunications Equipment 
Installers and Repairers, Except Line  49‐2022 1,913 16.4% 2.7% 706
Telecommunications Line Installers and 
Repairers 49‐9052 1,482 14.8% 3.1% 268


Construction, Design, & Mechanical Technology







• 12 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Occupation SOC 2020 Jobs


2020 ‐ 
2025 % 
Change


Unemploym
ent Rate


5‐Year History 
Total 
Employment 
Change


Accountants and Auditors 13‐2011 9,392 13.9% 2.1% 1,405


Billing and Posting Clerks 43‐3021 3,728 15.0% 2.7% 182
Data Scientists and Mathematical 
Science Occupations, All Other 15‐2098 206 16.0% 2.2% 100


General and Operations Managers 11‐1021 17,618 14.7% 2.6% 4,133


Human Resources Managers 11‐3121 912 16.2% 3.2% 320


Human Resources Specialists 13‐1071 4,121 13.8% 3.0% 1,064


Management Analysts 13‐1111 3,848 19.7% 3.5% 910
Market Research Analysts and 
Marketing Specialists 13‐1161 3,533 23.6% 3.3% 1,219


Marketing Managers 11‐2021 1,549 17.4% 3.5% 465


Medical and Health Services Managers 11‐9111 2,514 17.4% 1.6% 495


Operations Research Analysts 15‐2031 1,047 24.3% 1.9% 283
Project Management Specialists and 
Business Operations Specialists, All  13‐1198 10,288 14.9% 3.3% 2,278


Sales Managers 11‐2022 2,927 14.1% 3.3% 540


Veterinarians 29‐1131 524 18.2% 1.2% 169
Veterinary Assistants and Laboratory 
Animal Caretakers 31‐9096 1,027 14.9% 3.0% 155


Claims Adjusters, Examiners, and 
Investigators 13‐1031 1,469 15.1% 2.6% 130


Credit Analysts 13‐2041 992 15.1% 2.4% 210
Financial and Investment Analysts, 
Financial Risk Specialists, and Financial  13‐2098 4,126 16.2% 2.0% 875


Financial Examiners 13‐2061 619 18.2% 2.8% 262


Business Administration & Professional Services


Finance, Insurance, Real Estate (FIRE)







• 13 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Occupation SOC 2020 Jobs


2020 ‐ 
2025 % 
Change


Unemploym
ent Rate


5‐Year History 
Total 
Employment 
Change


Financial Managers 11‐3031 4,397 22.2% 1.9% 1,057
Insurance Claims and Policy Processing 
Clerks 43‐9041 2,466 18.9% 3.4% 328


Insurance Sales Agents 41‐3021 5,933 20.0% 3.0% 687


Loan Officers 13‐2072 2,641 15.2% 2.2% 518


Personal Financial Advisors 13‐2052 922 29.0% 0.7% 453
Property, Real Estate, and Community 
Association Managers 11‐9141 1,426 18.0% 3.0% 812


Real Estate Sales Agents 41‐9022 1,530 17.1% 3.1% 556
Securities, Commodities, and Financial 
Services Sales Agents 41‐3031 4,058 19.7% 2.4% 1,406


Computer and Information Systems 
Managers 11‐3021 3,104 19.9% 2.1% 867


Computer Network Architects 15‐1241 1,538 15.5% 1.1% 342


Computer Network Support Specialists 15‐1231 1,551 17.3% 3.7% 464


Computer Occupations, All Other 15‐1299 3,119 16.6% 2.8% 863


Computer Systems Analysts 15‐1211 5,403 18.2% 2.0% 1,278


Computer User Support Specialists 15‐1232 6,868 16.3% 3.8% 1,580


Database Administrators and Architects 15‐1245 1,307 16.0% 1.8% 204


Information Security Analysts 15‐1212 1,287 28.1% 3.3% 395
Network and Computer Systems 
Administrators 15‐1244 3,453 14.7% 3.3% 567
Software Developers and Software 
Quality Assurance Analysts and Testers 15‐1256 14,557 21.5% 2.0% 3,714
Web Developers and Digital Interface 
Designers 15‐1257 1,076 18.6% 3.1% 410


Information Technology (IT)







• 14 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Source: Emsi & JobsEQ


Occupation SOC 2020 Jobs


2020 ‐ 
2025 % 
Change


Unemploym
ent Rate


5‐Year History 
Total 
Employment 
Change


Barbers 39‐5011 420 19.4% 3.9% 213
First‐Line Supervisors of Housekeeping 
and Janitorial Workers 37‐1011 914 19.0% 3.9% 254
First‐Line Supervisors of Landscaping, 
Lawn Service, and Groundskeeping  37‐1012 671 18.1% 3.6% 175


Massage Therapists 31‐9011 854 32.2% 2.9% 296
Personal Service Managers, All Other; 
Entertainment and Recreation  11‐9198 2,437 16.5% 2.1% 1476


Pest Control Workers 37‐2021 1,028 16.6% 3.6% 474


Education Administrators, 
Postsecondary 11‐9033 813 24.9% 2.7% 233
Educational, Guidance, and Career 
Counselors and Advisors 21‐1012 2,466 15.1% 2.4% 291


Speech‐Language Pathologists 29‐1127 1,882 18.8% 1.4% 155


Training and Development Specialists 13‐1151 2,381 16.7% 2.5% 578


Lawyers 23‐1011 2,758 19.1% 1.1% 473


Paralegals and Legal Assistants 23‐2011 1,395 21.5% 2.7% 755


Food Service Managers 11‐9051 1,642 17.3% 2.3% 377


Transportation, Storage, and 
Distribution Managers 11‐3071 968 14.1% 2.5% 207


Electro‐Mechanical and Mechatronics 
Technologists and Technicians 17‐3024 218 9.2% 3.0% 13


Law, Public Safety, Corrections & Security


Hospitality & Food Services


Transportation, Distribution, & Logistics


Personal Care Services


Education/Training







• 15 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Target Occupations


The process criteria to identify our in-demand industries measure the following:


 ■ Typical Entry Level Education
 ■ 2020 Employment 
 ■ Entry Hourly Earnings
 ■ 2020 - 2025% Employment Change 
 ■ Unemployment Rate 
 ■ 5-History Employment Change


The target occupations, like the in-demand occupations, shed light on the employment 
needs of employers. However, the target occupations’ process criteria go several steps 
further and measure educational attainment requirements and that wages meet our region’s 
living wage. The target occupations show that our region’s employment opportunities are 
diverse, an indicator of resiliency against unpredictable economic downturns, and that key 
areas of innovation continue to grow. 


Of the 10 occupation groups into which the list can be divided, Construction, Design, 
and Mechanical Technology, which is represented by 14 occupations, is the largest 
grouping. The second largest group is Business Administration & Professional Services 
with 12 occupations. Other occupation groups with a high number of occupations are 
Finance, Insurance, Real Estate (FIRE) with 10 occupations; and Information Technology 
(IT), composed of 13 occupations.  Additionally, Health Care is represented with seven 
occupations. After this group, there is a steep drop off in the size of occupation groups. 
 
Although it is important to recognize the makeup and diversity of the target occupations 
list, analyzing the size of each occupation group in terms of current employment also 
provides valuable insights. The group with the largest employment presence in our region 
is Business Administration & Professional Services at 57,954 jobs, with IT in a close second 
place at 43,264 jobs. After Administration & Professional Services and IT, the number of 
jobs per occupation group decreases significantly, but those occupation groups still have 
a large presence and are an important part of our economy. The next group tier includes 
FIRE with 30,578 jobs, Construction at 29,052 jobs, and Health Care, which is represented 
in the list with 21,876 jobs.  
 
At the occupation level, the top five largest occupations by employment are General and 
Operations Managers, Software Developers and Software Quality Assurance Analysts and 
Testers, Registered Nurses, Project Management Specialists and Business Operations 
Specialists, All Other, and Accountants and Auditors. These five largest occupations’ 
median wages range from $73,300 to $103,900 per year. 
 
Other indicators that should be noted are the unemployment rate and projected employment 
growth. All the target occupations have a low unemployment rate, ranging from 0.07% to 
4.3%, and the projected employment growth of the occupations is an average of 17.6% and 
3,352 jobs in the next five years.







• 16 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Target Occupations


Occupation SOC
Typical Entry Level 
Education


2020 
Empl.


2020 ‐ 
2025 % 
Change


Ann 
Median 
Wage


Unempl. 
Rate


Telecommunications Line Installers and 
Repairers 49‐9052


High school 
diploma or  1,482 14.8% $43,600 3.1%


Bus and Truck Mechanics and Diesel 
Engine Specialists 49‐3031


High school 
diploma or  1,818 13.7% $49,300 4.2%


Industrial Machinery Mechanics 49‐9041
High school 
diploma or  2,408 20.7% $49,700 3.3%


Telecommunications Equipment 
Installers and Repairers, Except Line  49‐2022


Postsecondary 
nondegree award 1,913 16.4% $56,800 2.7%


First‐Line Supervisors of Construction 
Trades and Extraction Workers 47‐1011


High school 
diploma or  5,103 13.7% $57,800 4.3%


Cost Estimators 13‐1051 Bachelor's degree 1,643 15.0% $61,700 2.6%
First‐Line Supervisors of Mechanics, 
Installers, and Repairers 49‐1011


High school 
diploma or  3,175 14.0% $68,000 3.2%


Compliance Officers 13‐1041 Bachelor's degree 1,785 15.0% $70,200 1.0%


Civil Engineers 17‐2051 Bachelor's degree 1,452 16.1% $81,400 1.6%


Construction Managers 11‐9021 Bachelor's degree 2,771 14.0% $90,900 2.5%


Mechanical Engineers 17‐2141 Bachelor's degree 1,449 13.7% $91,700 2.5%


Industrial Engineers 17‐2112 Bachelor's degree 1,858 16.0% $93,100 2.3%


Electronics Engineers, Except Computer 17‐2072 Bachelor's degree 1,190 14.3% $117,100 2.7%


Architectural and Engineering Managers 11‐9041 Bachelor's degree 1,006 14.1% $150,100 2.0%


Human Resources Specialists 13‐1071 Bachelor's degree 4,121 13.8% $60,700 3.0%
Market Research Analysts and Marketing 
Specialists 13‐1161 Bachelor's degree 3,533 23.6% $68,400 3.3%


Accountants and Auditors 13‐2011 Bachelor's degree 9,392 13.9% $73,300 2.1%
Project Management Specialists and 
Business Operations Specialists, All Other 13‐1198 Bachelor's degree 10,288 14.9% $76,900 3.3%


Operations Research Analysts 15‐2031 Bachelor's degree 1,047 24.3% $82,400 1.9%


Management Analysts 13‐1111 Bachelor's degree 3,848 19.7% $83,100 3.5%


Construction, Design, & Mechanical Technology


Business Administration & Professional Services







• 17 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Occupation SOC
Typical Entry Level 
Education


2020 
Empl.


2020 ‐ 
2025 % 
Change


Ann 
Median 
Wage


Unempl. 
Rate


Data Scientists and Mathematical Science 
Occupations, All Other 15‐2098 Bachelor's degree 206 16.0% $91,200 2.2%


Medical and Health Services Managers 11‐9111 Bachelor's degree 2,514 17.4% $94,800 1.6%


General and Operations Managers 11‐1021 Bachelor's degree 17,618 14.7% $103,900 2.6%


Human Resources Managers 11‐3121 Bachelor's degree 912 16.2% $120,700 3.2%


Sales Managers 11‐2022 Bachelor's degree 2,927 14.1% $127,700 3.3%


Marketing Managers 11‐2021 Bachelor's degree 1,549 17.4% $128,800 3.5%


Insurance Sales Agents 41‐3021
High school 
diploma or  5,933 20.0% $66,300 3.0%


Loan Officers 13‐2072 Bachelor's degree 2,641 15.2% $70,700 2.2%
Insurance Claims and Policy Processing 
Clerks 43‐9041


High school 
diploma or  2,466 18.9% $38,200 3.4%


Securities, Commodities, and Financial 
Services Sales Agents 41‐3031 Bachelor's degree 4,058 19.7% $56,300 2.4%
Property, Real Estate, and Community 
Association Managers 11‐9141


High school 
diploma or  1,426 18.0% $63,200 3.0%


Claims Adjusters, Examiners, and 
Investigators 13‐1031


High school 
diploma or  1,469 15.1% $66,200 2.6%


Real Estate Sales Agents 41‐9022
High school 
diploma or  1,530 17.1% $66,300 3.1%


Credit Analysts 13‐2041 Bachelor's degree 992 15.1% $68,800 2.4%
Financial and Investment Analysts, 
Financial Risk Specialists, and Financial  13‐2098 Bachelor's degree 4,126 16.2% $76,900 2.0%


Personal Financial Advisors 13‐2052 Bachelor's degree 922 29.0% $79,100 0.7%


Financial Examiners 13‐2061 Bachelor's degree 619 18.2% $83,500 2.8%


Financial Managers 11‐3031 Bachelor's degree 4,397 22.2% $136,200 1.9%


Computer User Support Specialists 15‐1232
Some college, no 
degree 6868 16.3% $46,600 3.8%


Web Developers and Digital Interface 
Designers 15‐1257 Associate's degree 1,076 18.6% $70,000 3.1%


Computer Network Support Specialists 15‐1231 Associate's degree 1,551 17.3% $73,100 3.7%


Information Technology (IT)


Finance, Insurance, Real Estate (FIRE)







• 18 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Occupation SOC
Typical Entry Level 
Education


2020 
Empl.


2020 ‐ 
2025 % 
Change


Ann 
Median 
Wage


Unempl. 
Rate


Network and Computer Systems 
Administrators 15‐1244 Bachelor's degree 3,453 14.7% $85,700 3.3%


Computer Systems Analysts 15‐1211 Bachelor's degree 5,403 18.2% $91,400 2.0%


Computer Occupations, All Other 15‐1299 Bachelor's degree 3,119 16.6% $91,600 2.8%


Database Administrators and Architects 15‐1245 Bachelor's degree 1,307 16.0% $98,400 1.8%
Software Developers and Software 
Quality Assurance Analysts and Testers 15‐1256 Bachelor's degree 14,557 21.5% $107,600 2.0%


Information Security Analysts 15‐1212 Bachelor's degree 1,287 28.1% $108,400 3.3%


Computer Network Architects 15‐1241 Bachelor's degree 1,538 15.5% $124,000 1.1%
Computer and Information Systems 
Managers 11‐3021 Bachelor's degree 3,104 19.9% $149,600 2.1%


Dental Assistants 31‐9091
Postsecondary 
nondegree award 3,619 19.2% $40,800 3.0%


Substance Abuse, Behavioral Disorder, 
and Mental Health Counselors 21‐1018 Bachelor's degree 946 26.6% $46,100 2.0%


Surgical Technologists 29‐2055 Associate's degree 495 14.9% $48,800 3.4%


Radiologic Technologists and Technicians 29‐2034 Associate's degree 797 16.6% $59,300 1.4%


Respiratory Therapists 29‐1126 Associate's degree 696 17.2% $60,600 1.3%


Registered Nurses 29‐1141 Bachelor's degree 13,513 15.2% $72,300 1.7%


Dental Hygienists 29‐1292 Associate's degree 1,810 21.2% $79,700 0.9%


Massage Therapists 31‐9011
Postsecondary 
nondegree award 854 32.2% $43,800 2.9%


First‐Line Supervisors of Landscaping, 
Lawn Service, and Groundskeeping  37‐1012


High school 
diploma or  671 18.1% $50,000 3.6%


Pest Control Workers 37‐2021
High school 
diploma or  1,028 16.6% $53,300 3.6%


Personal Service Managers, All Other; 
Entertainment and Recreation Managers,  11‐9198 Bachelor's degree 2,437 16.5% $121,900 2.1%


Training and Development Specialists 13‐1151 Bachelor's degree 2,381 16.7% $62,500 2.5%


Health Care


Personal Care Services


Education/Training







• 19 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Source: Emsi & JobsEQ


Occupation SOC
Typical Entry Level 
Education


2020 
Empl.


2020 ‐ 
2025 % 
Change


Ann 
Median 
Wage


Unempl. 
Rate


Food Service Managers 11‐9051
High school 
diploma or  1,642 17.3% $55,400 2.3%


Paralegals and Legal Assistants 23‐2011 Associate's degree 1,395 21.5% $54,100 2.7%


Transportation, Storage, and Distribution 
Managers 11‐3071


High school 
diploma or  968 14.1% $91,800 2.5%


Electro‐Mechanical and Mechatronics 
Technologists and Technicians 17‐3024 Associate's degree 218 9.2% $49,600 3.0%


Transportation, Distribution, & Logistics


Hospitality & Food Services


Law, Public Safety, Corrections & Security







• 20 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


(WIOA §108(b)(1)(B); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(2))


Boards must include an analysis of the knowledge and skills needed to meet the employment 
needs of the employers in the region, including employment needs for in-demand industry 
sectors, in-demand occupations, and target occupations.


B. Knowledge and Skills Analysis


Identifying the knowledge and skills needed to meet the employment needs of our region 
is necessary to fill in talent gaps that could position our region for more growth and provide 
a bridge to better opportunities for workers open to upskilling. To capture the knowledge 
and skill needs of employers in our region, we reviewed the skills that have appeared the 
most often in online job postings during the past 12 months in our region for in-demand 
industries, in-demand occupations, and target occupations.


The examination of employment needs within our in-demand industries focuses on baseline 
skills which are skills that are consistently requested in job postings across industries and 
occupations, making them a baseline qualification in the job market. The most solicited 
baseline skills by employers within our in-demand industries show that the top five skills 
for each industry can be summed to 15 different skills, and they can be categorized almost 
evenly into soft and technical skills. 
 
The skill that appeared across all in-demand industries was Communication (Verbal & 
Written), which shows the critical attention this area needs within all training programs at 
all education levels. This skill appeared twice among the top five skills within two in-demand 
industries as indicated by the double X’s in the chart below. Other skills that appeared 
the most often, in order from most to least often, were Building Effective Relationships, 
Microsoft Excel, Computer Literary, and Problem Solving. Although soft skills, as depicted by 
the number of times Communication (Verbal &Written) appeared in the analysis, is growing 
in importance in the workforce, technical skills continue to be of almost equal importance 
for industries that are critical for our economy to continue to operate successfully. Top 5 
Skills per In-Demand Industry 


In-Demand Industries







• 21 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


In-Demand Industries
  


Skill 


Plastics 
Product 
Manufa
cturing 
(3261) 


Archite
ctural 
and 
Structu
ral 
Metals 
Manufa
cturing 
(3323) 


Semico
nductor 
and 
Other 
Electro
nic 
Compo
nent 
Manufa
cturing 
(3344) 


Professi
onal 
and 
Comme
rcial 
Equipm
ent and 
Supplie
s 
Mercha
nt 
Wholes
alers 
(4234) 


Househ
old 
Applian
ces and 
Electric
al and 
Electro
nic 
Goods 
Mercha
nt 
Wholes
alers 
(4236) 


Hardwa
re, and 
Plumbi
ng and 
Heating 
Equipm
ent and 
Supplie
s 
Mercha
nt 
Wholes
alers 
(4237) 


Activiti
es 
Related 
to 
Credit 
Interme
diation 
(5223) 


Offices 
of Real 
Estate 
Agents 
and 
Brokers 
(5312) 


Office 
Admini
strative 
Service
s (5611) 


Commercial 
and 
Industrial 
Machinery 
and 
Equipment 
(except 
Automotive 
and 
Electronic) 
Repair and 
Maintenanc
e (8113) 


Building Effective 
Relationships/Tea
mwork/ 
Collaboration   x x  x x  xx  
Communication 
(Verbal & 
Written) x x xx x x x x x xx x 


Computer 
Literacy x x  x     x  


Detail-Oriented      x x x   


English x          


Microsoft Excel  x   x x x x   


Microsoft Office  x   x   x   


Organizational 
Skills  x   x   x   


People 
Management    x       


Physical Abilities      x    x 


Planning    x       


Preventive 
Maintenance x         x 


Problem Solving   x  x  x   x 


Time 
Management   x        


Troubleshooting x         x 
 
Note: Two X’s per square indicate the skill appeared twice amongst the industry’s top five skills in demand. 
Source: Burning Glass







• 22 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


The skills connected to our in-demand occupations and target occupations bring us one 
step closer to establishing initiatives that could help employers find the talent they need, 
and workers obtain jobs that could catapult them into self-sustainability. The skills most 
closely connected to in-demand occupations and target occupations were assessed 
utilizing skill clusters and specialized skills. Skill clusters indicate the sector where a group 
of related skills is needed, and specialized skills point to more granular skill categorizations 
as the coding language examples show on the charts on the right. The examination of both 
the skill cluster and specialized skill provide a way to cross reference needs and direct skill 
training programs to larger areas of need. 
 
The top 10 skills that have been in most demand for in-demand occupations and target 
occupations are largely the same and mirror the occupational groupings of both lists. One 
differentiation between the two sets of skills is that the target occupation skills show one 
more IT skill than is shown on the in-demand occupation skills, while the latter skills set 
calls for Patient Care in its place.


In-Demand Occupations and Target Occupations


Top 10 Skills for In-Demand Occupations


Source: Burning Glass







• 23 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Top 10 Skills for In-Demand Occupations


Source: Burning Glass


(WIOA §108(b)(1)(C); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(3))


Boards must include an analysis of the regional workforce, including current labor force 
employment and unemployment data, information on labor market trends, and educational and 
skill levels of the workforce, including individuals with barriers to employment.


C. Labor Force Analysis and Trends


The WSNCT region’s population continues to outpace the state of Texas and nation on 
several important workforce readiness indicators. WSNCT’s Population Annual Average 
Growth is 2.7%, Texas shows a growth rate of 1.6%, while the nation trails both areas at 
0.7%. Our Labor Force Participation Rate is currently 68.4%, several points higher than 
the rates for Texas and the nation. In other indicators of prosperity in the region, such as 
Median Household Income and Per Capita Income, the latest demographic data show that 
wages in the WSNCT region are significantly higher than both Texas and the nation. 


Education Attainment, which is the highest level of education an individual received, is 
another important dataset that is closely correlated to economic wellbeing. People with 
more education usually earn more money throughout their lifetimes and are less vulnerable 
to significant economic disruptions. Educational attainment is overall positive for WSNCT’s 
region. Our region’s largest educational attainment groupings are bachelor’s degree and 
post-graduate degree holders. Both categories represent approximately 41% of our 
population ages 25-64, and the percentages per group are higher than the state and nation.







• 24 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


 Percent Value 
  WSNCT Texas USA WSNCT Texas USA 
Demographics 
Population (ACS) — — — 2,766,881 27,885,195 322,903,030 
Male 49.3% 49.7% 49.2% 1,363,062 13,849,775 158,984,190 
Female 50.7% 50.3% 50.8% 1,403,819 14,035,420 163,918,840 
Median Age2 — — — 36.6 34.4 37.9 
Under 18 Years 25.9% 26.2% 22.8% 715,628 7,292,686 73,553,240 
18 to 24 Years 8.8% 10.0% 9.6% 243,857 2,777,150 30,903,719 
25 to 34 Years 13.2% 14.7% 13.8% 364,775 4,094,297 44,567,976 
35 to 44 Years 14.7% 13.5% 12.6% 405,510 3,767,582 40,763,210 
45 to 54 Years 14.4% 12.6% 13.2% 397,772 3,511,040 42,589,573 
55 to 64 Years 11.5% 11.1% 12.8% 318,174 3,104,626 41,286,731 
65 to 74 Years 7.3% 7.2% 8.8% 201,710 2,000,715 28,535,419 
75 Years, and Over 4.3% 4.8% 6.4% 119,455 1,337,099 20,703,162 
Race:  White 77.5% 74.3% 72.7% 2,144,878 20,720,689 234,904,818 
Race:  Black or African 
American 8.1% 12.1% 12.7% 224,740 3,365,783 40,916,113 
Race:  American Indian and 
Alaska Native 0.6% 0.5% 0.8% 15,956 136,061 2,699,073 
Race: Asian 7.7% 4.7% 5.4% 212,689 1,308,257 17,574,550 
Race:  Native Hawaiian and 
Other Pacific Islander 0.1% 0.1% 0.2% 2,982 23,672 582,718 
Race:  Some Other Race 2.9% 5.7% 4.9% 81,013 1,600,234 15,789,961 
Race: Two or More Races 3.1% 2.6% 3.2% 84,623 730,499 10,435,797 
Hispanic or Latino (of any race) 17.9% 39.2% 17.8% 495,378 10,921,556 57,517,935 
Population Growth 
Population (Pop Estimates)4 — — — 3,027,876 28,995,881 328,239,523 
Population Annual Average 
Growth4 2.7% 1.6% 0.7% 70,334 419,412 2,146,799 
People per Square Mile — — — 286.0 111.0 92.9 
Economic 
Labor Force Participation Rate 
and Size (civilian population 16 
years and over)5 68.4% 64.4% 63.2% 1,459,235 13,728,630 162,248,196 
Prime-Age Labor Force 
Participation Rate and Size 
(civilian population 25-54)5 83.9% 80.4% 81.8% 978,534 9,095,705 104,136,254 
Armed Forces Labor Force5 0.1% 0.4% 0.4% 1,527 89,701 1,028,133 
Veterans, Age 18-645 5.0% 5.0% 4.7% 86,178 862,771 9,398,789 
Veterans Labor Force 
Participation Rate and Size, Age 
18-645 83.7% 77.8% 76.3% 72,145 671,366 7,168,168 
Median Household Income2,5 — — — $80,719 $59,570 $60,293 







• 25 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Per Capita Income5 — — — $37,314 $30,143 $32,621 
Mean Commute Time 
(minutes)5 — — — 29.7 26.4 26.6 
Commute via Public 
Transportation5 0.8% 1.4% 5.0% 10,643 184,848 7,602,145 
Educational Attainment, Age 25-64 
No High School Diploma 8.8% 15.7% 11.2% 130,118 2,274,547 18,885,967 
High School Graduate 20.3% 24.7% 25.8% 302,251 3,571,759 43,699,272 
Some College, No Degree 22.1% 22.1% 21.0% 328,389 3,193,349 35,525,113 
Associate Degree 8.0% 7.5% 9.1% 118,831 1,088,717 15,389,737 
Bachelor's Degree 27.3% 20.0% 20.8% 405,725 2,894,532 35,261,652 
Postgraduate Degree 13.5% 10.0% 12.1% 200,917 1,454,641 20,445,749 
Housing 
Total Housing Units — — — 1,042,245 10,769,900 136,384,292 
Median House Value (of 
owner-occupied units)2 — — — $231,015 $161,700 $204,900 
Homeowner Vacancy 1.2% 1.6% 1.7% 8,247 95,712 1,304,850 
Rental Vacancy 6.3% 7.7% 6.0% 20,915 308,747 2,822,053 
Renter-Occupied Housing Units 
(% of Occupied Units) 31.6% 38.1% 36.2% 303,366 3,635,275 43,285,318 
Occupied Housing Units with 
No Vehicle Available (% of 
Occupied Units)5 3.0% 5.4% 8.7% 28,608 512,772 10,424,934 
Social 
Poverty Level (of all people)5 8.9% 15.5% 14.1% 243,185 4,213,938 44,257,979 
Households Receiving Food 
Stamps/SNAP 6.1% 12.2% 12.2% 58,667 1,167,725 14,635,287 
Enrolled in Grade 12 (% of total 
population) 1.4% 1.5% 1.4% 39,753 405,822 4,442,295 
Disconnected Youth3,5 2.2% 2.9% 2.6% 3,500 46,016 438,452 
Children in Single Parent 
Families (% of all children)5 23.0% 34.6% 34.3% 158,775 2,402,953 23,973,249 
Uninsured 12.6% 17.4% 9.4% 345,487 4,764,897 29,752,767 
With a Disability, Age 18-645 7.4% 9.6% 10.3% 126,940 1,618,704 20,240,504 
With a Disability, Age 18-64, 
Labor Force Participation Rate 
and Size5 48.3% 44.3% 41.6% 61,329 717,826 8,421,018 
Foreign Born 14.0% 17.0% 13.5% 387,045 4,736,692 43,539,499 
Speak English Less Than Very 
Well (population 5 yrs and 
over) 7.6% 14.0% 8.5% 197,657 3,617,887 25,647,781 


 
Source: JobsEQ
1. American Community Survey 2014-2018, unless noted otherwise
2. Median values for certain aggregate regions (such as MSAs) may be estimated as the weighted averages of the median values from the 


composing counties.
3. Disconnected Youth are ages 16-19 who are (1) not in school, (2) not high school graduates, and (3) either unemployed or not in the labor 


force.
4. Census 2019, annual average growth rate since 2009







• 26 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


As of 2020Q2, total employment for the WSNCT region was 1,116,470 (based on a four-
quarter moving average). Over the year ending 2020Q2, employment declined 6.9% in the 
region.


The unemployment rate for the WSNCT region was 5.4% as of October 2020. The regional 
unemployment rate was lower than the national rate of 6.6%. One year earlier, in October 
2019, the unemployment rate in the WSNCT region was 2.9%.


Employment Trends


Unemployment Rate


Source: JobsEQ


Source: JobsEQ







• 27 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


   Population with Disability   


County 


Total civilian 
noninstitutiona
lized 
population Female  Males  


Total Pop. w/ 
Disability  


Total Pop w/ 
Disability (%)  


Collin 1,031,410 38,139 32,977 71,116 6.9% 
Denton 883,597 37,254 35,878 73,132 8.3% 
Ellis 183,681 10,432 11,833 22,265 12.1% 
Erath n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 
Hood n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 
Hunt 97,736 7,675 8,939 16,614 17.0% 
Johnson 173,150 8,286 8,394 16,680 9.6% 
Kaufman 135,139 7,092 8,675 15,767 11.7% 
Navarro n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 
Palo Pinto n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 
Parker 141,194 7,479 7,760 15,239 10.8% 
Rockwall 104,300 3,710 3,557 7,267 7.0% 
Somervell n/a n/a n/a n/a n/a 
Wise 69,222 5,083 4,574 9,657 14.0% 


N. Central TX 2,819,429 125,150 122,587 247,737 8.8% 
 
Source: 2019: ACS 1-Year Estimates


Populations with Disability While the most populous counties within our service region 
have the highest numbers of people with disabilities, some of the less populated counties 
have higher percentages of populations with disabilities. Amongst this group are Hunt 
County (17. 0%), Wise County (14.0%), Ellis County (12.1%), and Kaufman (11.7%).


Populations with Barriers to Employment







• 28 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Approximately 7% of our WSNCT civilian population 18 years and older holds veteran status. 
The counties within our service region that have higher veteran population percentages are 
Hood (10.7%), Parker (9.8%), Palo Pinto (9.7%), Wise (9.7%), and Hunt (9.1%).


Populations with Barriers to Employment


Source: 2019: ACS 5-Year Estimates


   Veterans  


County 


Civilian Pop. 
18 years and 
over Female  Males  


With a 
Disability  


Total 
Veteran 
Pop. 


Total 
Veteran 
Pop. (%) 


Collin 717,266 4,056 37,862 7,837 41,918 5.8% 
Denton 624,625 3,793 37,404 8,811 41,197 6.6% 
Ellis 127,148 1,039 9,679 2,959 10,718 8.4% 
Erath 33,090 157 2343 770 2,500 7.6% 
Hood 46,012 380 4,547 6,412 4,927 10.7% 
Hunt 71,605 558 5,959 2,055 6,517 9.1% 
Johnson 123,422 762 7,207 2,445 7,969 6.5% 
Kaufman 89,375 767 6,140 1,855 6,907 7.7% 
Navarro 36,133 268 2,509 1,247 2,777 7.7% 


Palo Pinto 21,854 134 1,986 916 2,120 9.7% 
Parker 100,434 909 8,892 2,487 9,801 9.8% 
Rockwall 70,715 526 5,250 936 5,776 8.2% 


Somervell 6,863 0 476 151 476 6.9% 
Wise 49,829 413 4,410 1,602 4,823 9.7% 


N. Central 
TX 2,118,371 13,762 134,664 40,483 148,426 7.0% 


 







• 29 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Approximately 7% of our WSNCT civilian population 18 years and older holds veteran status. 
The counties within our service region that have higher veteran population percentages are 
Hood (10.7%), Parker (9.8%), Palo Pinto (9.7%), Wise (9.7%), and Hunt (9.1%).


Populations with Barriers to Employment


Source: 2019: ACS 5-Year Estimates


   Language Spoken at Home  


County 


Pop. 5 
years and 
over 


Speak 
only 
English 


Speak only 
English (%) 


Speak a 
language 
other than 
English 


Speak a 
languag
e other 
than 
English 


Collin 913,077 651,465 71.3% 261,612 28.7% 
Denton 780,767 597,146 76.5% 183,621 23.5% 
Ellis 162,107 132,849 82.0% 29,258 18.0% 
Erath 39,266 33,081 84.2% 6,185 15.8% 
Hood 55,146 49,944 90.6% 5,202 9.4% 
Hunt 88,256 75,762 85.8% 12,494 14.2% 
Johnso
n 156,197 131,479 84.2% 24,718 15.8% 
Kaufma
n 114,926 95,271 82.9% 19,655 17.1% 
Navarro 45,419 34,183 75.3% 11,236 24.7% 
Palo 
Pinto 26,804 22,869 85.3% 3,935 14.7% 
Parker 125,555 114,254 91.0% 11,301 9.0% 
Rockwa
ll 91,175 76,219 83.6% 14,956 16.4% 
Somerv
ell 8,412 7,557 89.8% 855 10.2% 
Wise 62,060 52,118 84.0% 9,942 16.0% 
N. 
Central 
TX 2,669,167 


2,074,1
97 77.7% 594,970 22.3% 


 


(WIOA §108(b)(1)(D); 20 CFR §679.560(a)(4))


Boards must include an analysis of workforce development activities in the region, including 
education and training.


D. Workforce Development Analysis


The following two tables provide background information on the state of our talent pipeline. 
We first focus on high school graduation rates as it is in indicator of the workforce that is 







• 30 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Of the 14 counties that make up our service area, seven counties have high school 
graduation rates above 95 percent, and the average graduation rate of the 14 counties is 
91.7 percent.


The largest program completions in higher education were the “two-digit” Classification of 
Instructional Programs (CIP) areas of (1) Business, Management, Marketing, and Related 
Support Services, (2) Liberal Arts and Sciences, General Studies and Humanities, (3) Health 
Professions and Related Programs, (4) Multi/Interdisciplinary Studies, and (5) Education. 
These five areas alone account for approximately 60% of the 2018 top 25 program 
completions in higher education in the WSNCT’s region.


High School Graduation Rates


Top 25 Program Completions in Higher Education in 2018


Source: TEA, Class of 2019


preparing to train and specialize their skillsets to obtain employment. Additionally, we focus 
on program completions in higher education as these numbers can be useful markers to 
assess workforce readiness for employers looking to expand their operations in our region 
or new employers looking to relocate to North Texas.







• 31 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


CIP 
Code Description 


All 
degree


s 


Award of 
at least 1 


but less 
than 2 


academic 
years  


Associ
ate's 


Degree  


Bachel
or's 


Degree  


Postbaccala
ureate 


certificate  


Mast
er's 


Degr
ee  


Post-
masters 
certifica


te  


Doctor
's 


Degree   


52 


BUSINESS, 
MANAGEMENT, 
MARKETING, AND 
RELATED SUPPORT 
SERVICES 


4,315 36 395 1,905 11 1,49
0 0 9 


24 


LIBERAL ARTS AND 
SCIENCES, 
GENERAL STUDIES 
AND HUMANITIES 


3,968 0 2,710 1,223 0 0 0 0 


51 


HEALTH 
PROFESSIONS AND 
RELATED 
PROGRAMS 


2,930 389 753 1,170 13 726 13 167 


30 MULTI/INTERDISCI
PLINARY STUDIES 


2,091 0 0 598 23 125 0 5 


13 
EDUCATION 


1,439 0 181 10 34 1,07
3 0 125 


50 
VISUAL AND 
PERFORMING 
ARTS 


1,124 85 105 763 10 208 0 48 


42 
PSYCHOLOGY 


951 0 36 524 0 135 0 54 


31 


PARKS, 
RECREATION, 
LEISURE, AND 
FITNESS STUDIES 


849 0 10 683 1 151 0 5 


11 


COMPUTER AND 
INFORMATION 
SCIENCES AND 
SUPPORT 
SERVICES 


807 36 94 279 45 369 0 16 


43 


HOMELAND 
SECURITY, LAW 
ENFORCEMENT, 
FIREFIGHTING 
AND RELATED 
PROTECTIVE 
SERVICES 


783 168 157 272 2 46 0 0 


26 
BIOLOGICAL AND 
BIOMEDICAL 
SCIENCES 


705 0 1 618 0 69 0 17 


09 


COMMUNICATION
, JOURNALISM, 
AND RELATED 
PROGRAMS 


636 0 28 576 0 32 0 0 







• 32 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


45 
SOCIAL SCIENCES 


562 0 9 453 6 81 0 17 


14 
ENGINEERING 


498 0 15 365 5 106 0 12 


25 
LIBRARY SCIENCE 


484 0 0 0 79 484 0 0 


23 


ENGLISH 
LANGUAGE AND 
LITERATURE/LETTE
RS 


433 0 1 356 1 49 0 21 


01 


AGRICULTURE, 
AGRICULTURE 
OPERATIONS, AND 
RELATED SCIENCES 


421 33 14 330 0 70 0 0 


44 


PUBLIC 
ADMINISTRATION 
AND SOCIAL 
SERVICE 
PROFESSIONS 


380 0 0 248 0 115 0 4 


39 
THEOLOGY AND 
RELIGIOUS 
VOCATIONS 


362 0 192 4 0 33 0 0 


19 


FAMILY AND 
CONSUMER 
SCIENCES/HUMAN 
SCIENCES 


272 4 16 224 0 22 0 10 


15 


BUSINESS, 
MANAGEMENT, 
MARKETING, AND 
RELATED SUPPORT 
SERVICES 


264 14 22 118 0 73 0 0 


54 


LIBERAL ARTS AND 
SCIENCES, 
GENERAL STUDIES 
AND HUMANITIES 


217 0 0 179 0 22 0 6 


27 


HEALTH 
PROFESSIONS AND 
RELATED 
PROGRAMS 


199 0 1 154 0 37 0 7 


16 MULTI/INTERDISCI
PLINARY STUDIES 


186 17 14 111 0 61 0 0 


40 
EDUCATION 


159 0 3 97 0 46 0 13 


 
Source: Emsi, 2018







• 33 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


WSNCT places great emphasis on improving the quality of childcare to increase school 
readiness, long-term education attainment and economic prosperity. WSNCT facilitates 
professional development, education advancement and credential training opportunities 
for child care providers as a part of our initiative to promote quality child care practices. 
WSNCT also provides grants to Texas Rising Star-credentialed child care providers for 
new equipment, materials and age-appropriate curriculum to ensure quality learning 
environments. Early childhood programs will continue to be supported through our ongoing 
efforts to provide tuition reimbursement, professional development, and coaching and 
mentoring services. WSNCT will utilize the Texas Rising Star assessment tool to determine 
if child care professionals have increased their knowledge and skills based on educational 
opportunities they have received.


Career exploration is an essential step in equipping youth with the skills and knowledge 
required for success. Leveraging the strong, collaborative partnerships we have developed 
in our region with employers, community colleges, Independent School Districts (ISDs) and 
Education Service Centers (ESCs), WSNCT hosts interactive career exploration events for 
hundreds of students each year. These events enable students to explore various careers 
and immediately grasp what skills and educational requirements are necessary to enter 
occupations leading to successful, sustainable employment.  Our Student HireAbility 
Navigators collaborate with employers, colleges, ISDs and ESCs to help them develop the 
right programs and processes to provide inclusive work and educational environments for 
students with disabilities.


WSNCT utilizes the Target Occupations List and Eligible Training Providers List to present 
customers with options for training opportunities available in our area.  Customized Labor 
Market Information (LMI) is provided to help guide participants in choosing in-demand 
occupations.  We actively participate in collaborative groups such as the North Texas P-16 
Council, North Texas Community College Consortium and Interlink to leverage resources 
and coordinate efforts in order to strengthen our educational partnerships. The local 
staff have strong relationships with our training providers and gather attendance and 
performance data for mutual customers as needed.  Information received has a direct 
impact on performance.


WSNCT has developed strong partnerships with Goodwill and United Way, and has 
collaborated with other regional organizations that provide services to foster youth.  These 
partnerships have allowed us to leverage resources and strengthen our cross-referral 
process.  Goodwill offers a Digital Training platform, as well as other valuable services.  
WSNCT has also connected our local AEL Provider to Goodwill and United Way, resulting 
in a partnership to provide classroom space, shared resources, and cross referrals among 
those agencies.  We continue to seek additional opportunities that will strengthen the 
resources we have available to customers.


WSNCT partners with employers and community colleges in our region to secure funding for 
skills development training to meet the workforce needs of employers in our area. WSNCT 


Early Childhood Education


Career Exploration and Education Opportunities


Continuing Education and Skills Development







• 34 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


has also been successful in identifying and mobilizing new Registered Apprenticeship 
programs in our region to help sustain the productivity and vitality of our employer 
community. WSNCT engages regularly with employers to gain a better of understanding 
of their challenges as well as specific data points to better identify and classify skill 
needs. Sector partnerships will be convened as a way of gathering consistent industry 
and occupational data while allowing for all partners in the region to work collaboratively.  
The development of sector partnerships will promote ongoing, inclusive discussions that 
will foster timely communication and alignment, resulting in impactful decision making 
and solution development.  Sector partnerships will include community colleges and ISDs, 
which will enable training programs to be devised and implemented in accordance with 
employer need and guidance. Local wisdom and labor market data will give WSNCT a 
wider perspective of the regional employment picture and provide more opportunity to 
identify where gaps exist and can be addressed. Labor market data will also provide better 
direction for employer engagement and allow WSNCT to develop more effective outreach 
strategies.


Barriers to employment identified in the WSNCT area include the ability to access services 
in rural areas and lack of transportation.  WSNCT has expanded our ability to provide virtual 
services to assist those with transportation issues and provide multiple ways to connect 
with local services.  WSNCT requires our Subrecipient to conduct outreach to special 
populations and demographics as outlined in the Affirmative Outreach plan, which includes 
outreach methodologies, partnerships with other organizations for the outreach, and the 
methods used to bring awareness to the community that services are available.  These 
efforts will be reviewed to evaluate strategies and results.


WSNCT Quality Assurance staff evaluates the effectiveness of workforce services 
through monitoring based on a detailed risk assessment. Board Staff works closely with 
the Subrecipient to identify gaps and strengthen processes, ensure program compliance 
and evaluate performance to ensure that customers are completing training, obtaining a 
credential, as well as entering and retaining employment. Board staff observes orientations 
and discusses service delivery strategies to identify opportunities for improvement.


Service Access and Effectiveness


Part 3: Core Programs


(WIOA §108(b)(2); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(1))


Boards must include a description of the workforce development system in the workforce area 
that identifies:


• the programs that are included in the system; and


A. Workforce Development System


It is the role of WSNCT to be a regional facilitator, connector and convener to address 
workforce development issues.  The following programs support and align with local, state, 
and national strategies to address the needs of the workforce.  The oversight provided 







• 35 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


by WSNCT ensures that the services provided below are delivered in an integrated and 
seamless workforce system, delivered through a network of 12 workforce centers, operated 
and managed by a competitively procured contracted service provider.  


 ■ Choices Program—Services provided through the Choices program are designed 
to assist unemployed and under-employed career seekers, who are applicants for 
Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) services or are current or former 
TANF recipients, in preparing for, obtaining and retaining unsubsidized employment.  Co-
enrollment in job training programs, subsidized employment and On-the-Job Training 
(OJT) are components of the program.  WSNCT partners with the Health and Human 
Services Commission (HHSC) to provide referrals and integrated case management 
to eligible program participants and ensure work goals and program requirements are 
met.  


 ■ Non-Custodial Parents (NCP) Choices Program —Services provided through the NCP 
program are designed to assist noncustodial parents, whose children are current 
or former recipients of public assistance, in overcoming substantial barriers to 
employment and career advancement while becoming economically self-sufficient and 
enabled to make consistent child support payments.  WSNCT partners with the Texas 
Workforce Commission (TWC), the Office of Attorney General (OAG), and the family 
court county judges to provide participant referrals, supportive services and integrated 
case management.  


 ■ Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Employment and Training (SNAP E&T)—
Services provided through this program assists both Able-Bodied Adults Without 
Dependents (ABAWDs) and SNAP E&T General Population participants by improving 
their ability to obtain unsubsidized employment and reduce their dependency on public 
assistance. Workforce center staff provide guidance, instruction and support to assist 
program participants in preparing for, obtaining and retaining full-time employment.  
WSNCT partners with HHSC to provide referrals and integrated case management to 
eligible program participants and ensure work goals and program requirements are 
met. 


 ■ Wagner-Peyser Employment Services (ES)—In partnership with TWC, WSNCT is 
a part of the Texas Model and is responsible to assist employers in filling jobs by 
recruiting, screening and referring qualified job seekers and assist job seekers in finding 
employment for which they are qualified. 


 ■ Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act (WIOA)— WIOA brings together, in 
strategic coordination, the core programs of skill development and requires specific 
accommodation for vulnerable populations


• Employment and training services for adults
• Employment and training services for dislocated workers
• Employment and training services for youth 


 ■ Trade Adjustment Assistance Program (TAA)— TAA is a federal program created to 
reduce the damaging impact of imports felt by certain sectors of the U.S. economy. 


 ■ Rapid Response Services—Rapid response services help workers and employers deal 
with the effects of layoffs and plant closures, including those that result from increased 
competition from imports, natural disasters, and other events.







• 36 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


 ■ Subsidized Child Care – Access to quality child care is a workforce issue.  Child Care 
provides eligible parents who work, attend school or participate in job training with 
financial assistance.


WSNCT works through MOUs or cooperative relationships to coordinate and facilitate the 
delivery of services in other programs.  Participants in these programs have access to 
employment assistance through the WSNCT workforce centers.


 ■ Unemployment Insurance (UI) – While the UI program is administered by TWC, 
workforce centers provide UI claimants with valuable services to assist with filing 
claims, participating in appeals, and access to the Reemployment Services and Eligibility 
Assessment (RESEA) program. 


 ■ Summer Earn and Learn (SEAL) – The SEAL program provides subsidized work 
experience placements for youth students with disabilities. The program’s success relies 
on participation from Employers and our partnership with Vocational Rehabilitation 
Services (VRS).  Students receive hands-on work experience to learn job skills for future 
employment.


 ■ Year-Round Paid Work Experience - WSNCT partners with TWC Vocational Rehabilitation 
Services (TWC-VRS) to provide year-round paid work experience services, as a strategy 
for serving students with disabilities. These services are provided in support of TWC’s 
implementation of Pre-Employment Transition Services (Pre-ETS) for students with 
disabilities, as required under Title IV of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act 
(WIOA). Paid Work Experience Services include payment of the student’s wages and 
associated costs for participants identified by local TWC VR staff in a manner consistent 
with the Board VR Requirements, and as described in the VR Program Requirements 
Manual for Services.


 ■ Vocational Rehabilitation (VRS) Services—Comprehensive work-related services are 
individualized and are provided by trained Counselors in the TWC VR program.  The 
VR Counselor’s role is to facilitate independence, integration, and inclusion of people 
with disabilities into employment.  To date Vocational Rehabilitation Services have been 
integrated with WSNCT in Corsicana, Granbury, Greenville, McKinney, and Waxahachie 
with more to follow in the upcoming years.   


 ■ Student HireAbility Navigator—The role of the Student HireAbility Navigator (Navigator) 
is to improve access to employment and training services and increase employment 
opportunities for students with disabilities who are in the early phases of preparing for 
transition to postsecondary education and employment.  The Navigator service is a 
resource to support, expand, and enhance the provision of pre-employment transition 
services that are provided by TWC-Vocational Rehabilitation as well as by the other 
partners and programs.  By working in capacity building and systems development, 
partnering and collaboration, and informing and engaging employers, the Navigator 
increases the likelihood of students’ independence and inclusion in communities and 
competitive integrated workplaces, and their successful participation in postsecondary 
education experiences.


 ■ Adult Education & Literacy (AEL) Program— WSNCT partners with five AEL grant 
recipients to deliver services within the 14-county workforce area. Basic and secondary 
instruction and services are provided to adults to enable them to effectively acquire 







• 37 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


the basic educational skills necessary for literate functioning, participate in job training 
and retraining programs, continue education to at least the completion of secondary 
school, and obtain and retain employment.  Memoranda of Understanding (MOU) have 
been established under the umbrella of “AEL-North Central Texas Workforce Regional 
Coalition” (Regional Coalition). 


 ■ Veteran Services—WSNCT works in partnership with the Texas Veterans Commission 
to ensure individuals seeking services are screened to determine if they are eligible 
veterans entitled to intensive services from Veterans Program staff. 


 ■ Senior Community Service Employment Program (SCSEP) - The SCSEP is a community 
service and work-based job training program for older Americans. The program provides 
training for low-income, unemployed seniors.


• how the Board will work with the entities that facilitate core programs and other workforce 
development programs to support alignment to provide services, including programs of 
study authorized under the Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Act of 2006, that 
support the strategy identified in the State Plan under WIOA §102(b)(1)(E).


WSNCT is committed to the value that integration of programs brings to employers and 
career seekers.  WSNCT administers integrated programs and provides oversight to a 
competitively procured Workforce Subrecipient who is responsible for direct service 
delivery of core programs and the coordination of integrated, related, and possibly co-
located, programs not administered by the Board.  


Services provided by the Workforce Subrecipient include service delivery strategies 
to employers and career seekers who are able to access a continuum of services.  The 
Workforce Subrecipient has the capability to deliver fully integrated and leveraged workforce 
services to include WIOA Adult, Youth and Dislocated Worker, TANF Choices, Non-Custodial 
Parent Choices, SNAP Employment and Training, Child Care Assistance, Employer Services, 
Vocational Rehabilitation, and Trade Adjustment Assistance.


Unemployment Insurance (UI) claimants are a target population.  WSNCT designates a 
coordinator to communicate with the state on issues related to Unemployment Insurance 
claimants.  Workforce center staff help UI claimants apply for UI and make active searches 
for employment.  The Workforce Subrecipient provides outreach to claimants, assistance 
with developing an employment plan, and services to provide early intervention to claimants 
that link them to comprehensive services.  Workforce center staff interact with claimants 
on a regular basis and when aware of issues that affect a claimant’s eligibility for benefits, 
notify the state coordinator.


WSNCT continues to expand integration and co-location efforts with Vocational 
Rehabilitation Services (VRS) to enable WSNCT and VRS to leverage resources and align 
services to better serve our shared customers.  To date, VRS has been integrated with 
WSNCT in Corsicana, Granbury, Greenville, McKinney, and Waxahachie, with more to follow 
in the upcoming years.


Recognizing that the ability to speak English can be critical to a participant’s success in the 
job market, WSNCT actively partners with Adult Education and Literacy providers to offer 
instruction and remediation, including English as a Second Language (ESL), as a part of a 
participant’s service continuum. Integration with the service delivery system is vital to the 







• 38 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


deployment of WIOA, and WSNCT engages and supports AEL grant recipients in activities 
that promote student success in career and higher education goals.


Independent School Districts and Community Colleges carry out workforce development 
programs that support alignment of services, including programs of study and technical 
training authorized under the Carl D. Perkins Career and Technical Education Act of 2006. 
In 2018, The Strengthening Career and Technical Education for the 21st Century Act 
(Perkins V) was signed into law. This measure reauthorized the Carl D. Perkins Career and 
Technical Education Act of 2006 (Perkins IV) and continued Congress’ commitment in 
providing nearly $1.3 billion annually for career and technical education (CTE) programs 
for our nation’s youth and adults. 
 
WSNCT is actively involved with the North Texas P-16 Council.  The North Texas Regional 
P-16 Council promotes communication, networking, and collaborative opportunities and 
embraces multiple perspectives to advance the education of all students, close gaps in 
student academic access and achievement, leading to educated and employable citizens. 


The goal of WSNCT’s continued participation, and as stated in the Council’s mission, is 
to aide in the support of educational and community initiatives and institutions; develop 
collaborative relationships and resources that promote equity in the development of 
educated and employable citizens; engender the development of educators who support 
the diverse needs of communities and workplaces; expand understanding of educational, 
transitional, and career pathways; and widely share information and resources. 


WSNCT actively engages local community colleges with quarterly check-point meetings, 
ensuring WSNCT is staying in touch and listening to the needs of the partner, and any 
opportunities they are seeking in which WSNCT may be able to assist or support. This work 
also included universities when applicable. As more interest grows within universities in 
supporting Career and Technical training, these relationships continue to grow. This work 
with colleges, universities, networking groups and school districts creates more opportunity 
to share relevant LMI that will help decision-making while these partners develop programs 
to prepare students for high-wage and high-demand occupations. WSNCT will continue 
these efforts and community outreach aiming to support the alignment of programs of 
study and technical programs to target industries and labor market demand within the 
North Central Texas region.  


In addition, WSNCT plans to strengthen partnerships with colleges by building a quarterly 
roundtable discussion with college CTE leaders, as well as cross-sector community 
stakeholders. These discussions, where WSNCT will serve as an intermediary, will allow 
for meaningful exploration of opportunities and partnerships. Recently, WSNCT staff 
has worked to introduce and connect various partners for deeper discussions about 
the work taking place in their respective colleges and learning from one another. These 
conversations in early stages have allowed for informed decision making as it pertains to 
grant opportunities and the readiness for various initiatives.  As our partners are awarded 
grant funding, WSNCT plans to strengthen the way we track these awards. Outcomes of this 
tracking will result in local workforce offices staying informed and connecting customers 
to opportunities at colleges within their local region, such as new training programs and 
scholarships become available.  
 
WSNCT will continue to build relationships and increase the number of partnerships affecting 
in-school youth through CTE programs. As more ISDs become interested in CTE/Career/







• 39 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


(WIOA §108(b)(3); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(2))


Boards must include a description of how the Board will work with entities carrying out core 
programs to:


• expand access to employment, training, education, and support services for eligible 
individuals, particularly eligible individuals with barriers to employment;


B. Core Programs—Expand Access, Facilitate Development, and Improve Access


Individuals meeting eligibility requirements for core programs are provided a comprehensive 
needs assessment that addresses, at a minimum, job skills, supportive services, educational 
skills and deficiencies, accessibility and/or accommodations, barriers to employment, and 
training needs.  


Once needs are identified, resources that can be used to remove barriers to employment 
are explored, including program funding and leveraging resources through partner agencies 
and other community resources.  Co-enrollment in core programs, when allowable and 
appropriate may be used to leverage funds and expand access to training, educational 
opportunities and supportive services.


WSNCT engages with local employers to identify skills needed and coordinates with 
Workforce Subrecipient staff, who provides case management to career seekers enrolled 
in core programs, to match skilled career seekers with quality jobs.  AEL partners work with 
eligible customers participating in core programs to provide vocational workplace literacy.   


Information regarding WIOA Individualized Career and Training services is offered at all 
workforce orientations.  Orientation audiences include those attending Reemployment 
Services and Eligibility Assessment (RESEA) for UI claimants, Rapid Response events, 
TANF Applicants, and participants who access Supplemental and Nutritional Assistance 
Programs. Information is shared to inform and educate these participants about workforce 
services designed to assist the participant in applying for financial aid, WIOA training 
services, and the development of an Individual Employment Plan that may include access 
to training services.


College centered models for learning and preparedness, WSNCT will continue offering 
connections to other partners for necessary support, and/or providing data as needed. 
WSNCT will continue seeking out and sharing resources and skill-building opportunities for 
students and educators. 


WSNCT will continue to engage ISDs, employers, colleges, and other training providers in 
identifying and developing opportunities and events that target career exploration as well 
as bridging the gaps within the shared vision of building a strong workforce across the 
region.


• facilitate the development of career pathways and co-enrollment, as appropriate, in core 
programs, including specific career pathways occupations that the Board currently includes 
on its Target Occupations List, and career pathways occupations that the Board is planning 
to develop; and







• 40 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


WSNCT facilitates the development of career pathways and co-enrollment through the 
following:


 ■ Continue to engage employers in sector strategies to obtain and identify credentials, 
training and skills relevant to their occupational needs.


 ■ Leverage funding by co-enrolling individuals that are eligible for both WIOA Youth, Adult 
and Dislocated Worker programs to support training and career pathways.


 ■ Continue development of WSNCT long-term relationships with career and technical 
education institutions that are Eligible Training Providers. 


 ■ Seek out stakeholders interested in creating apprenticeship programs. 
 ■ Create and implement relationships with CBOs, city/state, and partner agencies to 


provide exposure for youth to training programs and career pathways.  
 ■ Pair the attainment of postsecondary credits with work-based learning opportunities 


such as on-the-job training, internships and workplace tours.
 ■ Provide labor market information and career exploration resources to educators and 


other education-focused stakeholders. 
 ■ Actively participate in collaborative groups such as the North Texas P-16 Council, 


North Texas Community College Consortium and Interlink to leverage resources and 
coordinate efforts. 


 ■ Support local community colleges and universities in their program development and 
assessment by providing labor market information and participating in their stakeholder 
workgroups. 


 ■ Coordinating Programs and Services for Target Populations.


• improve access to activities leading to a recognized postsecondary credential (including a 
credential that is an industry-recognized certificate or certification, portable, and stackable).


WSNCT partners with ISDs, community colleges and training providers to improve access 
to activities leading to recognized postsecondary credentials and is committed to the 
attainment of industry recognized certifications, and portable and stackable credentials 
focused on our identified target industries. 


Three of WSNCT’s target industries are closely aligned with the Governor’s six industry 
clusters.  The manufacturing and logistics industries, including Semiconductor and 
Other Electronic Component Manufacturing, Professional and Commercial Equipment 
and Supplies Merchant Wholesalers, and Plastics Product Manufacturing, are highly 
prevalent in the region, and WSNCT often engages with employers within these industries.  
As we continue to identify skills gaps and training opportunities through apprenticeship 
exploration, WSNCT will further develop and maintain relationships with these employers 
to keep pace with industry trends and changes.  Another area of focus is within the 
Information Technology (IT) industry.  There are several IT occupations that appear on 
the Board’s target and in-demand occupation list and can be found in several industries.  
WSNCT will continue to gather local wisdom through employer engagement and economic 
development organizations to determine what skills are needed and identify the appropriate 
talent development strategies to deploy, which will include apprenticeships.







• 41 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Part 4: One-Stop Service Delivery


(WIOA §108(b)(6); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(5))


Boards must include a description of the one-stop delivery system in the workforce area, 
including explanations of the following:


• How the Board will ensure the continuous improvement of eligible providers and how 
providers will meet the employment needs of local employers, workers, and job seekers


A. One-Stop Service Delivery System


Texas training providers are required to apply for certification with the Workforce 
Development Board overseeing the main location of their campuses to receive WIOA 
funds.  Providers must meet WIOA requirements, minimum criteria set by WSNCT Board 
of Directors, and be certified by the Texas Workforce Commission to become eligible to 
train participants through the workforce system and be added to the published statewide 
Eligible Training Provider List (ETPL). 


Part of the WIOA requirements for eligibility is Documentation of Employer Partnership.  In 
order to meet this requirement, one of the documentations WSNCT will accept is letters 
from employers stating the program(s) they support on dated letterhead with contact 
information and signed within the last 12 months to demonstrate active partnership.  A 
second document accepted to meet the requirement is a copy of the most recent, within 
the last 12 months, Program Advisory Committee meeting minutes for the program(s) that 
includes the roster of members, attendees and the companies they are representing.


Performance of the ETPL programs is reviewed annually when the Annual Student Data 
Report for each providers’ programs is submitted to TWC to determine performance level 
percentages.  Performance information for training programs listed on the statewide 
ETPL is available to the public on the TWC Eligible Training Provider webpage.  This 
performance report provides information regarding completion and entered employment 
rates for all students exiting the approved programs.  Training providers are required to 
submit the Annual Student Data Report every July to maintain their listing on the ETPL.  
The performance percentage is scheduled to be reinstated in 2021.  If a training provider 
fails to submit the Annual Student Data Report or does not meet the established minimum 
performance standards once the data has been evaluated, the program/programs will be 
removed from the ETPL for a period of no less than two years.


WSNCT is fortunate to have a full array of qualified and competitive eligible training providers 
within the North Central Texas area.  WSNCT actively recruits providers and programs 
located in the North Central region to apply for the ETPL.  Currently on the statewide 
ETPL for the North Central Texas area are 122 programs, three community colleges, and 
one statewide technical college. WSNCT has also designed the WIOA Individual Training 
Agreement (ITA) to allow for working with eligible training providers with campuses located 
inside the North Central Texas area, but whose main campus is outside our jurisdiction as 
well as eligible training providers in neighboring board areas.  


• How the Board will facilitate access to services provided through the one-stop delivery 
system, including to remote areas, through the use of technology and other means







• 42 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


The WSNCT Workforce Development Area covers more than 10,000 square miles.  Budget 
restraints require alternatives to brick and mortar workforce centers to adequately serve 
the region.  Through enhanced technology and partnerships, WSNCT provides access to 
workforce services not otherwise available to persons in remote areas, increasing access 
to services for underserved populations.  Customers can now use virtual online platforms 
to access services. This technology has become the foundation to our virtual services 
design to deploy virtual one-on-one case management with customers and virtual webinar 
sessions to provide orientations and workshops. Additionally, career seekers have access 
to on-line learning platforms, such as Metrix and LinkedIn Learning, to assess for skill gaps, 
provide training content to enhance individual skill levels, and prepare for certifications.  
To further support virtual access, WSNCT purchased and implemented a platform that 
provides the ability to host online career fairs for career seekers and employers. This 
new virtual environment has created a breakthrough in service delivery throughout all our 
programs.


WSNCT transitioned all Core programs to a paperless environment through an Enterprise 
Content Management (ECM) application, Laserfiche, that enables the efficient management 
of documents and information.  The application has the ability to build steps within a 
business process and automatically route documents to the right person at the right time.  
Automated business processes within the Laserfiche environment leads to enhanced 
process efficiency, fewer opportunities for error, and a reduction within the specified 
business process cycle-time. Customer files are accessible to all staff with the designated 
security rights/protocols from any location.  The system has the capability of capturing, 
routing, and approving forms within a web-based environment that can resemble the 
eligibility and intake process performed under WIOA.  Common intake processes across 
multiple programs that utilize similar documents/forms can be maintained within the same 
electronic file, which reduces instances of duplication of effort.  Additionally, the tool has 
the ability automatically manage the workload of WIOA case managers in accordance with 
workload and case assignment rules identified by workforce center management.  


The Mobile Workforce Unit (MWU) is a moving extension of an operating workforce center, 
aiding WSNCT in bringing direct services to customers in areas where there is no traditional 
workforce center presence.  With access to high-speed internet and 13 accessible computer 
workstations, career seeker customers may search for jobs, improve their resumes, and 
receive training wherever needed.  Employer customers may have access to a mobile human 
resources office, and communities may provide dislocated workers immediate access 
to re-employment resources.  The MWU has been offered to other Board areas to assist 
with emergency needs, functioning as a mobile location to provide affected individuals 
the opportunity to quickly apply for Unemployment Benefits and other disaster relief as 
needed.  The MWU was also deployed to various ISDs for the Charting the Course events 
with ESC 11 partners, where students completed a Career Assessment with teachers and 
parents; and the MWU was deployed to high schools for TWC-VR Counselors and Transition 
Specialist to use to provide their Pre-ETS students with career assessments. These career 
assessment results could then be downloaded/emailed to themselves and their teacher 
for discussion. The MWU also remained open to all other students while at the high school.


• How entities within the one-stop delivery system, including the one-stop operators and the 
one-stop partners, will comply with WIOA §188 (related to Non-Discrimination), if applicable, 
and with applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 regarding the 
physical and programmatic accessibility of facilities, programs and services, technology, 
and materials for individuals with disabilities, including providing staff training and support 







• 43 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


for addressing the needs of individuals who have disabilities


WSNCT has issued Policy and Standard Operating Procedures to ensure the individuals 
with a disability receive reasonable accommodation and universal access to services.


Annual reviews of all Workforce Center facilities are conducted utilizing a professional 
Registered Accessibility Specialist (RAS) who determines that each facility meets the 
criteria established by the latest version of the Texas Architectural Standards.  The RAS 
prepares a final report after the review is completed and issues it to the Sr. Workforce 
Facilities Coordinator, who communicates any deficiencies to the appropriate WSNCT 
management staff and coordinates any necessary corrections to the facilities to ensure 
their compliance. 


Annual review of WIOA 188 includes: 
 ■ Review of notices in files, publications, workforce center postings, and electronic media.
 ■ Review of data regarding services received by persons with disability.
 ■ Situational testing of Workforce Center staff’s ability to apply expected procedures/


protocols correctly to serve individuals with disability.
 ■ Testing of adaptive equipment and staff knowledge of availability and use of such 


equipment.
 ■ Review of complaints, formal and informal, regarding alleged non-compliance with 29 


CFR 38.
 ■ Review of EO Officer training, reporting structure, and policy review.


Deficits in workforce center staff training and support for addressing the needs of individuals 
with disability are addressed as findings in monitoring reports conducted by the Board and 
are followed through resolution which includes tracking service provider procedures and 
staff training.


WSNCT has adopted the comprehensive 2012 Texas Architectural Standards used by 
Vocational Rehabilitation (formerly Department of Adult Rehabilitative Services) to not only 
meet, but exceed the accessibility standards under WIOA.   


• The roles and resource contributions of the one-stop partners


According to the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act, Guide to Texas Workforce 
System Operations the required partners administering programs and activities include:


 ■ WIOA adult, dislocated worker, and youth programs;
 ■ Wagner-Peyser Employment Service program;
 ■ Adult Education and Literacy (AEL) program;
 ■ Vocational Rehabilitation (VR) program;
 ■ Unemployment Insurance (UI) program;
 ■ Trade Adjustment Assistance (TAA) program;
 ■ Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF) program;
 ■ Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program Employment and Training (SNAP E&T) 


program;
 ■ Subsidized child care programs;
 ■ Apprenticeship programs (Texas Education Code, Chapter 133), if they have been 


certified by the US Department of labor’s Office of Apprenticeship Training and meet 







• 44 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


the state criteria established in Chapter 133 to receive state funding for the support of 
the apprenticeship training programs;


 ■ Veteran employment and training programs – Local Veterans Employment 
Representatives Program and the Disabled Veterans Outreach Program;


 ■ Senior Community Service Employment Program (SCSEP);


Many of these partners are integrated into the one-stop system and coordinate with our 
Workforce Subrecipient.  Resources from each program are leveraged to contribute to the 
day-to-day operations of the workforce centers.  Center staff work closely with referral 
agencies and required partners in the workforce centers to provide services to program 
customers, as well as Texas Veterans Commission staff to coordinate services to Veterans.  
WSNCT has a strong relationship with AEL provider partners within the North Central Texas 
region and has established the AEL/Workforce Regional Coalition to identify and address 
strategic and operational gaps and strive for continuous improvement in performance for 
all partners.  The ongoing efforts to incorporate Vocational Rehabilitation Services into 
our Workforce Centers are designed to create a seamless customer-focused workforce 
delivery system that integrates across all programs, further enhancing access for all our 
customers.


(WIOA §108(b)(14); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(13))


Boards must provide copies of executed cooperative agreements that explain how all local 
service providers, including additional providers, will carry out the requirements for integration 
of and access to the entire set of services available in the local one-stop delivery system. This 
includes cooperative agreements (as defined in WIOA §107(d)(11)) between the Board or other 
local entities described in §101(a)(11)(B) of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 USC 721(a)(11)
(B)) and the local office of a designated state agency or designated state unit that administers 
programs that are carried out under Title I of the Rehabilitation Act (29 USC 720 et seq.) (other 
than §112 or part C of that title (29 USC 732, 741) and are subject to §121(f)) in accordance 
with §101(a)(11) of the Rehabilitation Act (29 USC 721(a)(11)) with respect to efforts that will 
enhance the provision of services to individuals who have disabilities and to other individuals, 
such as cross training of staff, technical assistance, use and sharing of information, cooperative 
efforts with employers, and other efforts.


B. Cooperative Agreements


N/A


(WIOA §108(b)(4); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(3))


Boards must include a description of the strategies and services that will be used in the 
workforce area to do the following:


• Facilitate engagement of employers in the workforce development programs, including 
small employers and employers in in-demand industry sectors, in-demand occupations, and 
target occupations


C. Employer Engagement, Economic Development, and Unemployment 
Insurance Program Coordination







• 45 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


WSNCT initiates and conducts outreach to new and existing employers within specific 
target industries.  The Workforce Subrecipient staff works in coordination with WSNCT 
to provide employers with the requested services, thus ensuring employers have the right 
solution at the right time. Subrecipient staff work to outreach new business in non-targeted 
industries, such as hospitality and retail, and also provides ongoing services for established 
employers of all industries in an effort to facilitate the matching of employer openings with 
career seekers.


Each employer is provided a customized, educated and meaningful solution to the array of 
services based on each employer’s needs.  Services include, but are not limited to:


 ■ Job Matches for Job Openings
 ■ Hiring Events and Target Recruitment Events
 ■ On-The-Job Training and Subsidized Employment
 ■ Internships and Apprenticeships
 ■ Fidelity Bonding Program
 ■ Rapid Response Services
 ■ Labor Market Information
 ■ Support a local workforce development system that meets the needs of businesses in 


the workforce area


To better align with the needs of industry, WSNCT will further refine its business services 
approach.  There is an opportunity to enhance employer engagement and solidify 
collaborative relationships in conjunction with the development of the Board strategic plan.  
WSNCT will gain a better understanding of regional industry needs and be positioned to 
impact solution development centered around improving our employers’ competitiveness 
and increasing and diversifying career opportunities for our community. Employer 
engagement strategies will be refined to enhance employer relationships and obtain 
qualitative information that will lead to a more comprehensive approach to workforce 
development. In addition to addressing immediate workforce needs, WSNCT will focus on 
providing more in-depth customized talent development strategies.  This requires WSNCT 
to adjust how we engage with employers and the methods we use to identify their needs.  
Strategies will include convening employer and partner meetings to gain insight about 
industry needs, one-on-one employer meetings, more frequent Business Retention and 
Expansion (BRE) visits with employers and EDOs, and WSNCT-facilitated employer and 
EDOs forums/presentations. 


WSNCT will use both targeted and in-demand occupation data to engage employers in 
workforce development discussions.  This data will aid in developing targeted and strategic 
employer outreach strategies and lead to more specific conversations with employers 
regarding their workforce needs.  The goals for targeted employer engagement include the 
following: 


 ■ Increased employer awareness and participation in workforce development and 
expansion opportunities


 ■ Develop high-value employer partnerships throughout our 14-county territory
 ■ Enable WSNCT to deploy effective and timely workforce development programs and 


initiatives


WSNCT will develop and convene sector partnerships to enhance understanding of 
industry needs and facilitate solution development to address the expressed need(s).  







• 46 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


These industries and occupations will be both data-driven and representative of industry 
demands.  Industry needs will be inclusive of both workforce and non-workforce related 
issues, so WSNCT must additionally establish relevant community partnerships to include 
economic development, higher education, independent school districts, and non-profit 
organizations that have access to targeted populations. The sector partnerships will be 
employer-led, focusing on agendas and issues that are designed and raised by industry.  


The information obtained will be managed in our Customer Relationship Management 
database, Dynamics365 (D365).  Notes about specific employer interactions are 
documented and include information about their workforce needs and service/program 
interests.  D365 has allowed WSNCT to create reports and contact lists for targeted 
outreach purposes and will continue to be utilized to enhance employer outreach and 
engagement methods.  WSNCT staff has access to the tool, which facilitates information 
sharing across the departments.     


• Better coordinate workforce development programs and economic development


The coordination of WSNCT’s workforce development programs and economic 
development activity in our service area is one important step towards maximizing the 
impact of our resources as a Board. To enhance the alignment of our programs and 
those of economic developers, we have intentionally engaged with various economic 
development organizations to learn about their long-term priorities as well as their most 
pressing challenges. We have also participated in local government planning sessions and 
are members of community-based consortiums that perform work to expand the access 
to economic opportunities for similar populations to those that make up our customer 
base. Our desire is that by actively listening to these organizations’ needs, we will be able 
to better incorporate priorities into our own strategic plan that ultimately helps their work 
and the employer community at large. In the future, we aim to continue our outreach to 
touch more geographic points of our wide-ranging and diverse service region to continue 
recognizing reoccurring themes with the goal of aiding our growing economy.


• Strengthen links between the one-stop delivery system and unemployment insurance programs


WSNCT links services from at the workforce centers to services for Unemployment 
Insurance claims through a variety of access points. In the event of a major layoff, Rapid 
Response services may be coordinated with the affected employer to provide services to 
dislocated workers at the worksite, local center or a remote site.  In the event of a business 
closure or reduction in force, the Mobile Workforce Unit, may be used on-site to provide 
immediate access to online claim filing and work registration.  Individuals may also initiate 
contact by visiting or calling into the local workforce center.  


From the moment a person becomes unemployed, the local workforce center is often the 
first stop for services. The workforce center maintains open access to all customers who 
may need to file for benefits.  Workforce staff are available to assist individuals to access 
services through the Texas Workforce Commission’s website.  The website contains direct 
links to much needed information including how to file, when to file, ongoing eligibility 
requirements for receiving unemployment benefits, etc.  The information contained on 
TWC’s website is up to date, accurate, available 24 hours a day, seven days a week and is 
available in Spanish.  







• 47 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Workforce staff are available to assist customers who may not be comfortable with computers 
or who need extra help to file their claim.   Customers may be provided with informational print 
outs that include clear directions to access Unemployment Information services and processes.  
Customers may use workforce center resources such as conference rooms to hold appeal 
hearings for their UI case, fax machines to submit required documentation and computers to 
access to their claim status. If a customer has an unmet need regarding UI information, center 
staff may contact a UI representative via a direct line that is not available to the general public. 
WSNCT staff engage claimants at the earliest point possible.  Since quality job referrals come 
from quality registrations, workforce center staff are available to assist claimants to complete 
registration in the Work in Texas job matching system.  


The Reemployment Services and Eligibility Assessment (RESEA) program is a partnership 
between TWC and WSNCT.  TWC uses statistical modeling to rank unemployment benefits 
claimants based on their likelihood to exhaust unemployment benefits. This process includes 
a statistical evaluation of numerous work and related factors, including but not limited to length 
of workforce attachment, occupational field, wage, and location.


WSNCT outreaches those claimants most likely to exhaust their benefits and connects them 
with reemployment services at the workforce center to help them find new employment as 
quickly as possible. Claimants receive an orientation and assistance developing an Individualized 
Employment Plan and are offered other staff-assisted services at the Workforce Center. 
Services available include intensive job search, educational and training opportunities, and 
supportive services geared to remove barriers while training for future employment. Individuals 
with a score below the cutoff may still be outreached and provided the same or other services, 
but their participation is voluntary.


As part of the Texas Model, ES staff are embedded into the one-stop delivery model.  
Services provided by ES staff are a part of this integrated workforce system.  All center 
staff duties and responsibilities are clearly outlined and are aligned with the overall roles 
and responsibilities of the workforce system.  Staff receive comprehensive training in the 
integrated model and how each program/function interacts and impacts all programs in 
the service delivery model.  Center staff are cross-trained to ensure services are provided 
consistently across all programs to provide efficiencies.


Centers conduct daily huddles and weekly meetings with all staff to discuss needs of 
employers and career seekers to avoid duplication of services.  Weekly conference calls are 
held with management to ensure information is shared at all levels. Meetings with all staff 
share information regarding changes to processes, new directives, as well as challenges 
identified in the system.  All staff coordinate and work hiring events as a team.  Workforce 
Center Managers provide daily supervision of ES staff and their functions consistent with 
the supervision of all center staff.  Management works with TWC Integrated Service Area 
Managers on HR concerns and keeps them informed of any potential issues.


(WIOA §108(b)(12); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(11))


A description of plans, assurances, and strategies for maximizing coordination, improving 
service delivery, and avoiding duplication of Wagner-Peyser Act services and other services 
provided through the one-stop delivery system.


D. Coordination of Wagner-Peyser Services







• 48 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


WSNCT has transitioned to a paperless environment through an Enterprise Content 
Management (ECM) application, Laserfiche, that enables the efficient management of 
documents and information.  Customer files are accessible to all staff with designated 
security rights/protocols from any location and documents can be routed to complete 
intake and case management functions among and between programs.  The system 
captures, routes, and facilitates the approval of documents through a web-based 
environment.  Common intake processes have been fully integrated to facilitate intake and 
case management between programs that utilize the same or similar documents/forms 
and are maintained within the same electronic file.  Additionally, the tool provides the ability 
to automatically manage the workload of case managers in accordance with workload and 
case assignment rules identified by workforce center management. 


The WSNCT Mobile Workforce Unit (MWU) is a moving extension of an operating 
workforce center, aiding WSNCT in bringing direct services to customers in areas where 
there is no traditional workforce center presence.  With access to high-speed internet 
and 13 accessible computer workstations, career seeker customers may search for jobs, 
improve their resumes, and receive training wherever needed.  Employer customers may 
have access to a mobile human resources office, and communities may provide dislocated 
workers immediate access to re-employment resources


(WIOA §108(b)(21); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(20))


Boards must include a description of how one-stop centers are implementing and transitioning 
to an integrated, technology-enabled intake and case management information system for 
programs carried out under WIOA and by one-stop partners.


E. Integrated, Technology-Enabled Intake and Case Management


Part 5: Workforce Investment Activities


(WIOA §108(b)(5); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(4))


Boards must include an explanation of how the Board will coordinate local workforce investment 
activities with regional economic development activities that are carried out in the workforce 
area and how the Board will promote entrepreneurial-skills training and microenterprise services


A. Economic Development and Entrepreneurial/Microenterprise Activities


WSNCT has collaborated with economic development entities and other organizations 
that promote and support entrepreneurial activities and growth.  In addition to providing 
continuous referrals to local small business development centers and the Small Business 
Administration, WSNCT staff is positioned to participate and collaborate with organizations 
such as Inspire Frisco - a collaboration between the City of Frisco and UNT-Frisco, - and 
Stoke Denton, both of which are designed to encourage entrepreneurial growth, provide 
mentorship, and continued education and support.  WSNCT will continue to collaborate with 
organizations and initiatives that support the development and growth of entrepreneurship. 


WSNCT provides entrepreneurial opportunities to career seekers through course offerings 







• 49 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


available through on-line platforms via our Subrecipient.  LinkedIn Learning provides a 
variety of courses to promote entrepreneurial-skills training.


(WIOA §108(b)(8); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(7))


Boards must include a description of how the Board will coordinate workforce investment 
activities carried out in the workforce area with statewide rapid response activities described 
in WIOA §134(a)(2)(A).


B. Rapid Response Activity Coordination


Rapid Response services are designed to transition dislocated workers from layoff status 
to productive employment as quickly as possible. These services apply from the time of 
the initial layoff notification until the worker is reemployed or enrolled in WIOA formula 
funded services. This process provides the seamless transition of dislocated workers from 
Rapid Response services to longer-term employment or training services if appropriate. 


Rapid Response services are initiated upon receipt of notification of an impending layoff or 
closure by the Rapid Response Team, which consists of the Texas Workforce Commission 
(TWC) Dislocated Worker Unit, the Board Rapid Response Coordinator (BRRC), the 
TWC Unemployment Insurance (UI) Field Representative and the Local Rapid Response 
Coordinator (LRRC). Notification can occur in the following formats:


 ■ Worker Adjustment Retraining Notification Act (WARN notice);
 ■ A telephone call from an employer, labor union or employee at a company with an 


impending layoff;
 ■ Affected workers begin using Workforce Center services and notify staff therein;
 ■ An article in a newspaper or other publication;
 ■ Notification from a community organization; or
 ■ A Trade Adjustment Assistance (TAA) Petition filed with the Department of Labor (DOL).


The layoff notification is then shared with the Rapid Response Team and contact is 
established with the employer within 48 hours to investigate, confirm, offer and coordinate 
Rapid Response services.  If possible, an Onsite or Virtual Management Meeting with the 
employer is scheduled.


The purpose of the Management Meeting is to provide the employer with an overview 
of the Rapid Response program and its early intervention services and Unemployment 
Information.  The meeting is held as soon as possible and includes attendance of 
designated Team members and all appropriate company personnel and union and/or 
bargaining unit representatives. As a member of the Rapid Response Team, the TWC UI 
Field Representative is part of developing the Rapid Response plan and may be assigned 
duties under the plan as appropriate. Rapid Response services are provided on location 
whenever possible.  The TWC Rapid Response Coordinator provides a Rapid Response 
event number used to record services provided to employers and participants in TWC’s 
TWIST and WIT databases.


A TWC UI Field Representative will brief the employer on relevant UI filing processes 
including mass claims, and Shared Work.







• 50 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


(WIOA §108(b)(9); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(8))


Boards must include a description and assessment of the type and availability of workforce 
investment activities for youth in the workforce area, including activities for youth with disabilities. 
This description must include an identification of successful models of such activities.


C. Youth Activities and Services


WSNCT serves at-risk, in-school and out-of-school youth. WSNCT provide services to youth 
participants who fall into the following barrier categories: 


 ■ Foster Care/Aging out of Foster Care Youth
 ■ Youth Offenders
 ■ Youth with Disabilities
 ■ Basic Skills Deficient
 ■ English Language Learner
 ■ Parenting or Pregnant
 ■ First Generation College Student
 ■ Habitually Truant
 ■ No Substantial Work Experience: no work history or unstable work experience.  


Youth activities are provided by a direct case manager, called a Talent Development Specialist 
(TDS), who provides one-on-one intake, assessment, and individual service planning with 
the participant. Services are tailored to the individual participants needs with the TDS 
acting as an advocate for the participant’s access to both in-house and local community 
stakeholder’s services. Stakeholders include, but are not limited to, Adult Education and 
Literacy grantees, secondary and post-secondary schools, and local employers. 


Youth with disabilities are served to enable the participant to successfully achieve 
employment and/or educational goals.  Partnerships with experts in the field of Vocational 
Rehabilitation and mental health is key in successfully serving youth with disabilities. The 
Student HireAbility Navigator program is a part of the expansion of the Pathways to Careers 
Initiative (PCI) approved by the Texas Workforce Commission (TWC) in 2017. WSNCT has 
two Student HireAbility Navigators, one at the Board and one at the Subrecipient level.  
Each Student HireAbility Navigator serves as a resource in the workforce area to support, 
expand, and enhance the provision of preemployment transition services (Pre-ETS) that 
are provided by VR as well as by other partners and programs in the workforce area.  
The primary role and responsibility of the Student HireAbility Navigator is the planning, 
coordination, promotion, and development of systemic and collaborative strategies that 
result in the provision of quality Pre-ETS for students with disabilities in the workforce area.


The WSNCT WIOA Youth Program has implemented the 14 program elements required 
under WIOA guidelines. All Youth TDS have resources to provide the 14 program elements 
listed below to provide to all eligible youth.   Each element is available year-round and 
is geared towards preparing the youth in becoming self-sufficient in the working world. 
Services are specific to the individual need of the youth.


 ■ Academic/educational enhancement skill (tutoring) provided through a system of 
referrals, collaboration with providers of such services, or procured through a competitive 
process by WSNCT.    







• 51 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


 ■ Alternative secondary school services referrals are made as appropriate.  
 ■ Paid or unpaid work experience, and/or internships are arranged when appropriate and 


in accordance with the youth’s Individual Service Strategy.
 ■ Occupational skills training in target occupations as determined by the North Central 


Texas Board area. 
 ■ Education offered concurrently with and in the same context as workforce preparation 


activities and training for a specific occupation or occupational cluster.
 ■ Leadership development opportunities, including community service and peer-centered 


activities encouraging responsibility and other positive social behaviors offered through 
Workforce Subrecipient.  


 ■ Supportive services for youth program participants include referrals to community 
services, assistance with transportation, child care and dependent care, housing costs, 
referrals to medical services, uniforms or other appropriate work attire, tools, and 
protective gear.  


 ■ Adult mentoring opportunities through coordination with school district mentoring 
programs, community groups or through a nomination from youth’s participants. 
Partnering with and referrals to existing mentor programs are pursued.


 ■ Follow-up services, including necessary supportive services, provided for a minimum of 
12 months after exit from the youth program.   


 ■ Comprehensive guidance and counseling including referral to services outside of the 
scope of employment and training.


 ■ Financial Literacy - WSNCT uses the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporations (FDIC) 
Money Smart Program for financial literacy. This is a no cost curriculum resource 
that helps individuals build financial knowledge, develop financial confidence, and use 
banking services effectively.  


 ■ Youth participants who are interested in entrepreneurial skills training are referred to 
their local Small Business Administration where information is provided on how to start 
and manage a business.


 ■ Labor market and employment information about in-demand industry sectors or 
occupations available in the workforce area, such as career awareness, career 
counseling, and career exploration services.  


 ■ Transition to post-secondary education and training such as financial aid prep, SAT/
ACT prep, student loans, school applications, scholarship applications, costs, etc.


WSNCT offers services to youth with disabilities that include a direct link to employment 
opportunities in the form of On-the-Job Training and Paid or Unpaid Work Experience. 
WSNCT partners with agencies that specifically serve disabled youth, such as MHMR and 
Vocational Rehabilitation, to leverage funds and services so that the youth’s needs are 
appropriately addressed. On-the-Job training opportunities create an avenue for workforce 
staff to develop specific job opportunities customized to the interests and specific needs of 
the participant. The employer directly invests in their own workforce pipeline by developing 
a customized employee training plan to fit their business needs. In the Paid or Unpaid work 
experience model, youth are provided an opportunity to develop basic work skills as well 
as occupational skills under the guidance of a real-world employer.  The experience gained 
through the development of skills, work experience, career/industry exploration, networking 
connections and confidence is a valuable first step in developing an occupational or 
education pathway.







• 52 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


(WIOA §108(b)(10); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(9))


Boards must include a description of how the Board will coordinate its workforce investment 
activities with relevant secondary and postsecondary education programs and activities to 
coordinate strategies, enhance services, and avoid duplication of services.


(40 TAC §809.12 Board Plan for Child Care Services)


Each Board must include a description of how the Board is strategically managing child care 
and early learning within its workforce system to enhance school readiness and strengthen and 
support the child care industry.


D. Coordination with Secondary and Postsecondary Education Programs


E. Child Care and Early Learning


WSNCT’s Partnership Development Coordinator collaborates with Career and Technical 
Education programs and other regional partners, such as Education Service Centers, and 
other intermediaries in support of workforce strategies to meet the ever-changing needs of 
the North Central Texas economy. 


WSNCT has recently begun conducting a larger needs assessment to learn more about the 
needs of our secondary education partners. We will continue to conduct this assessment 
to find the gaps in services and strategies to meet the needs of our partners - learning what 
services are meeting their needs and where there is a lag. Once those gaps are identified, 
WSNCT will strategize ways in which we may be able to meet the need, through the services 
we offer, and/or looking outward to where our partners may have interest in working 
together to meet the needs. The Partnership Development Coordinator’s attendance 
at P-16 meetings, working closely with ESCs (Region 10 & 11), and serving as a board 
member with Interlink also provides aide in discovering various efforts being made across 
the region. Having WSNCT’s voice present within these various groups strengthens the 
connection with the communities we serve and offers our availability to partner on external 
initiatives. ESCs offer an additional link to strengthening relationships with ISD leaders as 
the ESC and WSNCT work together, aiding one another’s projects and presentations, and 
highlighting the work that the other contributes for the community. Working with Interlink 
allows for WSNCT’s participation at various events and initiatives and opens to door to new 
networks of employers and ISD personnel. 
 
As WSNCT’s presence and participation continues to grow within the regional education 
community, WSNCT has identified a need for a more succinct and definitive process for the 
approval of various partnership opportunities. WSNCT has started developing a partnership 
review process that will expedite the consideration and approval of partnerships, alignments, 
or support in various capacities.


WSNCT is strategic in how we choose to participate in partnerships and opportunities, using 
the Target Occupations List as an anchor of focus. The projects, events, and initiatives we build 
and/or support will continue to strongly be determined by whether or not they align with the 
TOL, as this shows the high demand and high wage occupations within the region. Utilizing the 
TOL in this way helps maintain relevant goals with a high chance of success within the region.







• 53 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


WSNCT will support the child care industry by providing access to Texas Child Care tools 
for Texas Rising Star providers. This tool assists providers in their daily operations as well 
as provides strategies for them in strengthening their child care programs. We are also 
collaborating with four other Board areas to support child care programs during trying 
times. We have established a Child Care Business Support Network that will provide 
support to child care programs over the next year in an effort to assist child care programs 
in sustaining their business operations for the short- and long-term.


We will continue to support school readiness through our Texas Rising Star (TRS) program, 
which includes mentoring/coaching of child care professionals on developmentally 
appropriate practices and the TRS guidelines; providing opportunities for early childhood 
professionals to obtain college degrees and certifications; and providing professional 
development training opportunities to all child care programs. 


Early Childhood coalitions will continue to be developed throughout the region, and we 
will continue to work with employers, industry leaders, non-profits and others to share 
the opportunities and struggles that child care programs face.  WSNCT will convene 
employers and economic development entities in roundtable discussions to promote the 
importance of quality child care and how it relates to workforce sustainability, as well as 
learn about what child care challenges may exist in their communities. We will continue to 
share information on how child care is an economic development necessity that supports 
employers in hiring and retaining staff.  Active employer participation in ensuring child care 
quality and availability can directly affect their bottom line and workforce retention, both of 
which are major contributors to the local economy.  Economic development organizations 
have extensive employer networks and a commitment to growing and sustaining their local 
economies, thus making them high-value partners for this effort.


WSNCT covers 14 counties encompassing more than 10,000 square miles in a diverse WDA 
that includes rural and urban centers. Each community has community resources dedicated 
to the support of their citizens.  Each local workforce center updates a listing of their local 
providers on a bi-annual basis.  These community referral lists are made available to all 
participants at workforce orientations and any workforce center visitor.  WIOA participants 
who have support service needs are referred to these community service providers, with 
workforce center staff assisting the participant through the access process.


As part of the individual assessment process, a TDS conducts a needs assessment to 
determine strengths and barriers to participation in workforce activities. If support service 
needs are identified, the TDS will provide the participant with community referral information 
to access local resources. In cases where community resources are not available, WIOA 
support services may be offered. The TDS will work with the participant directly to ensure 
that all local referrals are addressed, that supporting documentation is obtained and the 


(WIOA §108(b)(11); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(10))


Boards must include a description of how the Board will provide transportation, including public 
transportation, and other appropriate support services in the workforce area incoordination 
with WIOA Title I workforce investment activities.


F. Transportation and Other Support Services







• 54 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


request is generated timely.  Transportation assistance may be offered via bus or transit 
passes, or transportation reimbursement via a reloadable debit card. 


WSNCT provides expanded access through virtual services to reduce barriers to 
transportation and enhance services to participants within our workforce development 
area.


In order to integrate Adult Education & Literacy services with workforce and training services 
within the WSNCT 14-county area, the AEL/Workforce Regional Coalition was formed. 


The Regional Coalition is comprised of representatives from WSNCT board staff, 
Subrecipient staff, and five TWC contracted AEL Providers, including Weatherford 
ISD, Denton ISD, Navarro College, Paris Junior College, and Grayson College. Basic and 
secondary instruction and services provided to adults by these AEL partners enable them 
to effectively acquire the basic educational skills necessary for literate functioning, to 
participate in job training and retraining programs, to continue education to at minimum 
the completion of secondary school, and to obtain and retain employment.


The Regional Coalition supports the goal of increasing employment outcomes for under-
skilled populations, promotes continuous improvement in the area of mutual performance, 
and identifies and closes strategic and operational gaps within the WSNCT service delivery 
area. Monthly meetings are held to discuss, plan and develop collaborative strategies to 
keep the local integration process moving forward.  The coalition members attend TWC-
lead AEL/ Workforce Business Meetings and Conferences with other workforce boards 
and AEL partners from around the State to glean helpful information and learn from best 
practices that may assist in local integration efforts.  
 
A joint MOU established under the umbrella of the AEL-North Central Texas Workforce 
Regional Coalition has been established between WSNCT and our five AEL partners to 
address customer referrals, coordination/integration of services, and provision of program 
delivery and services. 


How the Board Will Review Local AEL Applications  
The Board will select a review team to individually review all applications/grant proposals 
received from local AEL providers. The review team will consist of one or more of the 
Board’s members or staff members. The Board’s process for reviewing AEL provider grant 
proposals is based upon WIOA regulation and TWC guidance. 


A designated point of contact for the review team is identified and TWC notified of the 
contact through appropriate channels. A Nondisclosure and Conflict of Interest Statement 


(WIOA §108(b)(13); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(12))


Boards must include a description of how the Board will coordinate WIOA Title I workforce 
investment activities with AEL activities under WIOA Title II. This description must include how 
the Board will carry out the review of local applications submitted under Title II consistent with 
WIOA §§107(d)(11)(A) and (B)(i) and WIOA §232.


G. Coordination of Adult Education and Literacy (AEL)







• 55 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


is completed by the point of contact and each identified reviewer on the team. All AEL 
provider grant proposals submitted to TWC within the designated time frame for the 
WSNCT board area will be submitted to the designated point of contact and reviewed by 
the review team to provide TWC with any recommendations related to alignment with the 
Board plan.


Part 6: Adult, Dislocated Workers, and Youth Services


(WIOA §108(b)(7); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(6))


Boards must include a description and assessment of the type and availability of adult and 
dislocated worker employment and training activities in the workforce area. Boards must 
include a description and assessment of the type and availability of adult, dislocated worker 
and youth employment and training activities in the workforce area.


Boards must also include the list of assessment instruments (tools) used for adult, dislocated 
worker, and youth.


A. Adult and Dislocated Worker Employment and Training


Adult services are provided to help career seekers who are at least 18 years old succeed in 
the labor market. WIOA establishes a priority in the adult program for serving low-income 
individuals, recipients of public assistance, and individuals lacking basic work skills. 
Dislocated worker services are provided to workers who have lost their job, through no 
fault of their own. The goal of dislocated worker services is to help these individuals obtain 
quality employment in in-demand industries.  WSNCT provides the following services to 
Adults and Dislocated Workers:


Career Services - Career services for adults and dislocated workers are available in 11 
of the 12 workforce centers in the WSNCT region.  Basic and individualized services are 
provided as appropriate, and adequately resourced, and may include the following: 


 ■ Determinations of whether an individual is eligible to receive assistance 
 ■ Outreach, intake (including worker profiling), and orientation to information and other 


services available through the Texas workforce system; 
 ■ Initial assessment of skills levels, including literacy, numeracy, and English language 


proficiency, as well as aptitudes, abilities (including skills gaps), and support service 
needs;


 ■ Labor exchange services, including job search and placement assistance, career 
coaching, information on nontraditional employment and in-demand industry sectors 
and occupations;


 ■ Referrals to and coordination of activities with other programs and services, including 
programs and services within the WSNCT workforce system and, when appropriate, 
other workforce development programs; 


 ■ Workforce and labor market employment statistics information, including information 
relating to local, regional, and national labor market areas, including job vacancy listings 
in labor market areas, information on job skills necessary to obtain the vacant jobs listed, 
and information relating to Target Occupations and the earnings, skills requirements, 
and opportunities for advancement in those jobs; 







• 56 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


 ■ Information on eligible providers of training services; 
 ■ Information about how WSNCT is performing on local performance accountability 


measures, as well as any additional performance information relating to the Texas 
workforce system; 


 ■ Information relating to the availability of support services or assistance, and appropriate 
referrals to those services and assistance, including child care, child support, medical 
or child health assistance available through the state’s Medicaid program and Children’s 
Health Insurance Program, benefits under the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance 
Program (SNAP), assistance through the earned income tax credit, and assistance 
under a state program for Temporary Assistance for Needy Families (TANF), and other 
support services and transportation provided through that program; 


 ■ Information and assistance regarding filing claims for unemployment compensation; 
 ■ Assistance in establishing eligibility for programs of financial aid assistance for training 


and education programs not provided under WIOA; 
 ■ Comprehensive and specialized assessments of the skills levels and service needs of 


adults and dislocated workers, which may include, diagnostic testing and use of other 
assessment tools, and in-depth interviewing and evaluation to identify employment 
barriers and appropriate employment goals; 


 ■ Development of an individual employment plan; 
 ■ Group or individual counseling; 
 ■ Career planning; 
 ■ Short-term prevocational services, including development of learning skills, 


communication skills, interviewing skills, punctuality, personal maintenance skills, and 
professional conduct services to prepare individuals for unsubsidized employment or 
training;


 ■ Internships and work experience;
 ■ Workforce preparation activities; 
 ■ Financial literacy services; 
 ■ Out-of-area job search and relocation assistance;
 ■ English language acquisition and integrated education and training programs; 
 ■ Follow-Up Services; 
 ■ Training Services; 


Youth services incorporate the 14 program elements required under WIOA guidelines. All 
Youth TDS have resources to provide the services listed below to all eligible youth.   Services 
are specific to the individual needs of the youth and each element is available year-round 
and geared towards preparing the youth in becoming self-sufficient in the working world. 
 


 ■ Academic/educational enhancement skill (tutoring) provided through a system of 
referrals, collaboration with providers of such services, or procured through a competitive 
process by WSNCT.    


 ■ Alternative secondary school services referrals are made as appropriate.  
 ■ Paid or unpaid work experience, and/or internships are arranged when appropriate and 


in accordance with the youth’s Individual Service Strategy.
 ■ Occupational skills training in target occupations as determined by the North Central 


Texas Board area. 
 ■ Education offered concurrently with and in the same context as workforce preparation 


activities and training for a specific occupation or occupational cluster.
 ■ Leadership development opportunities, including community service and peer-centered 


activities encouraging responsibility and other positive social behaviors offered through 
Workforce Subrecipient.  







• 57 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


 ■ Supportive services for youth program participants include referrals to community 
services, assistance with transportation, childcare and dependent care, housing costs, 
referrals to medical services, uniforms or other appropriate work attire, tools, and 
protective gear.  


 ■ Adult mentoring opportunities through coordination with school district mentoring 
programs, community groups or through a nomination from youth’s participants. 
Partnering with and referrals to existing mentor programs are pursued.


 ■ Follow-up services, including necessary supportive services, provided for a minimum of 
twelve months after exit from the youth program.   


 ■ Comprehensive guidance and counseling including referral to services outside of the 
scope of employment and training.


 ■ Financial Literacy - WSNCT uses the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporations (FDIC) 
Money Smart Program and ResCare Roadmap to Success workshop for financial 
literacy. This is a no cost curriculum resource that helps individuals build financial 
knowledge, develop financial confidence, and use banking services effectively. 


 ■ Youth participants who are interested in entrepreneurial skills training are referred to 
their local Small Business Administration where information is provided on how to start 
and manage a business.


 ■ Labor market and employment information about in-demand industry sectors or 
occupations available in the workforce area, such as career awareness, career 
counseling, and career exploration services.  


 ■ Transition to post-secondary education and training such as financial aid prep, SAT/
ACT prep, student loans, school applications, scholarship applications, costs, etc.


 
WSNCT offers services to youth with disabilities that include a direct link to employment 
opportunities in the form of On-the-Job Training and Paid or Unpaid Work Experience. 
WSNCT partners with agencies that specifically serve disabled youth, such as MHMR and 
Vocational Rehabilitation, to leverage funds and services so that the youth’s needs are 
appropriately addressed. On-the-Job training opportunities create an avenue for workforce 
staff to develop specific job opportunities customized to the interests and specific needs of 
the participant. The employer directly invests in their own workforce pipeline by developing 
a customized employee training plan to fit their business needs. In the Paid or Unpaid work 
experience model, youth are provided an opportunity to develop basic work skills as well 
as occupational skills under the guidance of a real-world employer.  The experience gained 
through the development of skills, work experience, career/industry exploration, networking 
connections and confidence is a valuable first step in developing an occupational or 
education pathway.  


WSNCT provides comprehensive and specialized assessments through online assessment 
tools and Tests of Adult Basic Education (TABE) to assist in developing individualized 
employment plans to support the needs of the customer.


(20 CFR §679.560(b)(21))


Boards must include the Board policy to ensure that priority for adult individualized career 
services and training services will be given to recipients of public assistance, other low-income 
individuals, and individuals who are basic skills deficient, consistent with WIOA §134(c)(3)(E) 


B. Priority to Recipients of Public Assistance and Low-Income Individuals







• 58 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas ensures that veterans and eligible spouses 
receive priority of service for all Department of Labor-funded job training programs, 
including Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act.  Individualized Career and Training 
Services must be given on a priority basis, regardless of funding levels, in the following 
order:


1. Eligible veterans and eligible spouses, as defined in WD Letter 25-15, who are also 
recipients of public assistance, low income, or basic skills deficient;


2. Non-covered persons (individuals who are not veterans or eligible spouses) who 
are also recipients of public assistance, low income or basic skills deficient in the 
following order:


a. Foster youth and former foster youth, as defined in WD Letter 43-11, Change 
2, as required by Texas Family Code §264.121


b. Non-foster youth
3. All other eligible veterans and eligible spouses;
4. Priority populations established by the governor in the following order:


a. All other foster youth and former foster youth, as required by Texas Labor 
Code §264.121


5. Non-covered individuals outside of the groups given priority under WIOA


The Board approved policy on priority of services is included as Attachment A.


and §680.600 of the Final Regulations, as well as veterans and foster youth, according to the 
priority order outlined in the WIOA Guidelines for Adults, Dislocated Workers, and Youth. Boards 
must also include a list of any Board-established priority groups, if any.


Part 7: Fiscal Agent, Grants, and Contracts


(WIOA §108(b)(15); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(14))


Boards must include identification of the entity responsible for the disbursal of grant funds 
described in WIOA §107(d)(12)(B)(i)(III), as determined by the CEOs or the governor under 
WIOA §107(d)(12)(B)(i).


A. Fiscal Agent


In 1993, Texas led the nation by building a workforce development system created to 
improve service delivery through local control and coordination of services through 
integrated programs.  On May 23, 1996, Governor George W. Bush certified the North 
Central Texas Workforce Development Area and on July 25, 1996, the Chief Elected 
Officials of 14-county WDA signed a partnership agreement forming the North Central 
Texas Workforce Development Board.  The North Central Texas Council of Governments 
was selected to be the Board’s fiscal agent, grant recipient and administrative agent. In an 
effort to improve branding across the state, the Board joined with its 27 partners across 
the state and became generally known as Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas.  
The Partnership Agreement remains in effect today, and WSNCT has celebrated 24 years 
of successful operation.







• 59 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


(WIOA §108(b)(16); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(15))


Boards must include a description of the competitive process that will be used to award the 
sub-grants and contracts for WIOA Title I activities.


B. Sub-Grants and Contracts


Competitive Process for Award of Sub-grants and Contracts: 


The competitive process used in awarding grants and contracts complies with federal 
procurement principles, TWC directives and the TWC Financial Manual for Grants and 
Contracts, which requires “full and open competition”, fair and equal treatment, and “arms- 
length” relationships with all potential proposers.  These principles are addressed in policies 
and procedures, which require that: (1) selection of a service provider shall be made on a 
competitive basis to the extent practicable; (2) the process be conducted according to strict 
ethical standards, including a code of conduct for Board members and staff, and a policy to 
guard against “real or apparent” conflicts of interest; (3) confidentiality and non-disclosure 
of submission information are maintained prior to the procurement decision; (4) a policy 
of openness and access to public records apply after the decision; and (5) fairness and 
objectivity are maintained in evaluation of proposals, selection, negotiations, and contract 
management.  Positive efforts are made to utilize Historically Underutilized Businesses 
(HUBs) in the provision of services.  These efforts allow those sources maximum feasible 
opportunity to compete for a contract. 


The final selection is based on a system that best serves the interests of the North Central 
Texas Workforce Development Area.   The award of a contract is made only to an entity 
who has demonstrated competence and qualifications, including: a satisfactory record of 
past performance, contractor integrity and business ethics; fiscal accountability; financial 
and technical resources; ability to meet the requirements of the RFP, and any applicable 
regulations of the Board’s funding sources.







• 60 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Part 8: Performance


(WIOA §108(b)(17); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(16))


Boards must include a description of the local levels of performance negotiated with TWC and the 
CEOs consistent with WIOA §116(c), to be used to measure the performance of the area and to 
be used by the Board for measuring the performance of the local fiscal agent (where appropriate), 
eligible providers under WIOA Title I subtitle B, and the one-stop delivery system in the area.


A. Board Performance Targets


BCY21 formally contracted performance measures and available performance targets (As 
of January 5, 2021):


BCY21 Performance Measures BCY21Target 


Claimant Reemployment w/in 10 Weeks Undetermined 
# Employers receiving WF Assistance Undetermined 
Choices Full Work Rate – All Family Total  Undetermined 
Avg # Children Served Per Day - Combined (Discrete Month) 7,025 
Employed/Enrolled Q2 Post Exit – C&T Undetermined 


Employed/Enrolled Q2Q4 Post Exit – C&T Undetermined 


Medina Earnings Q2 Post Exit – C&T Undetermined 


Credential Rate – C&T  Undetermined 


Employed Q2 Post Exit – Adult 71.40% 


Employed Q4 Post Exit – Adult 70.80% 


Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit - Adult $5,300 


Measurable Skills Gain - Adult 60.00% 


Credential Rate - Adult  68.40% 


Employed Q2 Post Exit – DW 75.30% 


Employed Q4 Post Exit – DW 79.20% 


Measurable Skills Gain – DW 49.00% 


Median Earnings Q2 Post exit - DW $8,100 


Credential Rate - DW 71.20% 


Employed/Enrolled Q2 Post Exit – Youth 69.40% 
Employed/Enrolled Q4 Post Exit – Youth 73.80% 
Credential Rate – Youth 46.80% 
Measurable Skills Gain – Youth 45.90% 


Median Earnings Q2 Post Exit – Youth $3,400 


 







• 61 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Part 9: Training and Services


(WIOA §108(b)(19); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(18))


Boards must include a description of how training services outlined in WIOA §134 will be 
provided through the use of ITAs, including, if contracts for training services will be used, how 
the use of such contracts will be coordinated with the use of ITAs under that chapter, and 
how the Board will ensure informed customer choice in the selection of training programs, 
regardless of how the training services are to be provided.


(20 CFR §663.420)


Boards may impose limits on the duration and amount of ITAs. If the state or Board chooses 
to do so, the limitations must be described in the Board Plan, but must not be implemented in 
a manner that undermines WIOA’s requirement that training services are to be provided in a 
manner that maximizes customer choice in the selection of an Eligible Training Provider.


A. Individual Training Accounts (ITAs)


B. ITA Limitations


Informed customer choice is a cornerstone of the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity 
Act. WSNCT provides access to training services using a process of an individual participant 
assessment coupled with the development of an individual employment plan to assist the 
career seeker in the decision to take advantage of training services. 
  
WIOA participants are directed to labor market information to review job and industry 
growth, and wage information.


WIOA participants have access to a full array of qualified and competitive eligible training 
providers. The participants also have full access to the statewide ETP list of training 
providers and their performance data. Participants are encouraged to fully evaluate all 
training providers and program offerings to earn an industry recognized credential. WSNCT 
assists the participant to determine all sources of grant funding options to cover the costs 
of training, such as applying for PELL grants, local and state grant options, and veterans 
funding, if eligible. Workforce center staff works closely with participants to develop 
a budget to cover tuition and living expenses related to training throughout the training 
period. The ITA comes in the form of a voucher that allows the participant to work directly 
with the training provider. 


WIOA training services under section 134 are offered in the form of on-the-job training 
placements.  The Business Services Consultants work hand in hand with WIOA TDSs on 
behalf of the WIOA participant. The Business Consultants promote the WIOA candidates 
directly to employers who are in need of developing a strong workforce with customized 
skill sets that immediately benefit their business needs. The OJT placement is structured 
using the same assessment and plan development to identify the participant strengths 
and occupational interests. WSNCT employs the use of an OJT contract with the employer 
for wage reimbursement.







• 62 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Exceptions to ITA limitations may be provided for individual cases and must be described in 
Board policies.


WSNCT has imposed a limit for ITAs of $15,000 for training services, required fees, and 
materials.  Exceptions to the ITA funding cap are determined on a case-by-case basis with 
sufficient documentation and approvals.


Part 10: Apprenticeship


(WIOA §108(b)(19); 20 CFR §679.560(b)(18))


Boards must include a description of how the Board will encourage Registered Apprenticeship 
programs in its workforce area to register with the Eligible Training Provider System in order to 
receive WIOA funding.


Boards must include a description of the Board’s strategy and commitment to support 
ApprenticeshipTexas efforts across the state, as applicable.


A. Registered Apprenticeship Programs


B. ApprenticeshipTexas


WSNCT will continue to promote and educate on the importance and value of Registered 
Apprenticeships to employers and other community partners.  This awareness and 
education will be shared through employer engagement meetings (individual and roundtable 
discussions) and will be promoted as a high-value talent development strategy. During 
these discussions, WSNCT will highlight the benefit of and encourage employers to register 
their program(s) on the statewide Eligible Training Providers List in order to potentially 
receive WIOA funding for qualified candidates.  It will be positioned to employers as a 
means to further promote their program throughout the state, as well as potentially present 
an opportunity to leverage funding. This also creates involvement from the Workforce 
Subrecipient to educate career seekers on available apprenticeship opportunities.


Registered Apprenticeship development, expansion, and awareness is a part of the WSNCT 
Strategic Plan, and goals will continue to be set for outreaching and educating partners on 
the importance of apprenticeship to workforce. The Apprenticeship Navigator and WSNCT 
staff will continue to support the development of new RA programs and the expansion 
of existing RA programs through targeted industry outreach supported by labor market 
data, roundtable collaborations with community partners and stakeholders, and employer 
needs.  WSNCT was awarded an ApprenticeshipTexas Expansion Grant in September 2020 
in the amount of $120,000.  A portion of the grant will be used to support the training efforts 
and expansion of Bombardier’s Aircraft Assembler Registered Apprenticeship Program.  
WSNCT will utilize the remaining grant funds further provide education and resources 
for Registered Apprenticeship and develop an education and awareness strategy for the 
employers to encourage the development of new programs.  During these discussions, 
WSNCT will highlight the benefit of employers to register their program(s) on the statewide 
Eligible Training Providers List in order to potentially receive WIOA funding for qualified 







• 63 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


candidates.  This also creates involvement from the Workforce Subrecipient to educate 
career seekers on available apprenticeship opportunities.


Part 11: Public Comment
Boards must include a description of the process used by the Board, consistent with WIOA
§108(d), 20 CFR §679.550(b) and §679.560(b) and (e), to:


• make copies of the proposed local plan available to the public through electronic and other 
means, such as public hearings and local news media;


• include an opportunity for comment by members of the public, including representatives of 
business, labor organizations, and education;


• provide at least a 15-day, but no more than a 30-day period for comment on the plan before 
its submission to TWC, beginning on the date that the proposed plan is made available, 
before its submission to TWC; and


• submit any comments that express disagreement with the plan to TWC along with the plan.


The Board’s plan was available for public comment online, as well as in hard copy upon 
request.  The plan was posted to the Board’s website, www.dfwjobs.com, from January 22, 
2021 to February 8, 2021.  Ads inviting local comment were placed in ten local papers and 
an email soliciting comment was sent to major stakeholders such as elected officials and 
education partners via Constant Contact.  Comments could be submitted by email and 
contact information was listed on the website.







• 64 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Appendix: Texas Workforce Investment Council Requirements 


Local Workforce Development Board Strategic Planning


Demonstrating Alignment with Texas’ Strategic Plan for the Workforce System


Focus on Employers


System Goal 1 and Rationale


The Texas Workforce Investment Council (TWIC) is charged under Texas Government Code
§2308.101(5), 2308.302(a), and 2308.304(a)(b)(4), and the Workforce Innovation and Opportunity 
Act of 2014 (WIOA) (Public Law 113–128) with recommending the plans of Local Workforce 
Development Boards (Boards) to the governor for consideration for approval. TWIC reviews each 
Board Plan to ensure that local goals and objectives are consistent with the statewide goals and 
objectives in the system plan, The Texas Workforce System Strategic Plan FY 2016–FY 2023, 
which can be found at https://gov.texas.gov/uploads/files/organization/twic/System-Strategic-
Plan- Update.pdf.


Additionally, state law charges TWIC with reporting annually to the governor and to the Texas 
legislature on the implementation of the system’s strategic plan and monitoring the operation 
of the state’s workforce system to assess the degree to which the system is effective in 
achieving state and local goals and objectives. Therefore, TWIC also reviews Board Plans and 
plan modifications to determine each Board’s progress in implementing strategies that align 
with the strategic plan for the Texas workforce system. Following consideration for approval at 
a regularly scheduled quarterly meeting, TWIC recommends the Board Plans to the governor for 
consideration for approval. Boards’ responses to the following planning elements are reviewed by 
TWIC for alignment and are the basis for recommending approval.


By accessing critical education and labor data sets, employers can better find and plan 
for skilled workers to meet their needs in both the immediate time frame and the future. 
Through greater engagement with employers, education and training providers can better 
design career and technical education content and delivery options that are more aligned 
with industry needs. Providers can make adjustments in program content to benefit 
employers and students, as well as address both state and regional economic needs.


The four sections below list and describe the four system goals from The Texas Workforce System 
Strategic Plan FY 2016–FY 2023 (2020 Update) that identify critical, high-priority system issues 
for the state. For each goal, briefly describe one significant Board strategy or initiative that 
fulfills the intent of the goal. Also, please include the corresponding page number(s) within your 
plan that further details the identified strategy or initiative.







• 65 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Engage in Partnerships


System Goal 1—Local Board Response


System Goal 2—Local Board Response


System Goal 2 and Rationale


Board response and corresponding plan page number(s):


WSNCT will utilize a consultative approach to enhance employer relationships to gather 
data and make informed decisions that will lead to a more comprehensive approach 
to workforce development. WSNCT will additionally focus on providing more in-depth 
customized talent development strategies that will lead to more opportunities for career 
seekers.  Sector partnerships will be developed to further understand industry needs.  This 
strategy will keep WSNCT engaged in ongoing conversation about emerging trends and 
shifts in industries in the region.  The sector partnerships will be employer-led, focusing 
on agendas and points of discussion brought forth by industry.  The participation of other 
community partners and stakeholders will connect employers to other resources to resolve 
issue that fall outside of WSNCT’s purview.  (Pg # 33)


Board response and corresponding plan page number(s):


WSNCT will develop and convene sector partnerships to enhance understanding of 
regional needs and facilitate solution development to address those expressed needs for 
the purpose of improving our employers’ competitiveness and increasing and diversifying 
career opportunities for our communities.  These partnerships will include representation 
from economic development organizations, higher education, independent school districts, 
and non-profit organizations that have access to targeted populations.  These partnerships 
will align with WSNCT’s key priorities to ensure that the board continues to carry out its 
mission and that our work is relevant and impactful.


WSNCT is developing a strong partnership review process that will expedite the 
consideration of and approval of partnerships, alignments, or support in various capacities. 
As requests from the community and education groups for partnerships come to WSNCT, 


Through collaborative and transparent processes, workforce system partners focus on 
outcomes that improve the employability of all program participants—from across a wide 
spectrum of capabilities and experiences—to meet employer needs. The leveraging of 
partnerships to enhance system alignment and outcomes depends on trust, a culture of 
collaboration both within and external to the workforce system, deep working relationships, 
and technical capacity to communicate to share needs, data, and information. Partnerships 
can provide for common planning, intake, and reporting on outcomes, as well as ensuring a 
“no wrong door” approach to the provision of workforce programs and services.







• 66 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


such as playing a role of support within grant opportunities, consortia, apprenticeships, etc., 
WSNCT has identified a need for a more succinct and definitive process for the approval of 
various partnership opportunities. These asks are typically handled via numerous emails 
to different parties and individuals, as well as informative meetings with various individuals 
to clarify the ask, and many follow-up emails and/or meetings. A plan is being developed 
to streamline and automate this process through Laserfiche in order to inform and alert 
selected staff and decision makers pertaining to the ask. Information will be entered into 
the Laserfiche system, which will send alerts that automatically include important details 
such as due dates and an outline of the ask through a paperless and efficient process. This 
process includes automated tasks and alerts for appropriate individuals to complete in a 
timely manner to keep the process moving along, as well as serve as a reference point with 
pertinent information, creating efficiency. This tool will deter the team from losing track 
of proposals or falling behind schedule while making strenuous efforts to inform various 
individuals. WSNCT will be able to efficiently inform and receive approval for partnerships 
or support and complete formal documents or letters recognizing the partnership approval 
or support in a timely manner. 
 
The Partnership Development Coordinator will continue to build partnerships across the area 
with colleges and ISDs in order to deepen those relationships, share data and information, 
and assist on workforce programs and services. Alignment on grant opportunities from 
Texas Workforce Commission continues to grow. As grant opportunities such as the Jobs 
and Educations for Texas (JET) and the Dual Credit continue to present themselves to the 
state, WSNCT will continue to spread awareness of the opportunities, share information, 
make connections, and offer technical assistance when appropriate for applicants. 
WSNCT has hosted JET grant workshops and plans to continue offering this great learning 
opportunity for our region as well as expand these workshops to continue working with 
TWC staff to provide more information for the Dual Credit grant. 
 
Sharing Labor Market Information and outreach efforts to ensure our partners can count 
on WSNCT for data needs will continue to grow. As the Texas Education Agency continues 
to emphasize the importance of educators making data-driven decisions around program 
offerings and opportunities, and as CTE programs continue to align to high-demand 
occupations and industries, WSNCT plans to continue the outreach and involvement as a 
resource and stakeholder for ISDs and colleges. The Partnership Development Coordinator 
will continue to seek out information and stay informed of opportunities for secondary and 
post-secondary institutions and will continue to find creative ways to assist our partners 
with LMI and/or partnerships. Most recently, WSNCT activated the participation within the 
Perkins V Comprehensive Local Needs Assessment for several partners, providing targeted 
LMI and participation in stakeholder meetings. Making available the local knowledge of 
workforce trends in the region, employer partnerships, education resources and training 
opportunities, as well as knowing the needs and goals of our partners, will continue to help 
us build our relationships within the region and become part of the solutions to align with 
the workforce goals across the state.  (Pg #34, 52)







• 67 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


Align System Elements


Improve and Integrate Programs


System Goal 3 and Rationale


System Goal 4 and Rationale


System Goal 3—Local Board Response


By improving transitions, aligning programs, and ensuring portability and transferability, 
Texas improves access and the ability of all participants to complete programs of study, 
earn credentials, transition to further education, and gain critical employability skills. Texas 
employers are better positioned to find and hire the employees they need through an 
enhanced education and training pipeline.


Accelerate employment and improve efficiencies through shared resources that can be 
leveraged to create new, relevant, and innovative opportunities that serve the needs of 
all stakeholders. By addressing high-priority programmatic needs through an integrated 
strategy, decision-making at the system, partner, and participant levels is improved and 
system service delivery is enhanced.


The changing economic and educational landscapes provide opportunities to share relevant 
data through appropriate “push” mechanisms in an organized manner to key stakeholders 
who rely on information generated by system partners.


Board response and corresponding plan page number(s):


WSNCT has developed strong partnerships with Goodwill and United Way, and has 
collaborated with other regional organizations who provide services to foster youth.  
These partnerships have allowed us to leverage resources and make referrals to services 
to Goodwill for Digital Training and to United Way to provide classroom space and cross 
referrals among agencies.  By aligning our services with these partnerships, we are able 
to collaborate at the local level to enhance the education and employment opportunities 
for the unemployed and underemployed individuals served by both parties. We continue 
to seek additional opportunities for alignment that enhance the wrap around services and 
strengthen the resources we have available to customers.  (Pg # 33)







• 68 •WD Letter 18-20, Attachment 2


System Goal 4—Local Board Response


Board response and corresponding plan page number(s):


The Target Occupations List is a resource shared with partners and the community to aid 
informed decision making based on an analysis of data. This list also serves as an internal 
resource as a first step guidance point in aligning both internal and external projects to 
the occupations identified on the list, as it showcases relevant high-demand/high-wage 
occupations within the WSNCT board area. Utilizing the list in this way ensures the success 
of new program choices for education partners. WSNCT has shared, and continues to 
share, this list as encouragement for our region to recognize where growth lies, helping to 
create relevant goals with a high chance of success for individuals.


When contacted regarding partnerships and/or approval of grant opportunities, the TOL 
is always part of the decision making and conversations with external partners. WSNCT’s 
Partnership Development Coordinator has increased presentations to colleges, ISD 
administrators, counselors, and teachers. During these presentations, the TOL is shared and 
access to other labor market data sources is explained. Through these interactions, there 
has been an increase in educators seeking out LMI services and TOL access by contacting 
WSNCT. This outreach will continue with the goal of making WSNCT an accessible resource 
for education partners seeking relevant data for decision making. (Pg # 52)





		Introduction

		Instructions for Completing the Board Plan Template

		Part 1: Board Vision and Strategies

		A. Vision and Goals

		B. Board Strategies

		C. High-Performing Board



		Part 2: Economic and Workforce Analysis

		A. Regional Economic and Employment Needs Analysis

		B. Knowledge and Skills Analysis

		C. Labor Force Analysis and Trends

		D. Workforce Development Analysis



		Part 3: Core Programs

		B. Core Programs—Expand Access, Facilitate Development, and Improve Access



		Part 4: One-Stop Service Delivery

		A. One-Stop Service Delivery System

		B. Cooperative Agreements

		C. Employer Engagement, Economic Development, and Unemployment Insurance Program Coordination

		D. Coordination of Wagner-Peyser Services

		E. Integrated, Technology-Enabled Intake and Case Management



		Part 5: Workforce Investment Activities

		A. Economic Development and Entrepreneurial/Microenterprise Activities

		B. Rapid Response Activity Coordination

		C. Youth Activities and Services

		D. Coordination with Secondary and Postsecondary Education Programs

		E. Child Care and Early Learning

		F. Transportation and Other Support Services

		G. Coordination of Adult Education and Literacy (AEL)



		Part 6: Adult, Dislocated Workers, and Youth Services

		A. Adult and Dislocated Worker Employment and Training

		B. Priority to Recipients of Public Assistance and Low-Income Individuals



		Part 7: Fiscal Agent, Grants, and Contracts

		A. Fiscal Agent

		B. Sub-Grants and Contracts



		Part 8: Performance

		A. Board Performance Targets



		Part 9: Training and Services

		A. Individual Training Accounts (ITAs)

		B. ITA Limitations



		Part 10: Apprenticeship

		A. Registered Apprenticeship Programs

		B. ApprenticeshipTexas



		Part 11: Public Comment

		Appendix: Texas Workforce Investment Council Requirements 

		Local Workforce Development Board Strategic Planning

		Focus on Employers

		Engage in Partnerships

		Align System Elements

		Improve and Integrate Programs








FY20 NCTCOG Financial Audit Review


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program.


Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals with disabilities. For the


hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. Workforce Solutions for


North Central Texas services are provided based on eligibility.







Audit Background


• The NCTCOG has an annual audit of its 


financial statements performed by an 


independent accounting firm. 


• Whitley Penn was the C.P.A. firm that 


performed the FY 2020 audit.


• The NCTCOG procures its independent audit 


firm every five (5) years.


• Field work is typically completed by the audit 


staff from September to January each year and 


the final audit report is issued by mid-February.


• Audit results are presented to the NTCOG Audit 


and Executive Committees in February.







Audit Standards


• The audit is performed in accordance with 


Government Auditing Standards (GAS), 


Uniform Guidance, and the Texas Uniform 


Grants Management Standards.


• The audit process is a risk-based approach in 


which samples are selected to identify potential 


areas of risk that could lead to material 


misstatements of the financial statements. 


Potential items to be reviewed could include:


̶ Financial transactions


̶ Staff Interviews


̶ Policies and 


Procedures


̶ Internal Audit Reports 


̶ Cost Allocations Plans


̶ Reports to various 


Funding Agencies


̶ Subrecipient Contracts







Audit Results


Whitley Penn issued the following reports and 


related opinions:


• Independent auditor’s report on the financial 


statements:


̶ Unmodified “clean” opinion


• Independent auditor’s report on internal 


controls over financial reporting and on 


compliance and other matters based on an 


audit of financial statements performed in 


accordance with Government auditing 


Standards:


̶ No findings noted







Audit Results (cont’d)


Independent auditor’s report on compliance for each major program and on internal controls 


over compliance required by Uniform Guidance and Uniform Grant Management Standards 


(Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (SEFA) and Schedule of Expenditures of State 


Awards (SESA) are the primary financial reports):


• Referred to as a “Single Audit”- A separate and distinct  “Single Audit” is required for  the federal 


and state funding sources only if the applicable funding (federal or state) exceed $750,000.  Due 


to the NCTCOG’s  total of federal funds and state funds both exceeding $750,000, a “Single 


Audit” was issued for each.  


• Major programs-The audit team will determine the major programs to be audited based on a 


prescribed formula established by the Uniform Guidance and Uniform Grant Management 


Standards ( Workforce programs included Child Care (state portion) and Reemployment 


Services and Eligibility Assessment) . 


• Unmodified “clean” Opinion-Issued on compliance for major programs


• No findings noted-Regarding significant deficiencies related to internal controls over major 


federal programs







SEFA / SESA Summary


• (SEFA) Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards: $117,585,418


• (SESA) Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards: $15,155,041


• Total Federal and State Expenditures: $132,740,459 







Funding Sources Expenditures


Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards


U.S. CORPORATION FOR NATIONAL AND COMMUNITY SERVICE 36,253                         


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 775,423                       


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE 96,373                         


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF DEFENSE 172                               


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY 124,414                       


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 67,990,995                 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY 2,082,450                   


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT 20,632                         


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 13,148,766                 


U.S. DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 32,677,705                 


U.S. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY 632,235                       


Total Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 117,585,418        


Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards


HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 837,191                       


OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR 740,504                       


TX WORKFORCE COMMISSION 10,319,636                 


TX VETERANS COMMISSION 131,750                       


TX COMM ON ENVIRON QUAL 286,803                       


TX DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION 2,839,157                   


Total Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards 15,155,041          


Total Expenditures 132,740,459        


NCTCOG


FY2020 Expenditures by 


Funding Sources 







Workforce Development


FY2020 Expenditures by 


Funding Sources Funding Sources Expenditures


Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards


DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE 775,423                


DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES 60,296,295          


DEPARTMENT OF LABOR 13,148,766          


Total Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards 74,220,484     


Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards


TX VETERANS COMMISSION 131,750                


TX WORKFORCE COMMISSION 10,319,636          


Total Schedule of Expenditures of State Awards 10,451,386     


Total Expenditures 84,671,870     







Workforce Development (cont’d)


FY2020 Expenditures by 


Funding Sources/Grants 


SESA


Grant


Department 


of 


Agriculture


Department 


of Health and 


Human Services


Department 


of 


Labor


State 


of


 Texas


Grand 


Total


CORE GRANTS


CHILDCARE 57,067,535 9,752,797 66,820,332


EMPLOYMENT SERVICES 378,774 658,525 5,705 1,043,004


NCP 146,034 110,098 256,132


SNAP 775,423 125,686 901,109


TAA 483,335 483,335


TANF 2,696,200 325,350 3,021,550


VETERANS 131,750 131,750


WIOA 10,777,652 10,777,652


CORE GRANTS TOTAL 775,423 60,288,543 11,919,512 10,451,386 83,434,864


OTHER GRANT TOTAL 7,752 1,229,254 1,237,006


Grand Total 775,423 60,296,295 13,148,766 10,451,386 84,671,870


SEFA







Conclusion


Whitley Penn issued the following reports and related opinions:


• Independent auditor’s report on the financial statements:


̶ Unmodified “clean” opinion


• Independent auditor’s report on internal controls over financial reporting and on 


compliance and other matters based on an audit of financial statements performed 


in accordance with Government auditing Standards:


̶ No findings noted


• Independent auditor’s report on compliance for each major program and on internal 


controls over compliance required by Uniform guidance and Uniform Grant 


Management Standards (Single Audit):


̶ Unmodified “clean” Opinion-Issued on compliance for major programs


̶ No findings noted-Regarding significant deficiencies related to internal controls over 


major federal programs







Questions?


This workforce product was funded by a grant awarded by the U.S. Department of Labor’s Employment and Training


Administration. The product was created by the recipient and does not necessarily reflect the official position of the U.S.


Department of Labor. The Department of Labor makes no guarantees, warranties, or assurances of any kind, express


or implied, with respect to such information, including any information on linked sites and including, but not limited to,


accuracy of the information or its completeness, timeliness, usefulness, adequacy, continued availability, or ownership.


This product is copyrighted by the institution that created it.








 
 


Glossary of Terms and Abbreviations 
 


   
 


A 
ABAWD Able Bodied Adults without 


Dependents  
ABE Adult Basic Education 
ADA Americans with Disabilities Act 
AEL Adult Education and Literacy 
AEP Award of Excellence in Procurement 
AOP Affirmative Outreach Plan 


 


B 
BCY Board Contract Year 
BDL Business Development Liaison  
BDU Business Development Unit 


 


C 
C&T Career & Training 


  CASA Court Appointed Special         
Advocates  


CBO Community-Based Organization 
CCCC Collin County Community College  
CCDF Child Care Development Fund 
CCI Compliance and Continuous 


Improvement  
CCN             Child Care Network 
CCQ          Child Care Quality 
CCP           Child Care Program 
CCR          Child Care Regulation 
CCS Child Care Services 
CEOs Chief Elected Officials 
CEU Continuing Education Unit 
CFR Code of Federal Regulations 
CHOICES TANF employment/self-sufficiency 


program  
CHMURA Provider of JobsEQ, a proprietary labor 


market data tool  
CIP Classification of Instructional Programs 
CLI Children’s Learning Institute  
CQIP            Continuous Quality Improvement Plan 
COVID Corona Virus Disease 
CRASE Civilian Response to Active Shooter Event 
 (Training) 
CRM Customer Relationship Management  
CTE Career & Technical Education 


 


D 
D365 Dynamic 365 (partner database, CRM) 
Disallowed   Cost that is not allowed by rule or law  
DFPS Department of Family and 


Protective Services 


DOE Department of Education 
DOJ Department of Justice 
DOL Department of Labor 
DOLETA US Dept. of Labor Employment and 


Training Administration 
DW Dislocated Worker 
DOD             Department of Defense 


 


E 
E&T Employment and Training 
EDO  Economic Development 


Organizations 
ELP  Early Learning Program 
EO Equal Opportunity 
EOV Explanation of Variance 
EEO Equal Employment Opportunity  
EEOC Equal Employment Opportunity 


Commission 
EMSI            Economic Modeling, LLC, a proprietary   


labor market data tool  
ES Employment Services 
ESC Education Service Center 
ESL English as a Second Language 
ETPL Eligible Training Provider List 
EW Essential Worker 


 


F 
FDN Finance Directors Network 
FMLA Family and Medical Leave Act  
FSA Flexible Spending Account 
FTP File Transfer Protocol 
FY Fiscal Year  


 


G  
GAAP Generally Accepted Accounting Principles  
GAO General Accounting Office 
GSA General Services Administration 


 


H 
DHHS Department of Health and Human Services  
HHSC Health and Human Services Commission  
HR Human Resources 


 


I, J, K 
IBC Industry Based Certification 
IEDC International Economic Development 


Council 
IEP                Individual Employment Plan 







 
 


Glossary of Terms and Abbreviations 
 


   
 


IFA Infrastructure Agreement 
IP Internet Protocol 
ISD(s) Independent School District(s) 
ISM Institute for Supply Management 
ISS                Individual Service Strategy 
ITA Individual Training Agreement 
ITELGs Texas Infant, Toddler and Three year old 


Early Learning Guidelines 
iWork Career Exploration Initiative  
JET Jobs & Education for Texans Grant Program 
 


L 
LBB Legislative Budget Board 
LF Laserfiche 
LIA LEGACY in Action™ 
LEP Limited English Proficiency 
LMI Labor Market Information  
LMS Learning Management 


System  
LNT Leadership North Texas 
LWDA Local Workforce Development Area 
LWDB Local Workforce Development Board  


 


M 
MOU Memorandum of 


Understanding  
MPR Monthly Performance Report  
MS Microsoft 
MVV Mission, Vision, 


Values  
MWU Mobile Workforce 


Unit 
 


N 
NAB National Alliance of Businesses 
NAC National Accreditation 


Commission 
NACO National Association of Counties 
NAEYC National Association for the 


Education of Young Children 
NAFCC National Accreditation for 


Family Child Care 
NARC National Association of Regional Councils  
NAWB     National Association of Workforce Boards  
NC Navarro College 
NCTC North Central Texas College 
NCP Noncustodial Parent  
NTSCC North Texas Supply Chain Council  
NCTCOG North Central Texas Council of                


Governments 


NIMS          National Incident Management System  
NTRP-16      North Texas Regional P-16 Council  


 


O 
O&A Oversight & Accountability Committee 
OAG Office of Attorney General 
OMB Office of Management and Budget  
OSHA Occupational Safety and Health Act  
OSY Out of School Youth 
OTDC           Orientation to Discrimination 


Complaint 
 


P 
PreK ELG Prekindergarten Early Learning 


Guidelines 
PII Personally Identifiable Information 
PIRTS Program Integrity Reporting Tracking 


System 
PJC Paris Junior College  
POS Programs of Study (TEA) 
PPPA Policy, Planning, & Public Affairs 
PPANCT Public Purchasing Association of North 


Central Texas 
PRIDE Peers Recognizing Individual Deeds of 


Excellence 
PSOC           Parent Share of Cost 
TxPPA          Texas Public Purchasing Association 
PY Program Year 


 


Q, R 
 
QAN Quality Assurance Network  
QRIS Quality Rating and Improvement 


System 
R&C Risk and Compliance (NCTCOG 


Fiscal Monitors) 
RC Ranger College 
Req2Check Check Requisition Process 
RESEA Reemployment Services and Eligibility 
 Assessment 
RFP Request for Proposals 
RFQ Request for Qualifications 
RIS Research and Information Services 


Department 
RPI Rapid Process Improvement 
RWLC Regional Workforce Leadership Council  
RWY Red, White and You (Veterans job fair) 


 
 







 
 


Glossary of Terms and Abbreviations 
 


   
 


S 
SBA Small Business Administration 
SCSEP Senior Community Service 


Employment Program 
SMART Specific, Measurable, Achievable, 


Relevant, and Time-Bound 
SMSA Standard Metropolitan Statistical Area 
SEAL Summer Earn and Learn  
SEE Survey of Employee 


Engagement  
SDF Skills Development Fund 
SHN Student HireAbility Navigator 
SLC Strategic Leadership Committee 
SME Subject Matter Expert 
SMI State Median Income 
SNAP Supplemental Nutrition Assistance 


Program 
SNAP E&T   Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program 


Employment & Training 
SOW Statement of Work 
SSA Social Security Administration 
SSDI Supplemental Security Disability Income 
SSI           Supplemental Security Income 
SSL           Secure Sockets Layer 
STE(A)M Science, Technology,       


Engineering, (Art), Math 
SWOT Strengths, Weaknesses, 


Opportunities, Threats 


T 
TA Technical Assistance 
TAA Trade Adjustment 


Assistance 
TAC Texas Administrative 


Code 
TAG Technical Assistance Guide 
TAMUC Texas A&M Commerce 
TANF Temporary Assistance For Needy  
 Families  
TARC Texas Association of Regional 


Councils  
TAWB Texas Association of Workforce 
  Boards  
TDCJ Texas Department of Criminal Justice 
TEA Texas Education Agency 
TEAMS Microsoft Team Collaboration/Video 


Conferencing Platform 
TECPDS       Texas Early Childhood Professional  
                      Development System 
TEDC Texas Economic Development Council      
THECB Texas Higher Education Coordinating 
                      Board 


TML Texas Municipal League (WSNCT 
medical plan) 


TOL Target Occupations List 
TRS Texas Rising Star 
TSTC Texas State Technical College 
TSU Tarleton State University 
TRA             Trade Readjustment Allowance 
TWC Texas Workforce Commission  
TWIC Texas Workforce Investment Council 
TWIST The Workforce Information System of 


Texas 
TVC Texas Veterans Commission 
TVCC Trinity Valley Community College 
TVS Texas Veterans Services  
TWC Texas Workforce Commission 
TWU Texas Woman’s University 
TXAEYC Texas Association for the 


Education of Young Children 
TxPPA Texas Public Purchasing  
 Association  
TYC Texas Youth Commission 


 


U, V 
UGMS Uniform Grant Management 
  Standards  
UI Unemployment Insurance 
UNT University of North Texas 
VPN Virtual Private Network 
VRS Vocational Rehabilitation Services 


 


W, X, Y, Z 
WARN Worker Adjustment and Retraining 


Notification Act 
WB Workforce Board 
WCI Workforce Commission Initiatives 
WD Workforce Development 
WDB Workforce Development Board 
WFC Workforce Center 
WIA Workforce Investment Act 
WIOA Workforce Innovation and Opportunity Act  
WIT WorkInTexas.com 
WSNCT Workforce Solutions for North Central 


Texas 
WOTC Work Opportunity Tax Credit (Federal 


Tax Credit) 
ZOOM Video Conferencing Platform 
 
 





		B

		C

		D

		E

		F

		G

		H

		I, J, K

		L

		M

		N

		O

		P

		Q, R

		S

		T

		U, V

		W, X, Y, Z






Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals 
with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 


NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS WORKFORCE DEVELOPMENT BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS and NORTH CENTRAL TEXAS CHIEF ELECTED OFFICIALS 


JET Grant Update 
FY2020 


• 10 grants were submitted by colleges and ISDs for programs within our region.
• 4 out of 10 that came through our WDA were awarded:


o Boles ISD ($70,519) with Paris Jr. College as a partner for an Agriculture/Welding
program.


o Cleburne ISD ($90,388) with Hill College as a partner Bus Diesel Mechanic/Tech
program.


o Community ISD ($300,000) with TVCC as a partner for a Construction Management
program.


o Rockwall ISD ($130,399) with Collin College as a partner for a Dental program.
 30% of the funds submitted for consideration were awarded. (Total:


$591,306)
• Submitted through neighboring board, but will still benefit our service area:


o Ranger College ($282,420) for Mobile EMT program.
• One grant was awarded in Dallas County – DCCCD ($265,492) for training in the occupation


of electrical and electronical engineering technician. No grants were awarded in Tarrant
County.


• A total of 41 grants were awarded across the state. 12 to community colleges and 29 to
ISDs.


o $8,261,090.00 total amount awarded in the state.
o 11% of the amount awarded


General Improvements/Actions: 


• Scheduled a meeting with TWC/JET Grant outreach staff to become more familiar with the
expectations for the grant


• Increased awareness and encouraged submissions from our service area by:
o Hosting 2 technical assistance workshop to discuss the grant.
o Conducted targeted outreach visit to at least 24 ISDs. (20% of the school districts in


our region)
• Provided a summary, notes, and additional support so ISD’s who were interested, but couldn’t


attend workshops.
o Rockwall ISD (Awarded)
o Navarro College
o Boles ISD (Awarded)


• Provided data and technical assistance to applying ISDs and community colleges. (10)
• Encouraged non-awarded applicants to request their debriefing materials.







 


Workforce Solutions for North Central Texas is an equal opportunity employer/program. Auxiliary aids and services are available upon request to individuals 
with disabilities. For the hearing impaired, call TDD 1-800-735-2989 or VOICE 1-800-735-2988. For more information, visit www.dfwjobs.com. 


 


 


FY2021 Plans:  


• Increase the board confirmation review, approval, and signature process (as well as reduce 
cycle time) by managing the submissions through Laserfiche 


• Host virtual technical assistance workshop to a wider audience 
 
 
 


 
 
 
 












Company Name Company Address City Zip Code County Date Received Notified By
# Workers 
Affected Reason


Is This a 
Layoff?


Is Layoff 
Temporary?


Is This a 
Closure?


May 2020 - Sept 2020 Notifications 5/1/2020
Smile Doctors Braces 2417 S Stemmons Fwy #105 Lewisville 75067 Denton 5/1/2020 Phone_Call COVID_19 No Yes
Owen Oil Tools Inc 12001 County Rd 1000 Godley 76044 Johnson 5/4/2020 WARN_Letter 244 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Heritage Bag Company 501, Gateway Pkwy Roanoke 76262 Denton 5/5/2020 Email 17 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Credit Protection Association (817) 599-9411 Plano 75093 Collin 5/6/2020 WARN_Letter 24 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Courtyard by Marriott Dallas Plano/The Colony 5917 Stone Creek Dr The Colony 75056 Denton 5/11/2020 WARN_Letter 9 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Fairfeild Inn 5909 Stone Creek Dr The Colony 75056 Denton 5/11/2020 WARN_Letter 16 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Residence Inn by Marriott Dallas Plano/The Colony 6600 Cascades Ct The Colony 75056 Denton 5/11/2020 WARN_Letter 9 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Southwire 3800 SE Industrial Pkwy Mineral Wells 76067 Johnson 5/13/2020 Phone_Call,WARN_Lett 100 Production_Business_Sl


owdown
Yes No Yes


Moviehouse & Eatery 8450 TX-121 McKinney 75070 Collin 5/18/2020 WARN_Letter COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Moviehouse & Eatery 951 Long Prairie Rd Flower Mound 75022 Denton 5/18/2020 WARN_Letter COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Nokia 2525 TX-121, Lewisville, TX 75056 Lewisville 75056 Denton 5/20/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Pier 1 6101 Long Prairie Rd Suite 450 Flower Mound 75028 Denton 5/21/2020 Public_Notice COVID_19,Financial_Dif


ficulty
Yes No Yes


Easy Street Family Cafe 190 W Main St Lewisville 75057 Denton 5/26/2020 Public_Notice COVID_19 Yes No No
Tuesday Morning 4995 W Eldorado Pkwy Suite 520 Frisco 75034 Collin 5/27/2020 Public_Notice Financial_Difficulty Yes No Yes
Tuesday Morning 3333 Preston Rd Frisco 75034 Collin 5/27/2020 Public_Notice Financial_Difficulty Yes No Yes
Ameri-Fab 6364 I-20 Weatherford 76088 Parker 6/1/2020 Email 100 COVID_19,Financial_Dif


ficulty
Yes No Yes


Dallas/Plano Marriott at Legacy Town Center 7121 Bishop Rd Plano 75024 Collin 6/4/2020 WARN_Letter 176 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Jungle Joes 7447 Hillcrest Rd Frisco 75035 Collin 6/8/2020 Public_Notice COVID_19 Yes No Yes
24 Hour Fitness 4600 W Park Blvd, Plano, TX 75093 Plano 75093 Collin 6/17/2020 Public_Notice 24 COVID_19 Yes No Yes
Hipster Baby 2701 Custer Pkwy #714 Richardson 75080 Collin 6/22/2020 Public_Notice 5 COVID_19 Yes No Yes
Renaissance Dallas at Plano Legacy West Hotel 5905 Legacy Dr #200 Plano 75024 Collin 6/22/2020 WARN_Letter 61 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Whaley Products Inc 3900 S. Stonebridge Dr., Suite 1302 Mckinney 75070 Collin 6/23/2020 Email 20 COVID_19 Yes No Yes
Wellflex Energy 500 Randall St Rhome 76078 Wise 6/25/2020 WARN_Letter 43 COVID_19 Yes No Yes
Chuck E Cheese 204 N Central Expy Ste. 33 Allen 75013 Collin 6/26/2020 Public_Notice 25 COVID_19 No Yes
Oil City Works 814 S Main St Corsicana 75110 Navarro 6/30/2020 Email 28 COVID_19 Yes No Yes
Electro Rent 604 & 616 Henrietta Creek Roanoke 76262 Denton 7/1/2020 WARN_Letter 3 COVID_19 Yes No No
Microsoft Store 2601 Preston Road Suite 1176 Frisco 75034 Collin 7/3/2020 Public_Notice 20 COVID_19 Yes No Yes
Rallye Auto Service 103 W. Main St. Richardson 75081 Collin 7/14/2020 Public_Notice 8 COVID_19 Yes No Yes
California Pizza Kitchen 2601 Preston Road, Ste. 2221 Frisco 75034 Collin 7/17/2020 Public_Notice 12 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Billiard Factory 2061 S. Stemmons Freeway, Lewisville 75067 Denton 7/28/2020 Public_Notice 15 COVID_19 No Yes
Stein Mart Inc. 6101 Long Prairie Rd Suite 500 Flower Mound 75028 Denton 8/14/2020 Public_Notice 22 COVID_19 Yes No Yes
Stein Mart Inc. 3333 Preston Rd Suite 1500 Frisco 75034 Collin 8/14/2020 Public_Notice 30 COVID_19 Yes No Yes
Stein Mart Inc. 1701 Preston Rd Suite A Plano 75093 Collin 8/14/2020 Public_Notice 24 COVID_19 No Yes
Lee Hecht Harrison 2805 N, Dallas Pkwy #320 Plano 75093 Collin 8/20/2020 Phone_Call 100 COVID_19 Yes No Yes
Luby's 5040 W Park Blvd Plano 75093 Collin 9/9/2020 Phone_Call,Email 25 COVID_19 Yes No Yes
Oct 2020 - to Current (1-8-21) 10/1/2020
FireFly Gift Boutique 1377 Legacy Drive, Ste. 105 Frisco 75034 Collin 10/27/2020 Public_Notice 8 COVID_19,Production_


Business_Slowdown
Yes No Yes


JTEKT Automotive 4400 Sterilite Drive Ennis 75119 Ellis 10/28/2020 Email,Public_Notice 6 COVID_19 Yes No Yes
Delta Logistics 1426 Lee St Greenville 75401 Hunt 11/10/2020 Email 4 Production_Business_Sl


owdown
Yes No No


Romano's Macaroni Grill 2437 S Stemmons Fwy Lewisville 75067 Denton 11/19/2020 Public_Notice 25 COVID_19 No Yes


Layoff Notifications for  Period May-2020 to Current


Page 1 of 7







Company Name Company Address City Zip Code County Date Received Notified By
# Workers 
Affected Reason


Is This a 
Layoff?


Is Layoff 
Temporary?


Is This a 
Closure?


Layoff Notifications for  Period May-2020 to Current


Dallas/Plano Marriott at Legacy Town Center 7121 Bishop Rd Plano 75024 Collin 11/24/2020 Email 178 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Twisted Simplicity 6927 Main St Frisco 75034 Collin 12/11/2020 Public_Notice 6 COVID_19 No Yes
Burger King 103 Garrett Morris Pkwy Mineral Wells 76067 Parker 12/29/2020 Came in to Workforce C 10 Production_Business_Sl


owdown
No Yes


Hilite International 1671 S Broadway St Carrollton 75006 Collin 12/29/2020 Public_Notice 137 Production_Business_Sl
owdown


No Yes


Kartland Performance Indoor Raceway 10550 John W. Elliott Dr #100 Frisco 75033 Collin 1/4/2021 Public_Notice 22 COVID_19 No Yes
Macy's 2201 S Interstate 35 E Denton 76205 Denton 1/8/2021 Public_Notice 48 COVID_19 No Yes
Jan 2020 - Apr 2020 Notifications (previous report) 1/1/2020
Fluor 6322 N FM56 Glen Rose 76043 1/14/2020 Letter 70 Reorganization Yes No Yes
At Home with Shanel 1717 E. Spring Creek Parkway, Ste. 192. Plano 75023 1/27/2020 Public_Notice Reorganization Yes No Yes
Lee Hecht Harrison 2805 N, Dallas Pkwy #320 Plano 75093 2/2/2020 Email 6 Reorganization Yes No Yes
TTEC 2000 US 287 Bypass Ennis 75119 2/3/2020 Letter 50 Production_Business_Sl


owdown
Yes No Yes


Paper Destiny 2601 Preston Rd Frisco Frisco 75034 2/6/2020 Public_Notice Production_Business_Sl
owdown


Yes No Yes


Parker Hannifin 118 Washington Ave Mineral Wells 76067 2/6/2020 Worker came in to Wor  20 Production_Business_Sl
owdown


Yes No Yes


Frontier Communications 805 South Central Express Way Allen 75013 2/7/2020 Letter 40 Production_Shift_Forei
gn_Competition_Trade


Yes No No


Integrated Alliance LP 5880 N Interstate 35 Denton 76207 2/10/2020 Email,Came in to Workf  20 Financial_Difficulty Yes No Yes
XPO Logistics Supply Chain Inc. 3300 Eagle Pkwy Roanoke 76262 2/13/2020 Letter 350 Reorganization Yes No Yes
Sassy Nails and Spa 4851 Legacy Dr # 203 Frisco 75034 2/18/2020 Public_Notice Production_Business_Sl


owdown
Yes No Yes


First Student 4325 Cougar Alley The Colony 75056 2/21/2020 Email,Letter 105 Production_Business_Sl
owdown


Yes No Yes


First Student 900 South Mill Street Lewisville 75056 2/21/2020 Email,Letter 105 Production_Business_Sl
owdown


Yes No Yes


First Student 601 East Purnell Street Lewisville 75056 2/21/2020 Email,Letter 105 Production_Business_Sl
owdown


Yes No Yes


Norton Life lock 3530 W University Dr #302 Plano 75071 3/4/2020 Letter 1 Reorganization,Product
ion_Business_Slowdow
n


Yes No Yes


Gingers Popcorn 1020 E 15th St Plano 75074 3/12/2020 Public_Notice Production_Business_Sl
owdown


Yes No Yes


Halliburton I-35W Frontage Rd Alvarado 76009 3/12/2020 Public_Notice Production_Business_Sl
owdown


Yes No Yes


Custom Tacos 9169 Dallas Pkwy Frisco 75034 3/16/2020 Public_Notice Production_Business_Sl
owdown


Yes No Yes


Last Call 3000 Grapevine Mills Pkwy Suite 233 Grapevine 76051 3/16/2020 Public_Notice Production_Business_Sl
owdown


Yes No Yes


Lush 2601 Preston Road, Ste. 1054 Frisco 75034 3/17/2020 Public_Notice 12 Production_Business_Sl
owdown


Yes Yes No


Compass Group 304 Administration Dr Denton 76204 3/18/2020 Phone_Call,Email 150 Production_Business_Sl
owdown


Yes Yes No


Page 2 of 7







Company Name Company Address City Zip Code County Date Received Notified By
# Workers 
Affected Reason


Is This a 
Layoff?


Is Layoff 
Temporary?


Is This a 
Closure?


Layoff Notifications for  Period May-2020 to Current


HCL America 1945 Lakepointe Dr Lewisville 75056 3/18/2020 Letter 40 Production_Shift_Forei
gn_Competition_Trade


Yes No Yes


Certain Teed Corporation 2901 N Kaufman St Ennis 75119 3/20/2020 Phone_Call,Email COVID-19 Yes Yes No
Collin Street Bakery 2035 S. I-45 Corsicana 75110 3/20/2020 BSC Staff notified 38 COVID 19 Yes Yes No
Harley Davidson 304 Central Expy S Allen 75013 3/20/2020 Phone_Call,Email 50 COVID-19 Yes Yes No
JTEKT Automotive Texas, LP 4400 Sterilite Dr, Ennis 75119 3/20/2020 Phone_Call,Email 25 COVID-19 Yes No No
OnTrack Temporaries of Texas 3500 S. I-35 Denton 76210 3/20/2020 Phone_Call 55 COVID-19 Yes No No
PRG Production Resource Group 3110 Roy Orr Blvd Suite 200 Grand Prairie 75050 3/20/2020 Email Production_Business_Sl


owdown,COVID-19
Yes Yes No


Propell American LLC 4801 Glen Rose Hwy, Granbury 76048 3/20/2020 Email 30 Production_Business_Sl
owdown


Yes No Yes


Camouzno Martial Arts 2626 Stonebrook Pkwy #600 Frisco 75034 3/23/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
cicis pizza 604 W 7th Ave Corsicana 75110 3/23/2020 Email 15 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Embassy Suites by Hilton Denton Convention Center 3100 Town Center Tr Denton 76201 3/23/2020 Email 100 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Louis Vuitton Rochambeau Ranch 5520 County Rd 316 Alvarado 76009 3/23/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Maines Paper and Food 3000 Airport Rd Terrel 75160 3/23/2020 Email,Letter 41 Production_Business_Sl


owdown,COVID-19
Yes Yes Yes


Peterbilt Motors Co Manufacturing 3200 Airport Rd Denton 76207 3/23/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Rough Creek Lodge 5165 Co Rd 2013 Glen Rose 76043 3/23/2020 Phone_Call,Email COVID-19 Yes Yes No
Office Depot 2211 South, I-45, Corsicana 75109 3/24/2020 Email 10 Production_Business_Sl


owdown
Yes No Yes


Pearl Dentures 915 W Pearl St, Granbury 76048 3/24/2020 Email 7 Production_Business_Sl
owdown


Yes Yes No


Sirloin Stockade 2508 W 7th Ave, Corsicana 75110 3/24/2020 Email 27 COVID-19 Yes No Yes
VitalStorm 2701 Sunset Ridge Dr #302 Rockwall 75032 3/24/2020 Email Production_Business_Sl


owdown
Yes No Yes


1st Dental 900 N Blue Mound Rd #128 Saginaw 76131 3/25/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Advanced Hearing & Balance Center 5052 Tennyson Pkwy #100 Plano 75024 3/25/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Applebee's Grill + Bar 1901 S, I-45 Corsicana 75110 3/25/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Bruner Motors 1515 W South Loop Stephenville 76401 3/25/2020 Email 70 Production_Business_Sl


owdown
Yes Yes No


Burleson PREMIERE LUX Cine 14 1581 SW Wilshire Blvd Burleson 76028 3/25/2020 Email 39 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Comfort Experts 1412 Greenwood Rd, Weatherford 76086 3/25/2020 Email COVID-19 Yes Yes No
Delta Hotels Marriot 777 Watters Creek Blvd Allen 75013 3/25/2020 Email 6 COVID-19 Yes No No
Imperial Group 2188 US-380 E, Decatur Decatur 76234 3/25/2020 Phone_Call 98 Production_Business_Sl


owdown
Yes No Yes


Imperial Group 4545 Airport Rd Denton 76207 3/25/2020 Phone_Call 28 Production_Business_Sl
owdown


Yes No Yes


Iron Skillet 2001 Santa Fe Dr Weatherford 76086 3/25/2020 Email COVID-19 Yes Yes No
Kid to Kid 118 College Park Dr Weatherford 76086 3/25/2020 Email COVID-19 Yes Yes No
La Quinta Inn & Suites by Wyndham 1915 Wall St Weatherford 76086 3/25/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Motel 6 624 Boyd Rd Azle 76020 3/25/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Quality Inn & Suites 2500 S Main St Weatherford 76087 3/25/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Sports Clips 116 E, I-20 Ste. 110, Weatherford 76086 3/25/2020 Email COVID-19 Yes Yes No


Page 3 of 7







Company Name Company Address City Zip Code County Date Received Notified By
# Workers 
Affected Reason


Is This a 
Layoff?


Is Layoff 
Temporary?


Is This a 
Closure?


Layoff Notifications for  Period May-2020 to Current


Sysco 800 Trinity Dr lewisville 75056 3/25/2020 Email 150 COVID-19 Yes Yes No
Tacodeli 8442 Parkwood Blvd #700 Plano 75024 3/25/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Town East Ford 18411 Lyndon B Johnson Fwy Mesquite, 75150 3/25/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Courtyard by Marriott Midlothian Conference Center 3 Community Circle Drive Midlothian 76065 3/26/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Earls Restaurant 7401 Windrose Ave d100 Plano 75024 3/26/2020 Letter 82 COVID-19 Yes No Yes
Jostens 3500 S Interstate 35 E Denton 76210 3/26/2020 Letter 142 COVID-19 Yes No Yes
Sports Rehab & Physical Therapy 141 College Park Dr Weatherford 76086 3/26/2020 Email COVID-19 Yes Yes No
AC Hotel by Marriott Dallas Frisco 4343 Frisco Green Ave Frisco 75034 3/27/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Candlewood Suites Dallas-Frisco NW Toyota Ctr 9484 Frisco St Frisco 75033 3/27/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
GEODynamics 10400 West Interstate 20 Milsap 76086 3/27/2020 Email 43 Production_Business_Sl


owdown
Yes No Yes


SpringHill Suites 2660 S Central Expy McKinney 75070 3/27/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Valtech Solutions 7200 Bishop Rd #280 Plano 75024 3/27/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
The Westin Stonebriar Hotel & Golf Club 1549 Legacy Dr, Frisco, TX 75034 Frisco 75034 3/28/2020 Letter 123 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
ABC Software Testing 5500 Misty Crest Dr Arlington 76017 3/30/2020 Email 12 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
AMC 2601 Preston Rd #300 Frisco 75034 3/30/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
American National Bank & Trust 100 W Mulberry St STE 200 Denton 76201 3/30/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Hotel Indigo 2985 Avenue of the Stars Frisco 75034 3/30/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Kohl's Distribution Center 1600 Interstate 45 Business Corsicana 75110 3/30/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes No Yes
Omni Frisco Hotel 11 Cowboys Way Frisco 75034 3/30/2020 Public_Notice COVID_19 Yes Yes No
thirty-one gifts 951 South Garden Ridge Blvd Flowermound 75028 3/30/2020 Email,Public_Notice COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Uncle Julio's 190 E Stacy Rd STE 3400 Allen 75002 3/30/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Whitmore Manuf 930 Whitmore Dr, Rockwall 75087 3/30/2020 Email 10 Production_Business_Sl


owdown
Yes No No


Callaway Golf 700 Henrietta Creek Rd Roanoke 76262 3/31/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes No No
Cotton Patch Cafe 3128 Interstate 30 W Greenville 75402 3/31/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Cotton Patch Cafe 909 E, I-30 Ste 101 Rockwall, 75087 3/31/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Lippert Components, Inc. 101 Mushroom Rd Waxahachie 75165 3/31/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Luigi's Italian Cafe 1615 State Hwy 50 Commerce 75428 3/31/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Luigi's Italian Cafe 611 E Quinlan Pkwy Quinlan 75474 3/31/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Luigi's Italian Cafe 2002 S Goliad St Rockwall 75087 3/31/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Mattress Firm 110 W, I-20 Weatherford 76086 3/31/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Renaissance Dallas at Plano Legacy West Hotel 6007 Legacy Dr Plano 75024 3/31/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Ross Dress for Less 6834 Wesley St Ste R Greenville 75402 3/31/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
SomnoMed USA 6513 Windcrest Dr #100 Plano 75024 3/31/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
The Burger Joint 389 S Graham Ave Stephenville 76401 3/31/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Advance America 401 N Hwy 77 Ste. 14 Waxahachie, 75165 4/1/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Belk 1027 E Interstate 30 Rockwall 75087 4/1/2020 Email 70 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Childtime of Rowlett 8100 Miller Rd Rowlett 75088 4/1/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Denton Dermatology 209 N Bonnie Brae St #205 Denton 76201 4/1/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
El Fenix 3102 I-30 Frontage Rd #24 Greenville 75402 4/1/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Family Dentistry 7215 I-30 Greenville 75402 4/1/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
JC Penny 6834 Wesley St Ste C Greenville 75402 4/1/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Kay Jewelers 6906 Wesley St Unit C Greenville 75402 4/1/2020 Email 5 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Lawton Commercial Services 1444 N Central Expy McKinney 75070 4/1/2020 Email 30 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Marshals 6834 Wesley St Greenville 75401 4/1/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
My Eye Dr 3802 Joe Ramsey Blvd E Greenville, 75401 4/1/2020 Email 6 COVID_19 Yes Yes No


Page 4 of 7







Company Name Company Address City Zip Code County Date Received Notified By
# Workers 
Affected Reason


Is This a 
Layoff?


Is Layoff 
Temporary?


Is This a 
Closure?


Layoff Notifications for  Period May-2020 to Current


Powerhouse Now 812 South Crowley Road, Suite A Crowley 76036 4/1/2020 Email 200 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Promotion Central 2607 Lee St Greenville 75401 4/1/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Red Lobster 7601 Wesley St Greenville, 75402 4/1/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Safelite 417 Power House St, Suite A McKinney 75071 4/1/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Shaw Orthodontics 3018 Ridge Rd #110 Rockwall 75032 4/1/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Snuffers 2901 Village Dr Rockwall 75087 4/1/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Allen Dentistry 551 W McDermott Dr Allen 75013 4/2/2020 Email 5 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Ambridge Hospitality 5851 Legacy Cir #400 Plano 75024 4/2/2020 Email 15 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Bella Cosmetology & Barber School 5015 A Wesley St Greenville 75402 4/2/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Carter's 1800 S Loop 288 #218 Denton 76205 4/2/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Elite Materials and Logistics Solutions 3650 Shelby Ln Denton 76207 4/2/2020 Phone_Call 205 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Glaucoma Associates of Texas 6000 W Spring Creek Pkwy #110 Plano 75024 4/2/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Holiday inn Express 3400 Parkwood Blvd Frisco 75034 4/2/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Oval Dental 4471 Long Prairie Rd #300 Flower Mound 75028 4/2/2020 Email 4 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
RT's Neighborhood Bar 1100 Dallas Dr #124 Denton 76205 4/2/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Sheps Place 816 S Main St Weatherford 76086 4/2/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Southern Junction 5574 TX-276 Royse City 75189 4/2/2020 Email 50 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Stonebridge Ranch Country Club 7000 Beacon Hill Rd McKinney 75070 4/2/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Take 5 2850 Ft. Worth Hwy Hudson Oaks 76087 4/2/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Waffle House 2610 Ridge Rd Rockwall 75087 4/2/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
City of Frisco 6101 Frisco Square Blvd. Frisco 75034 4/3/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Frontier Communications 805 Central Expy S Allen 75013 4/3/2020 Email Production_Shift_Forei


gn_Competition_Trade
Yes Yes No


Morrison Milling Co 319 E Prairie St Denton 76201 4/3/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Wabash National 500 Commerce Blvd Cleburne 76033 4/3/2020 Email 52 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Benihana 5840 Legacy Cir Plano 75024 4/6/2020 Email 56 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
CDI Head Start 2316 Hwy Hwy 180 W Mineral Wells 76067 4/6/2020 Email 10 end of the school year, 


no summer classes.
Yes Yes No


CDI Head Start 503 BUSINESS HWY 287 N Decatur 76234 4/6/2020 Email 4 end of the school year, 
no summer classes.


Yes Yes No


David Mcdavid Honda 1601 Dallas Pkwy Frisco 75034 4/6/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Decatur Head Start 575 W Mulberry St Decatur 76234 4/6/2020 Email 2 end of the school year, 


no summer classes.
Yes Yes No


FTS International 119 Nu Energy Dr Aledo 76008 4/6/2020 Email 72 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Headstart Child Development 602 W. Water Weatherford 76086 4/6/2020 Email 4 end of the school year, 


no summer classes.
Yes Yes No


Little Jackets Daycare 650 Knox Ave Boyd 76023 4/6/2020 Email 4 end of the school year, 
no summer classes.


Yes Yes No


Neiman Marcus 2201 Dallas Pkwy Plano 75093 4/6/2020 Email,Public_Notice COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Ra Sushi Plano 7501 Lone Star Dr B-130 Plano 75024 4/6/2020 Email 44 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Elite Dental 2591 Northwest Loop Stephenville 76401 4/7/2020 Email 14 COVID_19 Yes Yes No


Page 5 of 7







Company Name Company Address City Zip Code County Date Received Notified By
# Workers 
Affected Reason


Is This a 
Layoff?


Is Layoff 
Temporary?


Is This a 
Closure?


Layoff Notifications for  Period May-2020 to Current


Flix Brewhouse 1660 FM 423 Frisco 75033 4/7/2020 Letter COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Moore Eye Center 2545 Northwest Loop Stephenville 76401 4/7/2020 Email 10 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Pappas Delta Blues Smokehouse 3916 Dallas Pkwy Plano 75093 4/7/2020 Letter 75 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Universal Pressure Pumping 3205 Windmill Rd Cleburne 76033 4/7/2020 Email Production_Business_Sl


owdown
Yes No No


Brookland Learning Center 6804 Jack Finney Blvd Greenville 75402 4/8/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Minty Carwash 5114 Wesley St Greenville 75402 4/8/2020 Email 13 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Nerds to go 2602 Ridge Rd #5 Rockwall 75087 4/8/2020 Letter Production_Business_Sl


owdown
Yes No Yes


Rockwell American Manufacturing 1012 Industrial Dr Royse City 75189 4/8/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Sally Beauty Corporate 3001 Colorado Blvd Denton 76210 4/8/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Shutterfly 4012 14th St Plano 75074 4/8/2020 Letter 130 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Solvay Composite Materials 4300 Jackson St Greenville 75401 4/8/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Suitsupply 7701 Windrose Ave f190 Plano 75024 4/8/2020 Letter 9 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
First Watch restaurant 3009 S Custer Rd Ste 600 McKinney 75070 4/9/2020 Email 25 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Sallys Beauty 15453 Wolff Crossing Northlake 76247 4/9/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
My Company 123 Test Dr. Test 55555 4/10/2020 Phone_Call 12 Production_Shift_Forei


gn_Competition_Trade
Yes Yes No


Paper Source 1900 Preston Rd Suite 211 Plano 75093 4/10/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Schlumberger 2340 I-35 West Service Road Denton 76207 4/10/2020 Letter 15 Production_Shift_Forei


gn_Competition_Trade
Yes No Yes


Floor N More 1860 I-30 Frontage Rd Rockwall 75087 4/13/2020 Email 25 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Hooters of America, LLC 1815 The Exchange Atlanta 30339 4/13/2020 Letter 249 COVID_19 Yes No No
Methodist Craig Ranch Surgery Center 6045 Alma Rd STE 100 McKinney 75070 4/13/2020 Email 50 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Nebraska Furniture Mart 5600 Nebraska Furniture Mart Dr The Colony 75056 4/13/2020 Email 1500 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Plano Orthopedic 5228 W Plano Pkwy Plano 75093 4/13/2020 Email 33 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Quest RV Rental 368 National Dr Rockwall 75032 4/13/2020 Email 2 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Take 5 Oil Change 2066 W Spring Creek Pkwy Plano 75023 4/13/2020 Letter COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Take 5 Oil Change 1732 E, 14th St Plano 75074 4/13/2020 Letter COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Take 5 Oil Change 3067 W 15th St Plano 75075 4/13/2020 Letter COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Take 5 Oil Change 2625 Midway Rd Carrollton 75006 4/13/2020 Letter COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Town of Little Elm 100 West Eldorado Pkwy Little Elm 75068 4/13/2020 Email 34 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Burlington 121 W Parker Rd Plano 75075 Collin 4/15/2020 Public_Notice COVID_19 Yes Yes No
PAM Rehabilitation Hospital of Allen 1001 Raintree Cir Allen 75013 Collin 4/15/2020 Email 10 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Studio Movie Grill 4721 W Park Blvd Plano 75093 Collin 4/15/2020 Public_Notice COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Town of Flower Mound 2121 Cross Timbers Road Flower Mound 75028 Denton 4/15/2020 Email 140 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Best Buy 995 E I-30 Rockwall 75087 Rockwall 4/16/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
St-Gobain Abrasives Inc 2770 W Washington St Stephenville 76401 Erath 4/16/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
TechnipFMC 2825 W Washington St Stephenville 76401 Erath 4/16/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Universal Forest Products 8800 FM 916 Grandview 76050 Johnson 4/17/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
C D Hartnett Co 302 N Main St Weatherford 76086 Parker 4/20/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
City of Heath 200 Laurence Drive Heath 75032 Rockwall 4/20/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
FFF Enterprises 1650 Lakeside Pkwy Suite 404 Flower Mound 75028 Denton 4/20/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Pinnergy Limited 9913 TX-171 Godley 76044 Johnson 4/20/2020 Email 22 COVID_19 Yes No No
VSPOne Dallas 440 E Vista Ridge Mall Dr Lewisville 75067 Denton 4/21/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No


Page 6 of 7







Company Name Company Address City Zip Code County Date Received Notified By
# Workers 
Affected Reason


Is This a 
Layoff?


Is Layoff 
Temporary?


Is This a 
Closure?


Layoff Notifications for  Period May-2020 to Current


Watson & Chalin Manufacturing, Inc 725 E University Dr McKinney 75069 Collin 4/21/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Park Place Automotive 6785 Dallas Parkway Plano 75024 Collin 4/23/2020 Email COVID_19 No Yes
Nine Energy Service 13119 TX-199 Poolville 76487 Parker 4/27/2020 Email 12 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
SAF-HOLLAND USA, Inc. 1301 Martinez Lane Wylie Texas Collin 4/27/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Hewlett Packard Enterprise 6080 Tennyson Pkwy Suite 400 Plano 75024 Collin 4/28/2020 Email Production_Shift_Forei


gn_Competition_Trade
Yes No Yes


PPL Motor Homes 2408 N Main St Cleburne 76033 Johnson 4/28/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Electro Rent 604 Henrietta Creek, Ste 400 Roanoke 76262 Denton 4/30/2020 WARN_Letter 7 COVID_19 Yes Yes No
Greenhouse Restaurant 600 N Locust St Denton 76201 Denton 4/30/2020 Email COVID_19 Yes No No


Page 7 of 7





		Sheet1






 


 


North Central Texas WDA 


Skills Development Fund Grant Activity Report 


 
 


SDF Grants Awarded in FY20 (October 1, 2019 thru September 30, 2020) 
 


College Name Business Partner(s) Grant Award Contract Start 
Date 


Contract End Date 


Collin College Amphenol Fiber Systems; Broach Bilt Mfg; 
Blount Fine Foods; Emerson Process Mgmt 
Technologies; Hisun Motor Corp USA, Sanden 
International 


$736,422 05/04/2020 05/31/2021 


North Central Texas 
College 


Mary Kay, Inc. $187,657 08/01/2020 08/31/2021 


 


TOTAL DOLLARS AWARDED IN FY20: $924,079  


SDF INCENTIVE DOLLARS EARNED IN FY20: $10,000  





